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PYI further raised its stake in Yangkou Port to 75% at a consideration of HK$168 million.
TREELA.68IBE T 2 (EEHE — PR RF D BIRIEZRT75% °

PYI completed its divestment in China Strategic Holdings Limited and distributed to shareholders a special dividend equivalent
to HK22.2 cents per share, amounting to a value of about HK$326 million. This signified the acceleration on PYI's Yangtze port
and logistics investment program.

TREETREBERAR 25 - WIREF S SRA22. 2812 FHIE TEER - lREAELNA3.26(8ET - RnZRERINR
HITRITE L RYRKERS -

In July, Phase 3 of the Langshan Terminal was commissioned for trial run targeting a certification of an annual throughput capacity
of 18 million tonnes.

RILETEERSE = B ARMBISUENE - LIRS E1,3008 A A ) 2 R °

Groundbreaking ceremony of the 1.4 sgq km man-made island (Phase 1) at Yangkou Port, marking a step forward for the Group
to realize its targeted initial operation of Yangkou Port in 2008.

URFOBNTAFTRARATEE - NRER|THLEN - RHEREA/ERF DER2008F M2 B Bl RATEE 2 -

PYI completed capital contribution in respect of its 45% interest in Nantong Port Group .
RESTREFEBBOEETE - WiEHEH45%#5 ©

PYI acquired liquid bulk logistics related assets and business from Minsheng Gas, including an LPG river terminal, a storage
tank farm, as well as a mature logistics network for household, industrial and automotive sectors, at a consideration of RMB470
million.

RETHALTRAREEBREBREARR ZBRICMEMREERER - PEREAMRIEE « FEEBERE  ARTENIR
A~ TERMAEREAMRNYDRAL
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PYI acquired the remaining 25% of Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate, a property development subsidiary for the Yangkou Port
project at a total consideration of US$625,000, streamlining the process by which the Group undertakes property the development
project activities related to Yangkou Port.

RIEELAG2. 5EETTANRE - BA—RHARREFOBIEE MK  EFRMBAR — IHSEFMER TH25%MRE - IEE%
BEFOBNEZRRIRERE

DEC +=-5

PYI sold its 100% interest in M. Bux Tower for HK$98 million, achieving a premium of about HK$20 million to book value. The
disposal of M. Bux Tower marked the completion of the Group’s divestment programme, allowing it to focus its future business
on developing its regional port strategy in the Yangtze River region.

RELA9,BO0B B THER RN Oz 28R - HEBREREFERE2,00088 T - HEARTUVEFAEBEETREELEE
EERTE] - SEREE TN RIDRIEHE N EH R R

PYI was entrusted by PetroChina Company Limited to manage, build and transfer a portion of the man-made island for a
proposed LNG receiving facility at Yangkou Port.

REEDBEABRAZRNHERARAEZT  RABRFOBRZATE F - 5—EEFNRERARZEETER « BREBER
HDALSHERTIE -

2007
JUL +5

PYI secured a RMB960 million project loan from a syndicate of eight domestic banks to finance the infrastructural facilities for
the LNG terminal at Yangkou Port.
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Financial Highlights Bi i E

2007 2006

HK$’Million HK$’Million

BEET BEATT

(restated)

(&=270))

Turnover & %58 4,781.7 3,540.5
Earnings before interest and taxation (EBIT) k& FI 8 & % Az A 350.2 383.8
Profit attributable to shareholders %R FE{L %7 345.7 278.9
Shares outstanding (million) 277810 (& &%) 1,491.7 1,378.8
Net asset value per share (HK$) BIEEEFE (BT) 1.86 1.86
Earnings per share (HK$) &R 25 (BiT) 0.236 0.204
Dividend per share (HK$) &% 8 (B7T) 0.252 0.73
Total assets & & 7,621.4 5,981.7
Quick assets #ENE = 3,616.2 3,112.3
Net current assets &) & & FE 824.0 1,284.0
Net debt (cash) JF&fE (R&) 184.6 (313.3)
Shareholders’ funds %5 & & 2,771.9 2,570.6
Current ratio R 2Lt & 1.29 1.67
Quick ratio R B Lt = 1.26 1.63
Net debt (cash)/equity ratio JEF&E (3R&) /EALE 0.07 0.12)
Gearing ratio &N & &L & 0.37 0.27
Return on equity A% A &S 12% 11%
Total shareholder return %5 A2 & 38% 37%

10 € Pyl " PYI Corporation Limited 2007 Annual Report



Total shareholder return &R Uz
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Making the right decisions
at the right time is key to
our success.
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Chawmam s Statement

o

Maximizing shareholder value lies at the heart of all PYl’s
business decisions. This dedication to shareholders
drives the Group to set high level of transparency and

accountability.

RENSEEHNER

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report that our growth for the year ended 31 March
2007 met our expectations. Delivering satisfactory performance, PYI
achieved a net profit after taxation of HK$346 million (2006: HK$279
million) - an increase of 24% compared with the previous year. Return
on your equity was 12%, and total shareholder return was 38% for the
year.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK1.5 cents/share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK1.5 cents/share and the special dividend
of HK22.2 cents/share, total dividend for shareholders amounts to
HK?25.2 cents/share or an aggregate sum of HK$370 million for this
year.

One of the keys to success is making the right decisions at the right
time, and the timely completion of our divestment programme enabled
us to invest in projects that will meet the booming demand for ports
and logistics services in the Yangtze River region. Please refer to the
Managing Director’s Report for a review of our operations.

Focus for the future

As we were completing our divestment programme for non-core assets,
we raised our stake in Yangkou Port and acquired Nantong Port Group
and Minsheng gas terminal. Armed with an organic growth strategy
that is supplemented by strategic acquisitions, PYI is well-positioned
to further expand on the Yangtze. The construction of Yangkou Port
is progressing well and Nantong Port Group reached record high cargo
throughput in 2006 and again, in the first half of 2007.

These achievements were made possible by the ceaseless efforts of
our executives and staff. Our investment strategies have played an
important role in our success and | want to express my appreciation
to the talented people who not only share our vision but are able to
implement the many details necessary to achieving it.

MEBENREE RBCRIEE -

BALIR -

RARAR BETE2HmEBEEZE2007F3A31H L
BREEREE - REFAKRRSARE  BREEEF
E346(88 7T (20064 : 2.798/87T) @ BEFIEM
24% o FAMRAHEREIRAE12% - RERAUR =
38% °

EXREMERESERGBIIRERS - EREM1.5
Al HIl S K22, 2;‘%%2#—?%& B AHBFE
'!Hy\ /)E 5 25 2/%1”—] I:I /\/}L’E E 3 71?/%71 °

EBRNBREREE ORE - FEEEERRTK

HEEENS  AIRAREERERS  20R%
R — %% KA mED B A RRER - X715

A 2 15 -

SEEE ARES
ﬁ%@&%fﬁztﬂs%t%uz%%:@uzma% C—HEE
B OB ER FEAERERSRRER
JRRIEEE o FAMEE %@%D%iﬂaﬁa%i‘ﬁﬁﬁ
AR ERGHEETTE - rE— P ZRERTREANE
EEE - BRFOBERIBR  EEBZEHENE
2006%F 2007 EH+FEEIF S ©
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Chairman's Statement FEHREE

Corporate governance

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to enhance corporate value and to safeguard our
shareholders’ interests. Full details of our corporate governance
practices, as well as the initiatives taken by us during the year towards
achieving this important mission, are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Just as important as making decisions is to have people understand
why they were made. That’s why our management culture puts such
emphasis on transparency and accountability. WWe want our business
overseen by people with broad experience, objectivity and independent
views.

The Board was pleased to welcome two new independent non-
executive directors (INED) — Mr Bowen Joseph Leung Po Wing ass,
Jp, in August 2006, and Mr Li Chang An in January 2007. Mr Leung
and Mr Li bring with them a wealth of experience, a deep understanding
of national policies, and extensive network in the Mainland. Their
appointments have strengthened the Board’s overall capabilities and
brought our INED percentage to over 70%.

In order to better understand the new business dynamics of the Group
and assess the economic environment in the regions where we
operate, Board members conducted several site visits during the year
to inspect the operations and received briefings from all major business
units. Board members also took an active role in overseeing the
development and implementation of the internal control and risk
management systems. | would like to thank them for their diligence
and collective input.

Our role in the community

The official term is “corporate social responsibility” or CSR in short,
but to us it’s simply people. Keeping people in mind is just good
business - that’s why we consider everyone’s interests in everything
we do.

The timely completion of

our divestment programme
enabled us to capture attractive
investment opportunities

on the Yangtze.

RNEE 2B T R IR

BE  FRAOFAEF FHILELTR
LR ER R -
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Inside the company, we do our best to ensure the health and safety
of all our staff and we care about their career development. We are
conscious about environmental protection as well as energy conservation.

In the community, we sponsor study tours to Hong Kong and Macau
for distinguished students in Nantong and Wuhan secondary schools.
In addition, we supported the launch of a local TV programme by
Wuhan Taxi Industry Association promoting the use of LPG as a clean
and energy efficient fuel. We also sponsored the 16th Jiangsu Provincial
Games in October 2006 and the list goes on.

We consider ourselves long-term members of the communities we

operate in and we let that belief guide us. Whether it’s hiring locally,

giving back to the community, or setting long-range business goals,
we look at the impact our decisions will have on people.

The people who support us

Moving forward, | am confident that, with the inspiring leadership of
my fellow board members, the ongoing support of all our shareholders
and business partners, and the marvellous efforts of our dedicated
executives and staff, PYl is well positioned to deliver further growth
on our shareholders’ value.

Yours faithfully,

Joseph Chow 05BE, P
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 July 2007
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Managing Director’s Report ESEEKIERES

Based on a solid footing
on the Yangtze region,
we are now set to enlarge

- 0ro
- our critical mass.
& RESERITMBEL TR

BIRER - E—THEMK
iR °
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aging Director’s Report

Our operations are performing well with strong growth trends.
We are on track with our Yangtze Strategy.

FREBXBHRERS

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to report that the Group achieved strong financial
results for the year ended 31 March 2007. Consolidated turnover
increased by 35% to HK$4,782 million and net profit surged by 24%
to HK$346 million when compared with last year, with earnings per
share reaching HK23.6 cents. We also achieved a 12% return on your
equity and a total shareholder return of 38% for the year. Please refer
to the Financial Review at pages 26 to 29 for a full review on financial

performance and position.

Having developed a clear strategy to focus on bulk cargo, infrastructure
and logistics in the Yangtze River region, the Group has achieved
significant progress as those businesses are taking shape. Our operations
are performing well with strong growth trends, and we are on track with
our Yangtze Strategy. | am pleased to provide you with more information
on our strategic development and achievements to date.

Sustaining the Yangtze momentum

In today’s global economy, ports are fast becoming the modern day
transport and logistics hubs. Nowhere is that truer than on the Yangtze
River, the Mainland’s largest and busiest inland waterway and a region
that accounts for over 30% of the Mainland's GDP.

WHEFEML - & FORIREITEE DX

L

BB ER -
RARAE ET23k  £ENEZE2007F3831H
I FEHREEDES - AEB RS EEAREF L

FF#935%3247 8218/ 7T » MALF TR A FIER24%
E3.46188 T - BIRATFE23.6751l - FRIEARE R
B12% - BRERAARRAIE38% ° BRI AR
15 B2EF20E298 2 [HEEFE] -

SEEF TEIARIAEERAREE - Z28Y)
MEZBMRE - BAXBKTCHERE - BUSHE
ER - FRAKEEBRREIY BRE@L - ETH
RIRBEIPEELRE - AAZRBUBEANARKSZF
FERBRBEEBR K -

EERTIBR 2 P2HE

EESRBEERBT  BOENERARERR
MRIER - RITHERRMBRAL - KRBT Z AKX
- ZoREE R E R A E R EBIB30% - E ARt
HIIE °
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Managing Director’s Report £S5 KBHREE

PYlis focused on bulk cargo port infrastructure and logistics operations
along this “Golden Waterway.” An integrated port and logistics network
is vital to the economic growth of the Yangtze region. Our aim is to
build up a network of bulk cargo ports along the Yangtze, in order to
rationalize operation costs, enhance overall service quality, and utilize

port assets more effectively.

The ports sector is a key driver of economic growth and social benefits,
and it is evident that China is enacting favourable policies to induce
growth in this area. PYI will continue our growth strategy with more
port investments in the Yangtze River Delta where over 70% of the
Yangtze regional throughput volume derives, as well as in other
opportunities in the upstream of the Yangtze. The Yangtze Economic

Region is our springboard for sustainable growth.

Review of operations
Yangkou Port
Early in this year under review, confident of the development prospects

—(EERTES/KBIKRRMERE D YRAER
REMBANTERBLBEER RENFESKEBELXR
FAEERRYRREREY AR TREEY
REBEB OB WMEnE LERA - RTTEER
BWEZ YHEREMEOER

4

BHETSBEBER T ENEZ NER - {ePE
MAEERRCERLEBERARE M - AN
RET  RESEBHIERER  ERTI=ANM (B
WIS FRITRIEAL BB 70%) #ITEZENKRE -
YeEnfT EBEREZRENRERS - RITLR
BREMAFEZERNFS -

FEHB LR

FOE

BEFOENERAY  FEVH > KENUEE2913
B2 X FEEHETT6,8508RREFRMDB/HRE
HF DB mIBINT 4% ET75% °

we further increased our stake in the Yangkou Port project by 7.4%

ER R R E R ARREE L AR - REREE
ALE (KIE8) REBAB LRMAZR @ HEHH
BARXAZE16.50BARY - ZRBMN168EAR
WX AFEESL - AT 2TRCKRBEELE

to 75%. The consideration was satisfied by the issue of 68.5 million

new PYI shares at a fair price of HK$2.913 each to the vendor.

Preceding PetroChina’s commitment for the LNG facilities, we already
commanded a jump start of construction on the man-made island (Sun
Island) and the Yellow River Crossing, the capital expenditure for which
has been estimated at about RMB1,650 million. For this year, capital
expenditure of about RMB168 million was incurred. All capital works

PY| adds its own touch of
management expertise,
corporate culture and
international perspective to
stay ahead of competition.

EEEESR NS EE M
BES] » RIFNTEEX LA R SERMNE
RAAE - EITRBCERTSEERB

BHREREFED -
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are progressing on time and within budget. We have signed a lease
agreement for the Yellow Sea Crossing with the local government as
well as an off-take agreement for the land on the Sun Island. That will
give rise to a stable income stream, which led to the ultimate financial
closure of the 7-year RMB960 million syndicated loan with eight major
domestic banks in July 2007.

In December 2006, PYI increased its stake from 75% to 100% in
Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a property
subsidiary for the port project, at a consideration based on net asset
value of US$625,000. This move allowed PY! to further capitalize on
the property development opportunities in Yangkou Port and to streamline
our operational structure in that regard. Catering for market demand
around Yangkou Port, a low density residential development of about
65,000 sg m of floor area is already underway with completion scheduled
by mid 2008.

This year is particularly rewarding for our greenfield development at
Yangkou Port. In December 2006, when PetroChina entrusted PYI to
manage, build and transfer part of the Sun Island for a liquefied natural
gas (LNG) facility at Yangkou Port, that finally underscored the technical
viability of the development. When the syndication loan was secured
to finance the construction of the infrastructural components, it marked
another milestone attesting the commercial viability of Yangkou Port.
The land on the Sun Island is scheduled to be transferred to PetroChina
before the end of 2007, and the Yellow Sea Crossing is scheduled for
completion by the end of 2008.

KT - SEEM T BRNFETHEABHEERR 5
ME] T KR5S T B o WEEAKET K
BEMAIIR - BULIMER SR B 52007 F7 A NAK
FERIRITRI L FHN.6BARBIREER -

2006511 A » RENIHEERFMEREFRAR
(BBOBEERLZ MENBLAR) ZERH75%1E
E100% * RIBETIZE EFE625,0003 T AFLERT
o N BROREGUE—SERFABZMETRE
g WEBEERE - AEFNSRE2EER -
IR IFE) T EZEEEELY65,000F 5K 2 BBREEE
BE - FEHBR2008F 5 ©

Kiﬁ'%ﬁﬁﬁu%ﬁmm?ﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁamﬁ
SAEEE - 2006128 - R ARMETRERFD
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Managing Director’s Report 52 KIEREE

Master planning for the 42 sq km land bank is underway with partial
completion expected by the end of 2007.

Nantong Port Group
Nantong Port is a category one port open to foreign trade and a major
hub port situated in the Yangtze River Delta.

It has taken us nine months to conduct our capital injection in various
stages. Our RMB435 million investment for 45% interest in Nantong
Port Group was finally completed at the end of September, 2006.
Throughout that period, PYI was fully involved in the daily operations
of Nantong Port Group through our nominated general manager and
financial controller as well as three board members. Nantong Port
Group performed extremely well with profitability in 2006 increased by
300% over the previous year, and further growth of 50% is forecasted
for the year of 2007.

In July 2006, Phase 3 of Langshan Terminal was commissioned for
trial run targeting a certification of an annual throughput capacity of
13 million tonnes. With further equipment expansion, the capacity can
reach 30 million tonnes. This terminal is currently the largest and most
modern of its kind on the Yangtze dedicated for iron ore shipments.
With this terminal coming into play, throughput of bulk cargo increased
by 13% to 44 million tonnes and that of containers increased by 28%
to 320,000 TEUs in 2006.

In this year under review, a net profit of RMB5 million up to 31 December
2006 has been recognised by PYI. Since the financial year end of PYI

lags that of Nantong Port Group by three months, the full year’s results

The Yangtze

Economic Region is our
springboard for sustainable
growth.

LA B B = F AP
—H BRERRTE -

20 < WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2007 Annual Report

42F T NB i fEE 2 AR IR EIIR IEHETT -
#2007 FIRATFEAK ©

BB IEH

EEBOEE
BB BHIINARZBER —REO REEEMSD

BEEREEE - FIMAHIE20065F9
B ek g mimis 0 EE45% % - (EB4.35EAR
ko BIBRREFBREBIRR 2 BKE B RER
LEERKE - &M /AﬁL%DE@ZE%LW
MEBOEER2006FKRRRY - BAREF LF
300% * TEHER2007F 15 B 50% LR

&N E RS

200657 A » RILABTEESE = B BISEIE - LAY
1SEF1,300BMER L6811 2 RE o 18HE—HIRARNME
1% » AL HATEE3,000808 © K ART EHPEE
BRERAEZRAEHEPRAR  HRAUEE -5
SHEERUAE - R20065F - KR EERET=E A
13%%4,4008 1 - MEEET 28 EF28%E328

Taf [

~IE °

DEFEAN  REEERBESOEEEHZ20066F128
31AALEZ5008 ARBAFIMARN - AREES




of Nantong Port Group ending on 31 December will be
recognised by PYl in future years.

When the 8,206-metre Suzhou-Nantong Bridge over the
Yangtze River is completed in 2008, there will be a direct
link between Nantong and Suzhou leading to the newest
convergence of the north side of the Delta with the south.
The enhanced traffic network will be a further boost to
the already thriving business environment in Nantong in
the years to come.

Hubei Minsheng LPG

The Group reached a milestone with its acquisition of
Minsheng LPG terminal in Wuhan, which is situated at
the mid-stream of the Yangtze. The infrastructure and
logistics related assets in Wuhan include the largest LPG
river terminal and storage tank farm in Central China, as
well as a mature logistics network for the household,
automotive and industrial sectors. This acquisition was
completed in September 2006.

The acquisition consideration of RMB470 million payable
by the Group was financed as to RMB300 million by a
7-year term loan, RMB120 million by the issue of 3-year
zero coupon convertible bonds of PYI (at a conversion
price of HK$4.25/share) and the balance of RMB50 million

by internal resources.

This newly acquired LPG distribution business contributed
HK$3 million to the Group’s operating profit in this year
under review. There was an additional HK$4 million
contribution to the Group’s pre-tax profit due to a discount

on acquisition of the LPG distribution business and assets.

Having occupied a market share of about 40% in Wuhan,
Minsheng Gas provides the Group with not only a new
operating skill base but also access to the oil and gas
distribution sector in Central China.

Paul Y. Enginnering
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited is an international

engineering services group with 60 years of experience
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in the construction industry and a reputation for expertise and
professionalism. The Group is expanding into fee-based income streams
by leveraging its experience in project and facilities management-
building business and shareholder value through integrated engineering
solutions from inception, implementation to delivery for infrastructural

and property development.

Paul Y. Engineering performed well last year with net profit of HK$113
million, representing a growth of 12% on a revenue of HK$4,359 million.
A gain of HK$72 million was derived from the revaluation of its 25%
investment in Paul Y. Centre. Balance sheet was very strong with a
net cash position of HK$172 million. Operating cash flow was at a
satisfactory level when compared with its EBITDA of HK$124 million.
A final dividend of HK5.5 cents/share was declared, which represents
a pay-out ratio of 47% for the year. Order book stood at HK$12,078
million, with value of remaining contract amounting to over HK$6,872
million, as at the financial year end. Subsequent to that, an additional

HK$500 million value of new contracts were secured.

Treasury investment

Our treasury investment business performed well and contributed some
HK$174 million towards operating profit this year. As at the year end,
total value of the Group’s portfolio of marketable security amounted to
about HK$156 million, equivalent to about 2% of the Group’s total
assets. Portfolio of high-yield loans receivable amounted to some
HK$469 million, equivalent to 6% of total assets of the Group. As the
Group redeploys more financial resources to finance our investments
in the Yangtze region, its investment portfolio and hence treasury

operations will decrease in due course.

Property development and investment

Property investment contributed HK$14 million to our operating profit
for this year. As mentioned above, a gain of HK$72 million was achieved
through the contribution of an associate of Paul Y. Engineering following
a revaluation of its 25% investment in Paul Y. Centre. M. Bux Tower
was sold in December 2006 at HK$98 million. Subsequent to the
financial year end, Paul Y. Engineering sold its entire investment in Paul
Y. Centre. These disposals marked the completion of the Group’s exit
from the Hong Kong property market. All future property activities of
the Group will be carried out in association with its ports facilities in
the Yangtze region.
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Divestment of China Strategic

During the year, the Group completed disposal of about 15.32% interest
in China Strategic Holdings Limited at a cash consideration of HK$26
million, with the remaining 62 million shares held in its investment

portfolio.

Special dividend

With the completion of the Group’s divestment in China Strategic, we
declared an in-specie special dividend equivalent to HK22.2 cents/share
or a total of about HK$326 million to our shareholders.

Major subsequent events

Issuance of convertible notes

In April and June, 2007, pursuant to the acquisition of the Minsheng
business and assets, PY! issued a total of HK$121.52 million of
convertible notes to the vendor in partial satisfaction of the consideration
payable. These 3-year zero coupon notes are convertible into shares
of PYI at HK$4.25/share. Redemption amount will be 114.167% of

par value at maturity.

Disposal of 25% interest in Paul Y. Centre

In March 2007, a 25% owned associate of Paul Y. Engineering entered
into a conditional agreement for the disposal of Paul Y. Centre located
at 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$1,150 million. The disposal was completed in June 2007.
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Syndicated loan for Yangkou Port FOEZIREER

In July 2007, the Group, through its 75% owned subsidiary Jiangsu 200757 R BIBEEB 5% Em 2 ¥ QAR AR
Yangkou Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd., entered into a BHERAREN\HAMERITET —HIEARE - &
7-year project loan facility agreement for RMB960 million with a syndicate HF BB ERpE - UFRBRARRITAMA R
of eight domestic banks in Nanjing. This syndicated loan, bearing the ARERERELERNE - AERERFOBREIZR
current Renminbi long-term loan benchmark interest rate as announced BrESRE—RIABNEBEI4THIRENALS

by the People's Bank of China, will be used to fund construction of ERERHE o
the 13 km Yellow Sea Crossing and the 1.4 sq km man-made island
at Yangkou Port. BE

TEHAAR B 2 o4 S REVEAE ] 2 T~ — (BB BUF 2 4
Outlook BRFF - BRI EERE S BBME - S8E
China's track record of strong economic growth looks set to remain RRME - BEM PR IRTR KRG - REMATE

steadly for the coming financial year ending 31 March 2008. This organic BEADEREBTHEETE -
growth, coupled with increasing levels of international trade, has spiked

demand for essential raw materials, construction materials and energy =FRBMEREFBTENESNERKR A A
resources. RO - BRARIERARRNE - THE BRI

BEBOBBESRESZRRF - TEEREEET -
PY!'s business in bulk cargo and ports infrastructure is directly benefited FOBEE 2RBRASER IAEERE ZHFE

from this booming demand as China increases its appetite for the 2o BETHMEMEREBE  HEREEKRKRN
resources necessary to support its continued growth. FOBCEE -

Three years of our greenfield development efforts at Yangkou Port have
paid off. PetroChina’s proposed LNG facility at Yangkou Port confirms
our faith in the site for the sustainable development of our port-related
business. Spearheading our network, the success of the Yangkou Port
project will increase our competitive edge in securing future prospects
along the Yangtze region. Extracting value from land and property
development will be our main focus in Yangkou Port.

An integrated port and logistics
network is vital to economic
growth of the Yangtze region.

— AR IESKEIK
FIR R HE DR A4 - GESAME
AT ERBKEER
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In addition to the flagship development at Yangkou Port, PYl is leveraging
its operations at Nantong Port and Minsheng Gas for maximum
synergies, cross-business opportunities and economies of scale. To
these elements, PYI adds our own touch of management expertise,
corporate culture, and international perspective to stay ahead of
competition. Based on a solid footing on the Yangtze region, we are

now set to enlarge our critical mass.

The Group is fully committed to deploying its professional capabilities
and operational resources to transform China’s ports and logistics
sector, and to achieve our vision of becoming the major bulk cargo

port investor and operator in the Yangtze River region.

In closing, | would like to express my profound appreciation to our
Chairman for his great leadership, to our board members for their
valuable guidance, to our business partners and shareholders for their
patience and generous support, and to our colleagues in Hong Kong
and the Mainland for their loyalty, dedication and contributions to the

success of PYI.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 20 July 2007
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Review of Financial Performance and Position

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group recorded a consolidated
turnover of about HK$4,782 million (2006: HK$3,540 milion), representing
an increase of about 35% when compared with that of last corresponding
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the

Group’s business in management contracting.

Profit
Profit before taxation of about HK$327 million was achieved as
compared with about HK$367 million for last year. The Group’s profit

before taxation was composed of:

(i) net gain of about HK$59 million in management contracting,
project management and facilities management businesses
(2006: HK$138 million);

(ii) net gain of about HK$3 million in LPG distribution (2006: Nil);

(iii) net gain of about HK$174 million in treasury investment
(2006: HK$80 million);

(iv) net gain of about HK$14 million in property investment
(2006: HK$12 million);

(v) interest income and other income of about HK$42 million
(2006: HK$108 million);

(vi) discount on acquisition of LPG business of about HK$4 million
(2006: Nil);

(vii) gain on disposal of interest in an associate of about HK$5 million
(2006: Nil);

(vii)  net gain of about HK$223 million from associates and jointly
controlled entities (2006: HK$10 million) ;

(ix) development costs of about HK$14 million in port and
infrastructure development and logistics business (2006: Nil);

(x) net corporate and other expenses of about HK$159 million
(2006: HK$128 million), of which HK$23 million (2006: HK$3
million) was attributed to share-based payment expense for
share options granted to directors and employees. Higher
corporate costs were employed to support the business
expansion and the growing turnover during the year; and

(xi)  finance costs of about HK$24 million (2006: HK$17 million).
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The amount of profit before taxation in last year included increase in

fair value of derivative financial instruments of about HK$18 million,
increase in fair value of investment properties of about HK$85 million
and gain on disposal of subsidiaries of about HK$61 million. None of

these items occurred in the current year.

Net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of PYI was about
HK$346 million (2006: HK$279 million) and basic earnings per share
was HK23.6 cents (2006: HK20.4 cents). Such improvement was
mainly due to deferred tax credit of HK$63 miillion arising from a reduction
of the PRC enterprise income tax rate from 33% to 25% as promulgated
in March 2007 .

Financial Position

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at last year end,
total assets increased by 27% to about HK$7,621 million (2006:
HK$5,982 million) and net current assets decreased by 36% to about
HK$824 million (2006: HK$1,284 million). These changes were mainly
attributed to the Group’s further capital injection into developing projects
relating to its port and infrastructure development and logistics business,
as well as its fund contribution to the acquisition of LPG distribution
business which started to operate during the current year. Consequently,
current assets decreased from 1.7 times to 1.3 times of current liabilities.
After accounting for the net profit of about HK$346 million net of
dividends paid/declared of about HK$370 million, equity attributable
to shareholders of PYI increased by 8% to about HK$2,772 million
(2006: HK$2,571 million), representing HK$1.86 per share as at 31
March 2007 (2006: HK$1.86 per share).

Net cash inflow from operating activities was about HK$375 million,
and net cash outflow in respect of investing and financing activities was
about HK$333 million, resulting in a net increase in available cash and

cash equivalents of about HK$42 million for the year.

Total shareholder return for the year ended 31 March 2007, representing
the increase in share price of PYI during the year plus dividends paid
during the year, is about 38% (2006: 37%).
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group continues to adopt a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. A variety of credit facilities
are maintained to meet its working capital requirements and committed
capital expenditures. The loans of the Group bear interest at market
rates and are with terms of repayment ranging from one year to seven
years. In an effort to minimize the adverse impact of exchange rate
and interest rate fluctuations on the Group’s earnings, assets and
liabilities, the Group continues to manage the fluctuation exposures

on specific transactions.

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to about
HK$1,024 million (2006: HK$688 million) with HK$597 million (2006:
HK$523 million) repayable within one year and HK$427 million (2006:
HK$165 million) repayable after one year. Out of the Group’s total
borrowings of about HK$1,024 million as at 31 March 2007, about
HK$226 million was non-recourse to the Group (excluding Paul V.

Engineering Group Limited and its subsidiaries).

As at 31 March 2007, HK$262 million (2006: HK$404 million) of the
Group’s borrowings bore interest at floating rates and were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, HK$600 million (2006: HK$142 million) bore
interest at floating rates and were denominated in Renminbi, and
HK$162 million (2006: HK$142 million) bore interest at a fixed rate and
were denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.37
(2006: 0.27), which is calculated based on the total borrowings of
HK$1,024 million (2006: HK$688 million) and the Group’s shareholders’
fund of HK$2,772 million (2006: HK$2,571 million).

Cash balances as at 31 March 2007 amounted to about HK$779
million (2006: HK$785 million), of which about HK$43 million (2006:
HK$119 million) has been pledged to banks to secure general credit
facilities granted to the Group. As at the year end, the Group has a
net debt position (being cash balances net of bank borrowings) of
HK$185 million (2006: net cash of HK$313 million).

During the current year, PYl issued and allotted 68,500,000 ordinary
shares as consideration for acquiring a further 7.4% indirect interest
in the Yangkou Port project.
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In addition, the Group contracted to pay for the consideration of

acquiring the LPG assets and business in Wuhan, as to RMB350 million
in cash and RMB120 million by way of convertible notes, which were
issued subsequent to the year end. The Group also obtained a 7-year
bank term loan in principal amount of RMB300 million as the primary
facility to finance this acquisition. As at 31 March 2007, the Group
utilised the said bank term loan in an aggregate amount of RMB262
million.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2007, the Group has contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantee given to a bank for banking facilities to an associate of
about HK$9 million (2006: HK$9 million), which was non-recourse to
the Group (excluding Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited and its

subsidiaries).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2007, certain property, plant and equipment, land and
sea use rights and bank deposits of the Group with an aggregate value
of about HK$644 million (2006: HK$197 million) and benefits under
certain construction contracts have been pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure general credit facilities granted to the Group. As
at 31 March 2007, about HK$53 million (2006: HK$76 million) of these
pledged assets used to secure credit facilities which were non-recourse
to the Group (excluding Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited and its

subsidiaries).

Commitments

As at 31 March 2007, the Group has expenditure contracted for but
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment, project under
development and properties under development in the amount of about
HK$1,520 million (2006: HK$92 million).
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Yanhgkou Port ¥[8

Starting from scratch, the Yangkou Port project evidences PY1 ’s determination
and efforts
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& Yangkou Port 7FAE

Golden gateway to promising future

Groundwork for making Yangkou Port the future
trans-shipment hub in the Yangtze region has made
significant headway.

bt # = £ K ERFRKEE
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B e SRS o

32 < Wl" PYI Corporation Limited 2007 Annual Report



Yangkou Port is a natural harbour in Eastern China, which is ideally
situated to become a major trans-shipment hub for dry and liquid bulk

cargo catering to the Yangtze River region.

PYI owns and operates Yangkou Port, which covers a 42 sq km
development land bank, a man-made island linked by the 13km Yellow

Sea Crossing and nine berths in the deep draft zone.

The development forms an integral part of the Jiangsu transport

development plans. First phase of the development comprising an initial
land bank of 10 sg km, the Yellow Sea Crossing and a general cargo
berth is scheduled to be completed before the end of 2008. The master
planning of the harbour-front industrial and logistics park caters to the

petrochemical industry.

In December 2006, the Group secured the commitment of PetroChina
to develop an LNG import facility on the man-made island at Yangkou
Port. Part of the 1.4 sq km Sun Island will be turned over to PetroChina

before the end of 2007.

Local authorities have been supportive to the Yangkou Port development.
Ambitious plans are mapped out to build a comprehensive road-rail-
water transport network to support the project. The Yangkou Port
development has also attracted an increasing number of domestic and
multinational corporations to explore development opportunities in the
bulk cargo berths as well as the industrial and logistics park. Land sale

is scheduled to commence in the fourth quarter of 2006 according to

our plan.
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Master planning for the land bank in
Yangkou Port underway

AR LR IFEITRERE

Construction of the man-made island progesses well
ALBHERATHIBESEH R R

Yellow Sea Crossing-linking the man-made
island and industrial and logistics park
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Nantong Port Group F&EE

Profitability enhancement of Nantong Port is attributable to.a.boost in
Lthroughput capacity as well as effective cost reductionsmeasures
oA M

—

—0

Wl') REEEBRAR 2007FH




Business Development ¥7%% &

Nantong Port Group FE @&

Strength and reform raise profitability

With PYI’s participation, Nantong Port Group

further solidified its leading position through effective
corporate reform.
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Nantong Port is a major trans-shipment hub port on the Yangtze River
for dry bulk cargo. The newly commissioned iron ore berth renders
the highest throughput capacity on the Yangtze.

Being the first major bulk cargo port along the Yangtze River Delta,
Nantong Port houses the second largest distribution centre for bulk
cargo down-stream. It is also the largest hub port for iron ore trans-

shipment.

Nantong Port Group is the core port enterprise at Nantong Port,
accounting for nearly 50% of its total throughput. The main cargoes
handled by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals, cement, steel,

coal, fertilizers, grains and edible oil.

Nantong Port Group owns a total of 5 major terminals namely, Tongzhou
Port, Jianghai Port, Yaogang Port, Langshan Port, Langshan Port
Phase 3. They together operate 26 productive berths in total, including
2 berths for vessels of 100,000 tonnage, 6 berths for vessels of 50,000
tonnage and 10 berths for vessels of 10,000 tonnage.

Nantong Port Group recorded another year of solid growth in 2006
with cargo throughput increasing 10% year-on-year to approximately
44 million tonnes. With the new Langshan Port Phase 3 iron ore
terminal, total capacity with be increased by additional 13 million tonnes.
Langshan Port Phase 3 is currently the largest and most modern iron
ore terminal on the Yangtze. With a view to strengthening its operational
capabilities, Nantong Port Group has also taken the initiatives to upgrade

its management and operational systems.

Nantong Port is a category-one port in the

Yangtze River Delta
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Another year of solid growth re
for Nantong Port Group
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Minsheng Gas R4 A

- 1 Well-established in Wuhan, Minsheng Gas is poised for further expansion
to meet the increasing energy needs in Central China
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Minsheng Gas R4 fH

Green logistics and distribution

The acquisition of Minsheng Gas terminal enabled
PYI to set foot in Central China as well as
enter the liquid bulk logistics sector.
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With a well-developed logistics distribution network, Minsheng Gas
is well-placed to serve the household, industrial and automotive sectors

in Central China.

Minsheng Gas is poised to boost its leading position in the infrastructure
and logistics facilities for LPG, oil and liquid bulk chemicals market in
Central China. It owns and operates the largest LPG terminal and

storage facilities, as well as a mature logistics network in the region.

With the opening of domestic wholesale business of oil products to
multinational corporations by the end of 2006, Minsheng Gas also
plans to expand the existing LPG terminal and storage by adding a

petroleum terminal and storage facilities as well as those for chemicals.

Prospects of LPG have been greatly enhanced by the lifting of domestic
petroleum price. Conversion from petroleum to LPG as an efficient and
clean alternative fuel for automotive consumption becomes highly

viable. PYI will focus on expanding the gas station network with a view

to increasing consumption and the ultimate capacity on the storage

facilities.

LPG distribution by Minsheng Gas

RAEABEZARALBR Central China

Minsheng LPG terminal — the largest of its kind in

Vol
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Paul Y. Engineering RIEE%

With experience, expertise and commitment for excellence, Paul Y.
Engineering is now an international engineering services group serving
Hong Kong, China and the overseas markets
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Paul Y. Engineering &2
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In pursuit of golden opportunities

Paul Y. Engineering has established a strategic business
model and synergy across its three core businesses:
management contracting, project management and facilities
management, which give it the ability to offer engineering
services catering for all market needs.
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Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (0577.HK) is an international
engineering services group with capabilities that cover the complete
property life-cycle, from concept to completion and ongoing
management. The Group, which is governed by a highly independent
board, serves a broad and distinguished client base in Hong Kong,
the Mainland, Macau and overseas. It was independently listed on the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange in early 2005.

Paul Y. Engineering adds value to its clients through an integrated
network of engineering and management solutions. Its services cover
management contracting, design and build, project management and
facilites management. Its portfolio included a wide spectrum of projects,
ranging from commercial and residential properties, public housing and
institutional facilities to highways and bridges, railways and tunnels,

port works, water and sewage treatment facilities.

The diversity of its expertise has underwritten much of its success, with
high levels of client satisfaction resulting in recurring business and many
valuable referrals. Riding on its 60 years of track record and a vast pool
of multi-disciplined professionals, it is tapping into the business
opportunities all around the world, Macau and the Mainland in particular.
It is poised to fortify its presence in the construction sector, and to

intensify its role in property development and investment in Greater

China and overseas markets.

Dedicated professional team meets
clients’ requirements
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Shaping unique urban landscape of different cities

R EEIGRAR(0577.HK) BB Lz TR
BEE - AERAE) ARFREBEYERS
HW2EHR - SEBREBINEERER - RS
BOSEIEP  ZBBMHES  JBFT - REAHIA
EHREM o (REZZENR2005F VIR E BB FTE
Ee

REREEBNAMTHENIEREESR  AEF
BE - ERBHEEREAEER Rt REE  HA
RERERS  HFEAENEL BEREREEY
¥ RHFEE  IERE - 2RAK  BR  #8KR
@ - BOIER -~ KFI R BETRME o

ZHEMNEXREN  RREZXBURINERZR
= OmBENEPMEZER —BEEAE  FRHEMR
BlEBRERE  REBHRISEIER - REEEE
BOF MU L MG M B XM EE - £EIE
RIS 2 B - Rl 2B R AERRPT N B
AT - RESEEE - SRERERZERRNM
i - WHRMERERMIENET -

-

BE DY PNERAE

Hﬂ') REEEBERAT 20074E4R

Building countless skyscrapers
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Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
FERAREE L oBE UP

Chairman

£33

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, JR,
aged 66, is the Chairman of the
Company. Dr Chow was appointed as
an independent non-executive director
of the Company in September 2004.
He is the Chairman of the Company’s
Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Compliance Committee,
a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee (alternate to Mr Chan Shu
Kin), and an independent non-executive
director of two subsidiaries of the
Company. Dr Chow is a civil and
structural engineer by profession. He
is the Chairman of the Hong Kong
Construction Workers Registration
Authority, a member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of
Shanghai and an Hon. Senior
Superintendent of the Hong Kong
Auxiliary Police Force. Dr Chow
previously served as President of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’
Registration Board, Hong Kong

Examinations and Assessment Authority,
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern
Hospital as well as the Hong Kong
Country Club. He is currently Chairman
of Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., a firm
of independent civil and structural
consulting engineers. Dr Chow is also
a non-executive director of Wheelock
Properties Limited (0049.HK), and an
independent non-executive director of
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
(0025.HK) and Build King Holdings
Limited (0240.HK).
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Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

BIBRELE

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
BIEERERALE

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 56, is the
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company. He is a member of the
Company’s Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Share
Repurchase Committee, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr Lau has over 34 years’ experience
in international corporate management
as well as merger and acquisitions.
He joined the Group in 1991 and has
been responsible for the Group’s
corporate strategy, development and
performance. Mr Lau is also the non-
executive Deputy Chairman of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (0577.HK)
and an independent non-executive
director of China National Building
Material Company Limited (3323.HK).
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Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
BREISRE +

Non-Executive Director

FHTES

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged
52, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is a member of the
Company’s Nomination Committee
(alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom).
Dr Chan holds an Honorary degree of
Doctor of Laws and a Bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering and has
over 27 years’ international corporate
management experience in the
construction and property sectors as
well as in strategic investments.

He joined the Group in 1987 and
was Chairman of the Company until

July 2005. Dr Chan is the Chairman of
ITC Corporation Limited (0372.HK)
and Hanny Holdings Limited
(0275.HK).
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Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest
SR E

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIFHTES

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest, aged 71,
joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in 1993. He is
a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Compliance
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising
solicitor, a chartered civil engineer and
a practicing arbitrator. He was a

™y

From left to right:

HAESA :

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
[ERAREIE L

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
gmRELE

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
PR R 54 18 4

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest
YL St

Mr Li Chang An

Mr Leung Po Wing,
Bowen Joseph

PELSLE
Mr Chan Shu Kin
PR AGT ER 5 A

registered structural engineer and an
authorized person (List Il) under the
Hong Kong Buildings Ordinance for
more than 29 years. Mr Kwok is a
member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, United Kingdom, a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, United Kingdom and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators.
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Board of Directors %5

Mr Chan Shu Kin

PRAGER

Independent Non-Executive Director
BYFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 52, was
appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company
in September 2004. He is the Chairman
of the Company’s Audit Committee and
Share Repurchase Committee and a
member of the Company’s Compliance
Committee and Remuneration
Committee (alternate to Mr Kwok Shiu
Keung, Ernest). Mr Chan has over 30
years’ experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management services. He
graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as well as an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting
Ho Kwan Chan, Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Wing Shing
International Holdings Limited
(0850.HK).
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Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
RELEE aBs, up

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUFHTES

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS,
JP, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of
the Company in August 2006. He is a
member of the Company’s Audit
Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Mr Leung previously served
the Hong Kong Government for over
32 years until his retirement as the
Director of the Office of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special
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Administration Region in Beijing in
November 2005. He joined the
Administrative Service in June 1973 and
rose 1o the rank of Administrative Officer
Staff Grade A1 in June 1996. During his
service in the Administrative Service, Mr
Leung had served in various policy
bureaux and departments, including
Deputy Secretary for District
Administration (later re-titled as Deputy
Secretary for Home Affairs); Deputy
Secretary for Planning, Environment and
Lands; Private Secretary, Government
House; Secretary for Planning,
Environment and Lands; and Director
of the Beijing Office. Mr Leung has
extensive experience in corporate
leadership and public administration.
During his tenure as the Director of the
Beijing Office, he had made
commendable efforts in promoting
Hong Kong on the Mainland, as well as
fostering better understanding,
establishing closer links and facilitating
exchanges in various spheres between
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

RELHE 6Bs, Jp 57H% * FA20064F8
BEZTARRBBMYIFNTES I
ABARNRBERZEERTNEZE SR



B o RS HFA2005F 11 ARIKET - BE
BRATREBEASEIEREER ( [5
R ) EE - BREEBBNE32F -
1P 197356 A INA BB BUTBUISHE R -
Wi 19964F6 A & A E AR —REF
B o MHSERRSHRE - REEDFE
BZEREBMEF - BHENEZER
B BBKA (BRAEREELR
BMER) - BFREIREMHA - BE
FFAARE - RER MR RIA KB R
MEME - RAEFETERBAEERNHKEG
THEBLEELR - REEERMEEE
B B EANEERS  RER
VSRR R B R - RN AR TR R A
2 - WM TE S E AR

Mr Li Chang An

FEREE

Independend Non-Executive Director
BYFHITES

Mr Li Chang An, aged 72, was
appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in
January 2007. Mr Li was the Vice
Secretary of Shangdong Provincial

Party Committee from 1983 to 1987.
He was further appointed as the
Governor of Shangdong Province in
June 1985. He was the Deputy
Secretary-General of the State Council
between 1987 and 1993, and was
elected an alternate member of the
Eleventh CPC Central Committee and
a member of the Twelfth CPC Central
Committee. Mr Li was the executive
vice chairman of China Poly Group
Corporation from 1993 to 2001. He
was also the chairman of the board of
China Orient Telecomm Satellite
Company, Limited from 1995 to 2003.
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Senior Management SR EIEE

Ms Yang Yan
Bzt
Senior Investment Director

BRIRERE

PY!I Corporation Limited

RELEERFRAT]

Ms Yang Yan, aged 39, joined the Group
in 20083. She is responsible for
originating and monitoring performance
of the Group's investment in Mainland
China including the Yangkou Port
project, and holds directorship in a
number of PYI subsidiaries. Ms Yang
has accumulated many years of
experience in corporate development
and general administration. She holds
a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration.
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Mr Wong Yiu Hung
EIRIELE

Group Financial Controller
SERKAE

PYI Corporation Limited

REELBBRAA

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 42, joined the
Group in 2004. He is responsible for all
financial management and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong the
Qualified Accountant of the Company
and holds directorship in various PYI
subsidiaries. He has over 20 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management in both
international accounting firms and
listed companies. Mr Wong holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Law
from Peking University. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong.
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Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
=HREEZL
Group Corporate Counsel and

Company Secretary
EEEMFRLANE
PY!I Corporation Limited
REEBEARLQT
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 41, joined
the Group in 1995. She is responsible
for all legal, regulatory and compliance
and company secretarial matters of the
Group. She holds directorship in various
PYI subsidiaries. Ms Wong is a qualified



solicitor in Hong Kong, England and

Wales. She has over 18 years’
experience in the legal profession and
had been the corporate counsel and
company secretary of several listed
companies in the past. Ms Wong holds
a Bachelor’s and Master’s degree in
Law from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Corporate
Finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a
CFA charterholder.
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Mr Hu Xiao Chun
BREEAT T

Investment Director

S E B

PYI Corporation Limited

RELBBER AR

Mr Hu Xiao Chun, aged 41, joined the
Group in 2005. He is responsible for
originating and monitoring performance
of the Group’s investment in Mainland
China. He is a director of Hubei
Minsheng LPG Ltd. Mr Hu has
accumulated more than 17 years’
experience in large-scale infrastructure
projects and in privatisation of state-
owned enterprises in China. After
graduating from China Pharmaceutical
University, he worked in multinational
corporations for more than 10 years
before joining the Group.
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From left to right:
ML=

Ms Yang Yan
Bt

Mr Wong Yiu Hung
EIRIESE S

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
BERLL

Mr Hu Xiao Chun
RABE AT S A

Mr Wei Wen Kui
BB

Mr Wang Wei Guo
F AR5 A

Mr Liu Hong Wei
BIREEE

Mr Wei Wen Kui
BB EE

Director and General Manager
BEERBLIE

Jiangsu YangKou Port Development and
Investment Co., Ltd.

LERFOBRERZEERAR

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.

TR AABRAEIRERRAR

Mr Wei Wen Kui, aged 42, joined the
Group in 2006. He is responsible for
the operations and development of the
Yangkou Port subsidiaries, and holds
directorship in these project subsidiaries.
Mr Wei has extensive experience in the
design and development of
petrochemical storage facilities, and
management of large-scale petroleum
and chemicals logistics facilities for
national and multi-national corporations
in China. In collaboration with the
relevant authorities at the national and
local levels, he has performed extensive
research on China’s oil storage and
logistics sector, particularly in the regions
of Bohai Bay, the Yangtze Delta and the
Pearl Delta. Mr Wei holds a Bachelor’s
degree from the China University of
Petroleum, majoring in petroleum and
chemical processing.
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Mr Wang Wei Guo

IHELE

Director and General Manager
EEREKE

Nantong Port Group Limited

BB EEERAR

Mr Wang Wei Guo, aged 44, joined the
Nantong Port Group in 1989. He is
responsible for the overall operations
and business development of the
Nantong Port Group. Mr Wang has
extensive experience in the
development, management and
operation of port business. He worked
for the Ministry of Communications from

1982 to 1989. He then held various
senior positions at Nantong Port
Authority, including the deputy head of
its commerce department, the executive
officer in charge of its cargo-forwarding
centre and the deputy commissioner,
and was the General Manager and
Chairman of Nantong Port (Group) Co.,
Ltd. A senior economist, Mr Wang
graduated from Nanjing College of
Communications and Hehai University.
He is also a representative of the Tenth
Session of the People’s Congress of
Jiangsu Province.
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Mr Liu Hong Wei
BREBRE
General Manager

Bk

PYI Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu) Limited

REFARFE (I#) BRAR

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

=L

TEHEERMEREERAF

Nantong Century Harbour Country Club Limited
Mimtt i BB B KB ELERER AR

Mr Liu Hong Wei, aged 37, joined the
Group in 2006. He is responsible for the
overall development and operation of
the Group’s land and property business
in association with port facilities, and is
a director of a number of PYI
subsidiaries. Mr Liu has more than 15
years of experience in project
management as well as real estate
project development and management.
He graduated from the Beijing Institute
of Technology with a Bachelor’s degree
in Engineering, majoring in
Communications Engineering.
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Mr Chan Dik Keung, William
FRINGR 4

Finance Manager

B 5 A a8

PYI Corporation Limited

REEEARAT

Mr Chan Dik Keung, William, aged 38,
joined the Group in 1993. He is
responsible for the financial
management reporting of the Group.
Mr Chan has over 14 years’ experience
in accounting and financial management
in listed companies. He holds a Master’s
degree in Applied Finance from The
University of Melbourne and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants.

PRAKGR o4 - 385K + IN1993F IIAZRE
CBEEECUBREEREEY -
PRAEER ETRR 2 Gt R ER R
EFRMI14FER - IS ERAAREY
[ERFSELEN - ABRSEHIIAE

SENRBFFEMAGEREE -

Mr Zhu Yong Ming
RIKBAEE

Financial Controller
B Es

Group Representative Office in Nantong

EEEENER

Nantong Port Group Limited

@B O REERAR

Mr Zhu Yong Ming, aged 36, joined
the Group in 2005. He is responsible
for monitoring the financial functions
of the Group’s projects in the PRC
and oversees the financial management
and accounting matters of the Nantong
Port Group. He is a director of a PYI
subsidiary in the PRC. Mr Zhu
possesses over 12 years’ experience
in investment and financial
management, corporate finance as well
as operation management. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the financial

™y

From left to right:

MLz

Mr Chan Dik Keung, William
BERAK 58 55 A4

Mr Zhu Yong Ming
R4

Mr Liu Dong
2L

Mr Wu Hao
RERLE
Ms Tsang Sau Ying

Mr Su Zhi Jun
REELA

Mr Wang Bao Guo
FREEE

controller and investment manager of
a number of multinational corporations.
He holds an MBA degree from
Thunderbird Business School in the
United States and is a PRC Certified
Accountant and a member of
International Certified Internal Auditor.

RIKBRYE A » 3675% + 20055 AR EE
E aEERASEENIERNMKE
B WEERBEOE®E Y MBEEM
BEELE A RAER —HERNE
RNAMES - RELETERE  BBE
B hEREREEEREEERI2F
KB CHEBREEMBETVSEE
RIGEKE - B ERERBER 2
TEERBLSM  APESHAIME
BREE A EpEEETAT o
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Senior Management SR EEE

Mr Liu Dong
BIRAEE

Financial Controller
i B

Jiangsu YangKou Port Development and
Investment Co., Ltd.
LT DBRERERR AT
Jiangsu YangKou Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.
TAEBRERERRAR
Mr Liu Dong, aged 35, joined the Group
in 2006. He is responsible for the
financial management and accounting
matters of the Yangkou Port
subsidiaries. Mr. Liu has more than 13
years of experience in accounting
management. He worked for a national
petrochemical group prior to joining the
Group, responsible for the financial
aspects of a number of petrochemical
development projects in both China and
overseas. After graduating from Jiangsu
University, Mr. Liu obtained his MBA
from Peking University in 2002.
BIR 54 - 355% + 12006 MAKE
H - 8BFOBEAZMERRMBE
BRNEHEY - FIAERUBEEFE
TEE13FLLER o TEIMMAREKE ZAT - fh
BERNEBELMEIEE  BEERN
INBERLERIER M ENE -
BIFEENTIBHABRRE 1% - 120025
BEIERRBTHEREL 24 -

Mr Wu Hao
REXE
Financial Controller
B R4 L
PYI Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu) Limited
REEREX (IF) BRI
Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd.
TEHEERMEREERAF
Nantong Century Harbour Country Club Limited
Mt i BB B REELERBBER AR
Mr Wu Hao, aged 32, joined the Group
in 2006. He is responsible for the
financial management and accounting
matters of the Group’s real estate
subsidiaries. Mr Wu had been the
financial controller and manager in
several Fortune 500 multinationals’
China headquarters. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Management
Information System from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics.
KEKAE - 325 - H2006F MAKE
B aEAEERFEMENERATE
EERGHES REERAZRUE
50058 75 B 1k 5 i B 42 S0 e BA A5 4 B J 4%
B R DB EREERENRR
HE BB -
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Ms Tsang Sau Ying

BEEzt

Financial Controller

BiiS MR Es

Hubei Minsheng LPG Co., Ltd.

MR AR BRIERAERAF

Ms Tsang Sau Ying, aged 38, joined
the Group in 2006. She is responsible
for the financial management and
accounting matters of Hubei Minsheng.
Ms Tsang possesses over 15 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management. She holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from The University of
Hong Kong, majoring in accounting and
finance. Ms Tsang is a fellow member
of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

BFHRLZE - 38 5%+ M20065F ARG
B AEPIERENMBERMEE
%o BRERNER - Rt RMBEERT
ETEBSF R - I ARAARNEZT
RHEBRB LB - TEFHRUK - B
LI RBHARREMAGERGE -

NREEGMASEE -



Mr Su Zhi Jun

General Manager
pEbcs i

Yangtze Feeder Port Limited
R=ARNTEBRAR

Mr Su Zhi Jun, aged 36, joined the
Group in 2006. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s investments in
feeder ports in the Yangtze River region
as well as their operation and
management. Mr Su has more than 10
years of investment, operation and
management experience in
infrastructure projects. He worked for
a state-owned shipping and logistics
enterprise prior to joining the Group. Mr
Su graduated from the Faculty of
Navigation, Dalian Maritime University.
SEEESLL - 365 © M2006F IAARE
H FE2EeEEEEEARILREZA
ABTEERIN AR A U RZEIER 2 K%
HERTE - BELAERE KERE
BAEIEE FEES10F445 - FEMA
REEF -t ZEBEEMERDAR
Al e BAEEEENREBEREL G
Zo

Mr Wang Bao Guo
TREIEE

Director, Internal Audit of Nantong Region
FEBERDET A

Group Representative Office in Nantang
EEFANEER

Mr Wang Bao Guo, aged 56, joined the
Group in 2004. He is responsible for
monitoring the internal control functions
and oversees the internal audit matters
of the Group’s projects in Nantong. Mr
Wang has over 23 years of experience
in finance, medicine, investment and
financial advisory. He graduated from
Shanxi University of Finance and
Economics with a Bachelor’s degree in
Finance.

FREIKAE - 565% © FR2004F IIAZRE
E - ARERAEERBENERDR
FEERRMOREDZEEIIE - REBEH
ZERRNPESNOIE - TEERSD
B BREE . A RS mIEE23
FEB BELAMKKREZEZ SRS

T8 -
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Corporate Governance Report {tE£E4HE

Corporate Governance Practices

Corporate governance is a continuous process which calls for dedicated
efforts and timely response to evolving changes and developments
in regulations and practices. Setting it as a priority, PYI Corporation
Limited (“PY!I” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is committed to developing and upholding a high standard
of corporate governance practices and business ethics appropriate
to its growth, in the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining
and promoting investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’

values.

PY! has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the

“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

TEEBELAR—EFENRRE  F2RATWOE L
BEHEBERMNE R E R e L R RE - &
FEEARRT ( [RE] 3 [ARF] - EREK
BARE - [AKE] ) SEEERNEEL IR
BERMRFECEERASNSFELRE AT RM
B - BPIRE  BREARREBMEERES
EO AR B AIEBRFIZEE R

BE200753AMELEE RE-BEBEBLET
(BEBMERSABRAR ( [BRP] ) &5
HMAD (T CEMRAD 1) MEE+Ohe (eEE
awRTRD (I KPR 1) ZRRIRFrE M &

X o

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March 2007 .

Set out below are the corporate governance principles and practices

adopted by the Group:

Key Principles / Provisions /
Met?

=REMNE?

Practices in the Code
(PRI AZEZRA /X [ &R

AEEMMFRANEEREARAMERETIT

How PYI Adopted ?
REEQIATER A 2

Shareholders &%
Communication j&i#

e Maintain on-going and effective 4
communication with
shareholders

REFERRFERBRER

>

The Board endeavours to maintain transparent communication
with all shareholders so as to enable them to make informed
decision on matters relating to their investment and the exercise
of their rights as shareholders in PYI.
EERRTRERRRASEREELRAERE - ARITHEEE
RICREVEER] - B ERAA IR AR B E R o

PYI has established and maintained different communication
channels with its shareholders through the publication of annual
and interim reports, press announcements as well as news
releases to provide extensive information on the Group’s
activities, business strategies and developments. Such
information is also available on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com.
REFAHEFE  PHSRE  AMULHER - BEREEYR
HFETR 2 BARE - UREASEES) - EBRBEMERNE
B MIREERD FABYE —www.pyicorp.com B Bt E &
# o
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PRI AZEZRA /R ER

® Use general meetings for
communication and encourage
shareholders’ participation
FERE A E AR EE A R s E M
(R0

How PYI Adopted ?
REMAERF ?

> PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for
shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board.
REREBRRAGRBRRAEEHRHEZZRIAERN—EE
BEG

> All directors and senior management will make an effort to attend
shareholders’ meetings and address queries from shareholders.
MENEENSRERBERERTTLERRAS - AEERR
B °

> To enhance shareholders’ understanding of PYI’s business and
latest business initiatives, since 2005 an “Address by Managing
Director” session has been included in the AGM in addition to
standard meeting agenda. This session is led by the Chairman
and presented by Managing Director.
RINSR PR B IR EE BV 675 R ST S5 1551818 AR - 52005 F
i BPERRBFERASHN —REFIHIZUIN  MA—EHEE
TH - WHEBFAKEE B AR [EFELRRE ] B’E -

Rights 7

® Procedure for voting by poll
RIREFAFRRNEF

> Shareholders have the right to participate in and vote at general
meetings in accordance with PYI’s bye-laws and the applicable
laws of Bermuda.
REREEZ2HERRAET  WERREENQ AL RERENER
FREG KRR

> To enhance transparency of meeting procedures, since 2006,
voting on resolutions put forward at all PYI's general meetings
(including the AGM held on 8 September 2006 (“2006 AGM”))
has been conducted by way of poll. All poll results will be
published and posted on the website of PYl and of the Stock
Exchange.
RTIAgRETANNERE - 52006 FiE - (RERMERR
REg (BFER2006549H8HBITHRRBF AT ( [2006F AR
BERE] ) ) WRBERGEBERENFTARR  RENERITE
TEZR A B ARk A 22 P I -
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?
(R AZEBRA/F/ER  REE/FE? RENEAHRA?

Rights #

> The items resolved at the 2006 AGM are summarized below:
E2006 F R RBF AR EZRMBIERENT ¢

% of Votes Cast For

B REHEE=R

v Approval of the 2006 audited accounts 100%
BiB2006F MR EZIRE

v Approval of the 2006 final dividend 100%

of HK1.5 cents each
BiB2006F EHEAR1 5B LIRS

V' Re-election of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, 100%
Charles, Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest and
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
as directors (by separate resolutions)
EERERE L - DREE RERELER
B2 (ABRARRMNFAET)

v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate 100%
amount of not exceeding HK$3,000,000
per annum for all directors
HBRGTEEEE2FHEBITHA
B00EBETNERHSE

v Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche 100%
Tohmatsu as auditors
BEZEEY « BERS ST AZEED

v Grant of general mandates to directors to 100%
issue additional shares and repurchase
shares (by separate resolutions)
BTEFETROBRERDN —MRIXE

(ATBIRFRZR A THETT)

v Refreshing the 10% limit on grant of 100%
options under PYI's share option scheme
BRI RIBREREAREGT S H S A 2
10%PR &R

v Approval of the refreshment of the 100%
10% limit on grant of options under
the share option scheme of Paul .
Engineering Group Limited
HEEFRBREZESEFRAA
B AR RERT B T R ke 2 10%PR 28
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?
(R AZEBRA/F/ER EEE/FE? RENEAHRA?

Board of Directors ££/5
Role and Responsibilities & &S

® Responsibility for leadership and v > The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
control shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
BAEBBENERE(T effective and responsible leadership and control of the Company,

and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs in pursuit

of the Group’s strategic objectives.

G EEBNIBACRARRMRART, RENS - EEREE

RRMEREREH BT ERRAEINEERERANT Y B - ARSAREE
KRR EZBAZEEE R BIRER o

e Responsibility for directing and
supervising affairs

® Formalise functions reserved to v > The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors group-
the board and those delegated wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance of the
to the management Group and supervises the management.
MERIAREZT SN THBENE EEZREETFHEET - HEMEE EEEEARIEMBUR - 7
BB TR HEBRRE  UARERERETE-

> The Board oversees specific areas affecting the interests of
all shareholders including financial reporting and control, equity
fund raising, recommendation/declaration of dividend or other
distributions, notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules
and capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the
capital structure of the Group.

EXRERVEMBERREANARSEE  SRMEHRME

7 BAREE  RESREMDRNEZXER - (EHRAD A
BHAT ARG » IREAEESEEE RSB EMEAR

> The management, on the other hand, is responsible for the
management and administrative functions and the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the Managing
Director.
S—HH - ERETEFACEEET  BAEEMTHRES
BE - URBAIAEBHATEEENHS -
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?

(A AZEZFRA/FX/ER  REEHE? REWFRA?

Composition 4 A,

® Strong independent element v > PYI has an independently governed Board consisting of a
BB AHBY TR majority of independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) as
. follows:
¢ Independent non-executive REBUEANESBASA MBLFRTEEAN - £ED
directors representing at least :

one-third of the board

By TEEREESeRE Members of the Board Position

ABEL=5H— BEERKE 528
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ~ Chairman
FERRREE L (Independent Non-Executive
Director)

TiE CBFTES)

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Deputy Chairman and
Bl=REEE Managing Director

BT RRESALE

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Non-Executive Director

FREdS& 18 1+ FERTES

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest Independent Non-Executive Director

AR E BYUIFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin Independent Non-Executive Director

BRIGIER SR A4 BUIFTES

Mr Leung Po Wing, Independent Non-Executive Director
Bowen Joseph BIEMITES

Mr Li Chang An Independent Non-Executive Director

> Biographical details of the above directors are set out on pages
46 to 49 of this annual report and are also available on PYI's
website: www.pyicorp.com.
B MEENENFERN RN ERAFEI6E498 - BEHAER
INE B R ZE Rl —www.pyicorp.com ©

> The majority composition of INEDs (including one who has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, as required by the Listing
Rules) ensures that the Board’s actions account for the interests
of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in a
balanced and objective manner.
HEBEVIFNTES (BE—RAGEENEEER  HENH

CEMRAD TEXREFHEEEN SRR BERERNE

) ERRZHKE - FIREFRNITRAEKRAERENT
@ WA AP EEEMERAEES
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PRI AZEZRA /R BR

Key Leadership %88

Y [V

=RE/MFE?

How PYI Adopted ?
REEQIAIERF 2

e (Clear division of Chairman and v > The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director of PYI
CEO are distinctly segregated and their roles in PYI are clearly
TREEITRAARNEED T established and set out in writing.

e Clear establishment of two roles REFFREFACENBLERBRY - ERENAETT
: " BERAEWASESEH -
in writing
MEBEAERBEERTE Chairman Managing Director

EE EEAEKE
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
JElRREIE L Z=mREE
v To provide leadershiptothe | ¥ To lead the management
Board REER
HEZRIEEGIER v Formulating operational
v Responsible for overseeing strategies and policies, as
the functioning of the Board well as managing the
BRERSFRITEBREN Group’s day-to-day
=T operations
7 A B R B LA
BB A FEE
Independence of Directors 2 =& 14
e Meet guidelines on v > Each INED has confirmed his independence with the Stock

independence in rule 3.13
RN E3AMEH B MR
5l

Exchange upon his appointment pursuant to the Listing Rules.

BRBIFMTESEZERE Y

PR PAREREL BN -

> The Nomination Committee made an annual assessment on
the independence of all INEDs based on their annual
confirmation of independence declared pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and confirmed that each of these directors
was able to meet the guidelines as set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and continued to be independent.

REZBEEREMBELIFNTEFER (LMRA) $£3.13

1I%F)’TTE'
RE—BELIFNTESNE
3l fDEBLAL -

2 2 FEBTIRRE

PR BL TR AR - R
CEMARAI SE3.131kPTE AR

Each of the Board members is totally unrelated to each other

and with the senior management in every aspect including

financial, business, or family.

EERE-EKERILZENARESRERABZH - TwEM

7 ESE SRS

™y
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met?

(PR AZEZFRA/ X/ BR = REERE?

How PYI Adopted ?
REMAERF ?

Responsibilities of Directors Z % & T

e |nduction program for new 4
directors

BMREESREMERIGE

>

There were two new directors, namely Mr Leung Po Wing,
Bowen Joseph and Mr Li Chang An, appointed to the Board
during the year. Each of them had met with other fellow
directors and received a comprehensive and tailored induction
to ensure full awareness of responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements and the business and governance policies of
the Group.

FR - RERAERFEREERRTEAETER - WfIEELR
PRERHME=EE  WES—(E2H « EXREAEMRAE
B R AITE R ABEER M EEE - (EMmRAD &
HMEERE  ARAEERNEBMEABER NHBE -

e Compliance with Mode Code set 4
out in Appendix 10

ErHtER TR (RESTAD

PYI has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing
in the securities of PYI by the directors and relevant employees
of the Group.
RECLKA (EMRAD Mg+ r ( EMARESETES
RFESFRD ([ CRESFRD | ) (ERASEEEMEM
REEEBREZFRMEET 2 -
According to the specific enquiry made by PY], all directors
of PYI have confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year under
review.
RIFRENEBEN  2RAREEFIRAERNFE—EFEST
CGRESFRI) DS 2 FIRIRLE

e Update directors with the latest v
developments in the regulatory
environment and the market
MEFEREIMTEEERER
TSR ERIEN

Important updates are provided to all directors when necessary
to ensure that they are fully aware of any changes in the
business and regulatory environment in places where the
Group conducts its business.

EERER  IEESHQENEEEHNEM - ERMFIAILA
T AR EE BRI R R ERRBEM B -

® Directors’ liability insurance v
arrangement

SR ERROTH

>

The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance which commensurates with the Group’s
business operations and assessed exposures.
RRRIEREREBEER R EORER - RREBOVRSES
MERBE B ERR
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PR AZEZRA /R ER

Appointments and Re-election of Directors 2= & & (T B & 3%

Met?
EREHE?

How PYI Adopted ?
REEQIATER A 2

e Non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election
FHTESENLZEERIEET

HY - W/EBEX EATESR

v

>

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
three years and subject to the retirement requirements under
PYI’s bye-laws.

FMTERZIHEERR=F - WEERBREQAMAIFRER
= o

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, who retired by rotation at the
2006 AGM in accordance with PYI’s bye-laws, was re-elected
for a fixed term of approximately three years until the conclusion
of the AGM to be held in 2009.

FREYR1E T RRIRE R RIARRI - 2006 5F IR AF A FiRE
RIEWESE  FHHN=F  EE2009FRRBAFRGERR
=

e All directors appointed to fill
casual vacancies should be
subject to election at first general
meeting after their appointment
PR RIETHER R 22 R M A R
ERREEXZERNERARE
Rg HERER

New directors are appointed by the Board following
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. They will hold
office only until the first general meeting of PYI after their
appointment but are eligible for re-election at that meeting.
MEFAKIREREZESHER  AEFREM - MEEFHE
HEeEZMMEERNERRERRAS R @ HEMMEER
ERANG FEREE -

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph, who was appointed by
the Board on 1 August 2006, was re-elected by shareholders
at the 2006 AGM for a fixed term of approximately three years
until the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2009.
RBEEEEN20065F8 A1 HEEEREME - 2006 FRFEF
Ae TERFREERES - AHA=F - EE2009FKRFBF
REERRBILE ©

e Every director should be subject

to rotation at least once every
three years

REEE=VE=FARERME

—K

v

>

PYI's bye-laws stipulate, inter alia, that every director is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. All
retiring Directors, being eligible, may stand for re-election at
the general meeting at which they retire.

RELQRME (KH) FIANEBLNESAZ P B=FhERE—
R FEREESHFEERENREAS FEEEE -

In addition to Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Mr Kwok Shiu
Keung, Ernest also retired by rotation at the 2006 AGM in
accordance with PYI's bye-laws and was re-elected for a fixed
term of approximately three years until the conclusion of the
AGM to be held in 2009.

MRERE R IE L IASN - 2o 5e 4 IMKRIRE A RIARAI - £2006
FREBFREG FimFREWESEE - FHO=5F - EX2009
FRRBFRSHERBIE ©

REEEHRAF 200744
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Key Principles / Provisions /

Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?

(A AZEZFRA/FX/ER RREFE?  REWFRA?

Meetings &%

® Regular meetings 4 > The Board meets regularly according to meeting schedules
TFEHe3 of each year normally sent to all members before start of the
year.

E=RER-REFN —FRENETERESNEFISRER
EHRE -

e Minimum of four times a year 4 > The Company convened twelve Board meetings during the
FERDIUR year ended 31 March 2007, including seven regular board

meetings to conduct the following principal activities:

v

AN N I N

AN

v

Review of operation performance and approval of budget
Approval of interim results

Approval of final results

Review of corporate development strategy

Report and presentation of operations and business
development strategies from key business units

Update on internal control measures
Field trip to review the Group’s investments in Nantong
and Hangzhou

HE2007F3ABMBLEFE  ARRABHAT T2 AEERE

=3
%

v

A N U N N N

CBREAEHEEREH  WETTIIERES
EHERBRANEMEE

B HIRE

EPE NS

2 [ 5 [ 2 JR SR R
FEERE2IA B A RE SRR B & R RS
BB E IR AR

B ZREEERBINNKRERE

> Five additional Board meetings were held to discuss and
consider significant transactions, including key acquisitions,
connected transaction and distribution of special dividend.
BINBIT  AREERERE  UHBERERSEEARS - 85
FEWE  BFEXZRDIEFRIRE
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Key Principles / Provisions /

Practices in the Code How PYI Adopted ?
(FEIY RZEZRE /R ER ¥ 7  REW@MERA?
e Quarterly intervals v No. of meetings
p . BEHNE
HEFE—R

2
1‘.L
0

1 2 3

4 Quarter
ESE
B Regular meetings held B Additional meetings held
EHRTzEE BINBITZ B
e Active participation by majority v > The attendance record of each member of the Board is set

directors out below:

REBHEEEHLE AT REERENKEHHFEEH
Directors Meetings Attended / Held
55 HE / BIERRE
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 12/12
JEIEARETE £
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 12/12
ZEmRELE
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles 5/12
BRETSR S 1
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 12/12
I Ot
Mr Chan Shu Kin 11/12
PRIGIER S5 4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph " 8/8
REE G
Mr Li Chang An* 2/2
ZERELET
" Mr Leung was appointed INED on 1 August 2006.

RS ER2006F8 A1 B EZRERBIEMITES -
*  Mr Li was appointed INED on 8 January 2007.
FHEAER2007F1 A8 B EEERBUIFRNTES -
® Minimum notice of 14 days v > Directors normally receive at least 14 days’ written notice/

=148 BAE reminder prior to regular meetings.
EEREFEED4RIKEIEHERNE@BA 12T
> For other Board mestings, directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
EREMERREE  RAIBESEAITHBEATERMAGE
o
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met?

(A AZEZRA/ X/ BR = REERHE?

How PYI Adopted ?
REMAERF ?

® Setting agenda arrangement v
HEBIZ B

> The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the
agenda of Board meetings.
REMEBDERFIEEERGHAIE

> Each Board member may submit proposals for inclusion in
the agenda for consideration during meetings. Procedures are
in place for all directors to have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary.
BUBERKXEFTREZHFERZE  HEFRESZFIEL
NERE @ EFFHGEEREFAQRWERRE RFME KR -

® Keeping minutes v
BEE#DG

> Minutes of Board/committees meetings will be recorded in
sufficient details, kept by the Company Secretary and distributed
to each director within a reasonable period.
EER/ZEERRLHAARNBEHARERETF  WES
BRI AN BAEAES ©

® Supply & access to information v

B R ER

® Seeking advice

==
TR E

> All members of the Board are given full and timely access to
relevant information and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary, in accordance
with pre-approved procedures.
2REZ/XEAEEKFEEGHBEER - BEEXNERTIZRE
ERRF  SXBUEEER  BRABAQRENM -

® Disclosures of Interests v
AR A3

> Each director has made disclosure of his interests or potential
conflict of interests, if any, in the proposed transactions or
issues discussed by the Board at the Board meetings (and
abstained from voting on the relevant resolution as appropriate)
as well as notified changes in personal particulars to the
Company in a timely manner.
SLESHCAEERSRBERHUBHEN - BRLSRNE
AEmRIEENNRER (MEAEE L NHERRRENE
FORKE) - WEERRMARRBREAERFENES -
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met?

(A AZEZFRA/ X/ BR = REERE?

Board Committees E=FE L8

How PYI Adopted ?
REEMAERF ?

® Specific written terms of v
reference

EHANRERERE

> The Board has established five committees to deal with key

aspects of the Company’s affairs:

v Audit Committee (established on 11 December 1998)
Remuneration Committee (established on 1 April 2005)
Nomination Committee (established on 8 November 2005)
Compliance Committee (established on 8 November 2005)

Share Repurchase Committee (established on 8 November
2005)

EEZREXRVAFEZES  NEBARRSHNEZEHE -
BZZE® (KM1998F12H11H)
FXIZH2005F4 518 )
FX3ZHA20054F11 581 )
VA
(

R X S~

PR

FXAZ 72005411 A8H )

BRiEEZEEE (FKIZ7200561188H)
The written terms of reference of each Board committee
covering its specific role, authority and function are available
on PYI's website.
REBUHEREGEEERETZESAC  EREBENE
EREEE -

4 =
v )
v RE%ZEE
v &
v

® Provision of board committees v
with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties
HEEERETNEZEGREE
TRIABITEHRE

To discharge its dedicated function, each of the Board
committees is provided with sufficient resources, including
retention of outside advisers to provide professional advice
as required at the cost of PYI.

REGEESRE TEE SR BITEEMNRE  RERMTE
BRTEEES  UHEARER  FENEERERHEXER -

il gzsmsman coorEm
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PR mzEZFRA /R BR

How PYI Adopted ?
REEQIATER A 2

Remuneration of Directors == B
Remuneration Committee ¥ MZEE<

® (Clear authority and duties v
BREERERR MR

® Majority of members of v
independent non-executive
directors

REDKERBILIFNTES

Role and Function

AR

> Review the remuneration policy of the Company

FHE R R B FTENBOR

> Make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure

for all remuneration of directors and senior management and
on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing a policy on such remuneration

M EFERRETEENTMNBCREGRE - RAFIEZEME
BERRE—EERMASHENRER  MEFHIELERR

> Determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive

>

Composition

AR

>

directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment

AREMBRTESMEREEENEESTH - 2iEEeE -

RASENLREESE (BEARERSKIEEREEEME
B EAIEES)

Make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive directors

MEERERIFATESOFN

Meetings Attended / Held
HE I BTERRE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph (Chairman)
FmRkEE L (£/F)

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

I Ot

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph "
REES A

Executive Director

HITES

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

gmREE

A

5/5

5/5

3/3

5/5

Mr Leung was appointed member of the Remuneration Committee on
1 August 2006.

RIFELENR20065F8 A1 AEZERFHMEZEGKE -
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PRI AZEZRA /R BB

Met?
EREHE?

® Disclosure of information relating

to directors’ remuneration policy

BEREEMEBERMW AR R S
>
>

How PYI Adopted ?
REEMAERF ?

Remuneration Policy

FrEABUCR

The emoluments of directors are determined with reference
to factors including:

v/ salaries paid by comparable companies

v time commitment

v duties and responsibilities

v/ employment conditions elsewhere
EENFM2EZERREE - 85

v BRARMZN2HEKTE

vV PRI A ZFRHE

v RBISHESE

v EfthihT 2 EIEGE

A performance-based element is considered instrumental in

aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group

and will be built into top-management compensation.

RERETE R R EIE (A AN s B R B R s B ERE T AR B E R

R - e — S e ERSBER BT o

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an

integral part of the Group’s remuneration policy and the basis

of future awards to employees. Key aspects of such reward

strategy include:

v 1o attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive

v to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will be equity-based

v equity-based reward will be considered in the light of an
employee’s level of responsibility and influence on the
Group’s performance and share price

v PYI will effectively deploy the appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option
scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan

REDFANE BT RE RIS - 1EAR B HBHBUER B 260 &

HigREREMELE - LERERKNEZHEEIE

v EXRFMRERNEETSHEFE - RS RiEB AL

SR AT HA R REAVAR RO IR BEE - EERA B RRAK—5

IBREE BB UARR (D AR AT - # R B BRARER A48 5 AH 240

EERENEFREREHEEXEERENTEIZE -

Z R ARRMG RER N ZE

REKEE KA RO ARG ARG RER ) RE RS -

IR E] - IR RN B R R E R

RS~

AN

il gzsmsman coorEm
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PR RzEZRA /R I ER

How PYI Adopted ?
REMAERF ?

Summary of Work Performed
ITERE

> The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the
period for the following purposes:
v
v

v

v

receive update on PYI incentive schemes

approving 2006 salary review for PYI| executives and
employees (including senior management but excluding
the Managing Director)

consider the setting up of key performance indicators, in
particular, for senior executives, to implement a self-
propelled/managed reward system

approve and recommend to the Board the reward strategy
proposed by PricewaterhouseCoopers as an integral part
of the Group’s remuneration policy

review and approve the remuneration package for the
Managing Director

confirm and set out the detailed mechanism and basis of
calculations for the variable bonus portion and share-based
portion comprising the remuneration package of the
Managing Director

recommend the amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’
approval at the 2006 AGM

recommend the grant of 13,800,000 share options to
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

propose the grant of 16,800,000 share options to directors
and employees

%MiﬂaﬁTTLEmE$¢V”ﬁT£/ g%

4
v

AN

HERERE NG
M&%ﬁﬁﬂAﬁ&@ﬁ(&%%ﬁ%ﬁ@@$@%§$@
ZIB) 20065 Frfe s

ZRHITBERESEE (CERSRITHBABNERIE
1Z) - AE B BRI/ B R
HERMESERBEBRE SR KEEHRZ RERKIEREE R
BBCRA N E B

Hi R EE F R IR BT £

HEE W HITAKE F BB H B AT EEALB D MR D
B ED D 2 s A i SR ST B
EZESWEEE - HITRE2006FRRAF RS LiE
BT E 3RS S AKTRHERZ 13,800,00017 BE AR

S IE116,800,0007 B E T EE MEE
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PRI mzEZRA /R BR

Nomination of Directors £51E8%
Nomination Committee IRZZE&

Met?
=REfFE?

® Clear authority and duties (4
BREEEIR MR
® Majority of members of (4

independent non-executive
directors

KPR E BB IEITES

How PYI Adopted ?
REEQIATER A 2

Role and Function

AR
>

Lead the process for Board appointments
BB EZRNEGEF

|dentify and nominate for the approval of the Board candidates
for appointment to the Board

MeRRRESREAMESBIESRE

Assess the independence of INEDs

FHZE IETE F B

Make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Managing Director
MEFHRHEEEZENENEE  URES (LHEEFHR
ERAKIR) EERTEIEMNER

Composition Meetings Attended / Held

AR HE | BITERRE

>

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph (Chairman) 2/2
FRRREE L (£/F)

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 2/2
I Ot

Mr Chan Shu Kin
(Alternate to Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest)
BRIGIER e (BEDREE)
Executive Director
HITES
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2/2
ZmREE
Non-Executive Director
FEHITES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

(Alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom)
PRElSE Sk (BEEIRREE)

Fl

WIC) REEHERAT 200745
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?

(PRI RZEZRE /R ER 2RO/HE?  REWNMERMA?
e Formal appointment procedure Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria
FREFERS RERF  BEAKREL

> The process for the Board appointments in PY! is principally
led by the Nomination Committee.

REESREMHKST  TRHERZEERE -

Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes

REZBENEMREREBRNESHIRLES

Nomination Committee identifies individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members
REZERNCARSBARTETEEOA

Nomination Committee selects, or makes recommendations to
the Board on the selection of persons nominated for directorships

REZEENESHRANMEBABATLEES

The Board makes formal invitation to person selected
for appointment to the Board

ERRAEEATEHRETESNENEBX

Summary of Work Performed
THERE

> The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
period for the following purposes:

v/ recommend to the Board for the appointment of Mr Leung
Po Wing, Bowen Joseph as INED, having assessed his
independence

v/ nominate retiring directors for re-election by shareholders
at 2006 AGM

v review and assess individual INEDs’ annual confirmation
of independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules

v/ recommend to the Board for the appointment of Mr Li
Chang An as INED, having assessed his independence

REZEERT MLENERNFELARTRASE

v NEEREBEARBREERBIUINTES  WHAE
SRR BT

v REBREZEZA2006FRFAFAE LERET

v ERRTREIERITESRRR (ETRAI $3.131&H
7 FEIBI IR

vV NEEREBEEFEREERBINTES  WHAE
SRR BT
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?

(PR RZEZ2RA /G /ER  REEHFE? RENMTHRA?

Accountability 5 E4% &
Audit Committee %% 8

8

® Clear authority and duties (4 Role and Function
BRI KB I A BRI

> Appoint external auditors
ZEINEIZEED

> Review the Group’s financial information
EH LB ER

> Oversee the Group’s reporting system and internal control
procedures
BLE & BRI M A BP B AR Fr

> Review the interim and final results of the Group prior to
recommending them to the Board for approval
ERRGEZRIE 2 TSP BMFRES

> Meet regularly to review financial reporting and internal control

matters and to this end has unrestricted access to both the
Company’s external and internal auditors

ERFREEMAMBRBNAMEEEE - RULANEESENR
o BRAN X RISNIS e P B A SRR ER 1S B B2

® Majority of members of v Composition Meetings Attendei /iHeId
5 /= AN Ny
independent non-executive AR BT EENE
directors > Independent Non-Executive Directors
AP E BB IERITES BYFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin* (Chairman) 7/7
PRATER 5o A* (EfE)
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph /7
JEIERRE S £
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 7/7
ghboa e d
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph * 6/6
RELE S

*

Mr Chan is a CPA with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services.
BRAEER R —BAR SR - B B RWBERREG T EESY

=
EARER o

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph was appointed member of the Audit
Committee on 1 August 2006.

2 ER2006F8 A1 HEZ(EABEZEZEGKE -
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PR RzEZRA /R 1 ER

Met?
EREHE?

How PYI Adopted ?
REEMAERF ?

Summary of Work Performed

TERR

> The Audit Committee reviewed, considered and approved the
following matters in seven meetings held during the year:

v/ unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and
audited annual consolidated financial statements of the
Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval

v the terms of engagement and remuneration of external
auditors

v connected transactions of the Group

v appointment of independent consultant in connection with
the high-level review of the Group’s internal control system

v presentation of COSO Internal Control Framework
Diagnostic Review by independent consultant

v results on risk assessment workshop presented by
independent consultant

v internal control and risk management measures

ERZEEEFAMBITHNCRGRTESRN - 28 - #UENUT

15 :

v SEREEZNS GRS P BRRINSEZNFERS %

HE o WEEREEREA

SNIB A BAM 8O B R GRR B B

SENREERS

IEB BERETEARERNMEZERZR = ERER

&\ EER 2= 2 COSOMIFIESR 2 B 1t 25 52

B ERZEE R A SER

v AEREREE KR bR B IR

SR N XX

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidation Financial Statements E S 4474 MERENOE T

® Directors’ responsibility for
preparing the accounts

ESNmRERERE

v

> The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and of
ensuring that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable standards.
EXMR AR ERHANEBGSMBEHE - WRRERGIARE
iRE IR AR R R E AR A& A 2R o

® Auditors’ reporting responsibility
in the auditors’ report
ZEENEZ BN R SRR R RE
£

> The statement of the Company’s auditors concerning their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 104 and 105 of this annual report.
REEVRAEEAR S MR RE AL RRETHER - 33
RAFIRFE104 K105 B B R BN REH o
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PRI AZEZRA /R E

Internal Control RZLESH%E

How PYI Adopted ?
REEMAERF ?

® At least annually conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control
covering all material controls,
including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk
management functions
XD EERN RN R L
RIS - BREPTA EE R BT
i - BIEMISERE « EIEEE
REREE R REREIR L

>

>

>

The Group has developed its system of internal control by
reference to the definition and framework of the Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the
United States in 1992.

REBEE2E XN G E 8 @ 1992F fH il 2 AELE
EREER - GIEEANEPEIERL °

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to establish,
maintain, and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal control to ensure that shareholders’ investment and
PYI's assets are safeguarded.

EEREREH AT ELERRNRE S R RN T
£ - MRIERERIRE RREEENL R °

Management is charged with the responsibility to design and
implement the internal control system of the Group to achieve
the following business objectives:

v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v Reliability of financial reporting

v/ Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
BIEEARFR RATASENRIEZE RS - LUEBUT T
BiZ:

v ERRRERENEE

v ASRER I B

v ESTERER

Such system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and that it
aims to provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute,
assurance in this respect.

LR EEERMIEEMREBER B IRRR R - Bt - R
SERRE (S EMIEBE RS

The Audit Committee performs review of the effectiveness of
Group’s system of internal control and reports to the Board
regularly. This review covers material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
systems.

EZ B e HHASERNREE Rz AR ELH R L ME
ERER o WRFIREEENEEEE - BIEMGERE  EEE
7 SREEAREREIRIEE

Hﬂ') REEBARAT 20074E3R
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met?

(A AZEZRA/ X/ BR = REERHE?

How PYI Adopted ?
REMAERF ?

>

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2007, the Board is
satisfied as to the overall effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group’s system of internal control.
EHZE2007FIAMNBILFE - EFRENAEBAEZRSR
AR RO IERTME ©

Steps are in place to enhance the Group’s system of internal
control so as to support the Group’s further growth.

BB ESEHGIE T SR Nse AN R Er NS - UWEA
AIARKAYIER ©

® The process applied for v
identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks
faced
R FHEREBEZEERHMNER
[\ B2 P ERER B0 2

In November 2006, senior management of the Group, assisted
by external consultant, conducted a formal risk assessment
to identify the key risks at group level and to ensure appropriate
risk management measures are in place.
REBSREEEN2006511 8 « FE/NERERIE BN T » #1T
T—RERRFHER TIE - ARER S B B A B8 A b N =t B
YR B2 B IR FE B ©

The identified key risks have been evaluated and action plans
are developed and implemented to mitigate those risks.
FHEmRNARER - EREESIERRERMELLERRNTTE
el

The group is in the process of finalizing a group-wide risk
assessment methodology and a Group Risk Assessment
Guideline is under development.

NG E I EE I E BB RAE R J7 0% » [R5 B 0 R B Ak -1
TMEREER ©

In the coming year, business units will perform risk assessment
using the Group Risk Assessment Guideline.
HARARKR T —FEEASENRRTEFMAETERRE
T B R AT A ©
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PR AZEZERA/

X I ER

e Additional information to assist
understanding of the issuer’s risk
management process and
system of internal control
BT RRABREEREF RANEE
ERGHRRINE R

Met?

REEBEHFE?

v

How PYI Adopted ?
REEMAERF ?

>

During the year ended 31 March 2007, external consultant
has been engaged to perform internal control system review
and development (such as the development of standard
operating procedures and human resources management
system) for some the Group’s major investments in mainland
China. Some of these systems have been set up and procedures
were rolled-out.

REZE2007F3A31 B IEFE - HFID REEINRER - SEMHAR
SEERBEAENERIRE BTN RGEH R EEN T
1 (I EIER LR  BFARANEREBZR) & T
AR FIE KRR -

A roadmap of internal control and risk management of the
Group covering the period up to the year ended March 2008
has also been developed and reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee.
EZE20084F 3 A I FE R A BB Ea e K T
WS B ZER EGIELER -

AR B LR HIE

Process that has applied in
reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control

TR N RREEIE R ARV IE

During the year ended March 2007, Control Self Assessment
Questionnaires together with reports provided by external
consultant in various internal control review assignments have
formed the basis for the Audit Committee in evaluating the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.
REE2007F3AILFE - Bl (REHET — BITREMS) &
[FSNERAR B AR B R SIS TR RS - REREZE SR
BT aHME AN B A EL IR RS B AR o

An external consultant was engaged to benchmark the system
of internal control to the COSO Internal Control Framework
and identify improvement opportunities

BN R R A AR B ) A EB R AR ZR HE T TEECOSO I HB BR 1 E 2R Y
Z BT HERBCER S

Remediation action to rectify the gaps and control weaknesses
identified in these assessments and reviews were developed
and implemented.

HIME RS ER T L R EH P R =R R EEssH - IE R
ERTHERR -

REEEHRAF 200744

> 77



Corporate Governance Report ¥ &E48 %

Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code

(PR mzEERA/

Met?
RREHE?

X ER

How PYI Adopted ?
REMAERF ?

e Annual review the need for an (4
internal audit function
BERFISR AT ZET N H
£

e Disclose the meaningful v
information

BEEEENEA

> Management is aware of the need of setting up an internal

audit function within the Group and is in the process of setting
up an in-house internal audit function. External consultants
have been engaged to perform internal audit co-sourcing
services for the Group.

ERER#HIARASENE A  BERHERERNE
EETIAE R - BB SNREER - Z%K%@kﬁiﬂéﬁ%#ﬂﬁi%

Way Forward
ER:R

> As a continuous process on improving the Group’s system of

internal control, several initiatives are being undertaken or

under consideration, in particular:

v develop in-house internal audit function to assist the Audit
Committee in overseeing the effectiveness and the efficiency
of the internal control system

v develop of the Enterprise Risk Management framework to
facilitate the management of the wider range of risks across
the Company and its subsidiaries

v conduct risk assessment at business units to ensure major
risks are identified and managed appropriately

v use “management by exceptions” approach to improve
our management reporting system. Key performance
indicators will be developed and used more extensively in
the reporting system

v further enhance of internal communication through system
automation and extension of the use of the Group’s
executive information system

BHMAT T ETEREENABEE RS - ENAIEFETHE

Ealrkyi

v ARMENEERELNM - BYERZESERAEEE

RRHOT R R E
v HIECEERERER  UHEERALA T RHENER RN
EUEER

v RFEB ARNER G TIEAER R AN EEL T 2HE

G
AR

v ER [HIMER] 530 AERMEREERGE o K

@%IJ%EE%L%@ZTE‘T% + Wi 2 Bz e R A RE R
v BBESEDCE-FRANIER  WEZERAEEN
ﬁLEAZ,éfu'L%ub
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Key Principles / Provisions /
Practices in the Code Met? How PYI Adopted ?

(PR RzEZ2RA /G /B8R REEFE? RENMTRA?

External Auditors YMNEAZ81ET

® Analysis of auditors’ 4 > Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been re-appointed as the
remuneration Company’s external auditors at the 2006 AGM until the
ZEENEN S D47 conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

=%) o BAEMR A EFHAIITE N2006F IR BF A g EEH T
RARAINEZEED - BRI T —FERRBFRASERBIE ©
> In order to maintain independence, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
is primarily responsible for providing audit services in connection
with the Group’s consolidated financial statements, and only
provides as well as non-audit services that do not impair their
independence or objectivity and are approved by the Audit

Committee.
RTRFHFEBLI 28 « BERT ST EaEHTEE
IRAMTIERRIBIZERT - URTEEEEB T -
WS EZE BN IFEA R

> For the year ended 31 March 2007, the remuneration paid or
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit and non-audit
services (and the comparative figure for the year ended 31
March 2006) is set out as follows:
BZE2007F3 AN BILEE - ENSENTEE) « BERA S5t
EDATRZB MR BAR S EE (GEREZE20065F3 A31H IEFE
LR ET) HIWT

2007 2006

Services Rendered HK$°000 HK$’000
RAH RS FET T
Audit services 6,576 3,914
ZEPRT
Non-audit services
FERZHIRTE

Taxation advisory 231 867

A

Special engagements 1,773 1,416

HEER
Total 4278 8,580 6,197
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Additional Practices on Corporate Governance in PYI
RELEERNEZER

Compliance Committee =R E 8 &

v Role and Function

A EaRae
>

Oversee the Company’s compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of its business
operations

EEARNREREREEEE FEARRERRENER

Review and approve the Company’s code of conduct and/or business ethics, policies and prevailing
corporate governance practices and standards, and oversee their implementation and compliance
HBIARRRNTTRT A R/SEERERST - BRERRITEERERBHRMEN - WERTMNERIETIER

Composition Meetings Attended / Held

Eio HE I BITERRE

>

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph (Chairman) 3/3
FREE L (FF)

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 3/3
e

Mr Chan Shu Kin 3/3
BRAGTER e

Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary

SEEMRARRE

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa 3/3
=RBRL L

Summary of Work Performed
ITHERE

> The Compliance Committee held three meetings during the year to review:

v Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2006

v quarterly updated compliance reports submitted by the Company Secretary
EREESHEFANRIT T ZREBAEH -

v BZE200643A31HILFE 2 EERRE

v RAWEFZNFTEEHNERBURE
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Additional Practices on Corporate Governance in PYI
RELEERNEZER

Share Repurchase Committee %3 EIEZE 8

v Role and Function
A

> Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI
in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda

RIE (EHRAD - REQFMAMAREREERELR  TEERERESROBRERNED

Composition Meetings Attended / Held
R HE  BTERRE
> Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) 1/1

BRISTER S A4 (FF)
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph (Alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin)
R (CBERBIERLE)
> Executive Director
HITES
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 1/1
BlmREE

Summary of Work Performed
THERE

> The Share Repurchase Committee met on one occasion during the year for the purpose of granting
a mandate to the Managing Director to repurchase shares under an initial approved budget of
not more than HK$10 million in total value.
BROEEREESEFRNERITT —ASH  BTESLLE-ERE P IERERES £XTZR
1,000& B TEBE KD -

Compliance with Model Code by Senior Management =4 &2 EE 1 (Z2SFA)

4 > Senior management (whose biographies are set out on pages 50 to 55 of this annual report) are
subject to the Model Code with respect to the notification and reporting requirements to the
Company for dealings in PYI's securities and the prohibitions to deal.
BRERE (RAFRESOESSEFNHEBE2ZALT) @ HEF (FESFR) RERMARBEARE
HEBREZHFNRA - AR IBETEBENRE

> Senior management have all confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that throughout

the year ended 31 March 2007 they complied with the standard set out in the Model Code.
RERARANERBEN  2RESREEBHEEREBE2007F3A31BIEFE—ERET (RESF
DRI gk = >
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Additional Practices on Corporate Governance in PYI

REGHKERNERER

Maintaining Close Communications with Investors 2% & & (R 2 L H

v > The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with investors, analysts, fund
managers and the media by various channels, including roadshows, individual interviews, media
briefings and news releases.

FEESREEBEREE /TR  ASCEARKRERINE - BAG  HEEMSMNHER
LELBRE  RETYHME - ARETE AR EAEHRAEAELEE

> The Group also responds to requests for information and queries from the general public.
REB TRE R R E L7 R4 AIE L EE -

> Our Board welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages
shareholders to attend shareholders’ meetings to directly voice any concerns they might have to
our directors.

EERTIBERAERAKSEFTRRELNRE  SBRR2MBRASHERB LN EMHEREMNE

FEHERM °
R . AN S
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) PRUGER
While striving for the sustainable development of our business and TR EB AR ER R R NG EREF AR
maximising shareholder value, as a responsible corporate citizen PYI B ERAEEENEEAR  RECKZEER
has never lost sight of the importance of contributing to the common HEHNERM
ood. vyl o . NP
9 RO D EH B B R AN & EE -
Our CSR initiatives cover many social fronts such as environmental HpERGERE - REERCRAREABRER
protection. To promote the use of LPG as a clean and energy-saving EigE R FHIBEIR » AERRAL B RRIREL - 1B
fuel to substitute fossil fuel, through Hubei Minsheng LPG we have BETNHILRAERHENRETHATEREN
sponsored the Taxi Industry Association in Wuhan to launch a local BREE - MRS EHALTEIRARERER -

TV programme aimed at fostering a good sense of environmental
protection among taxi drivers.
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To minimize adverse impact or the surrounding community around our
project site, PYI has installed a comprehensive range of environmental
protection facilities in place at Yangkou Port including sewage collection-
discharge and waste disposal systems, as well as urban ecological
and environmental protection systems, to name but a few examples.
Such ongoing promotional efforts have been successful in raising the
profile of PYl as an environment-friendly investor on the Mainland.

Realizing that education of the younger generation is indispensable
for the further development of the society, we set the all-important
education sector as a priority. An array of educational sponsorship
programmes for Mainland schools have been established. Since early
2007, we have sponsored study tours for distinguished secondary
students in Nantong and Wuhan to Hong Kong and Macau. The cross
border visits and exchanges have afforded those students an opportunity
to broaden their horizons and accumulate international perspectives
to their studies. We will continue to explore collaborative opportunities
with other educational organizations for more programmes alike.

Promoting sports activities is an important way to contribute to the
health of the general public. To further support the development of
local sports, PYIl has sponsored such major sporting events as the
16th Jiangsu Provincial Games, held in October 20086. It was an honour
for PYI to be invited as the Official Partner to this prestigious event.

Looking ahead, we remain firmly committed to fulfilling our social
responsibilities by conducting our business as a responsible corporate
citizen and giving back to the community.

By Order of the Board

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20 July 2007
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The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide information
relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006:
HK1.5 cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on PYI’s
register of members as at the close of business on 10 October 2007.
The final dividend is subject to the approval of PY| shareholders in the
2007 Annual General Meeting to be held on 20 September 2007, and
is expected to be paid to shareholders by post on or around 8
November 2007.

The final dividend will be paid in the form of scrip, with PYI
shareholders being given an option to elect cash in respect of part or
all of such dividend. The market value of the shares to be issued
under the scrip dividend proposal will be fixed by reference to the
average of the closing prices of PYI| shares for the three consecutive
trading days ending 10 October 2007 less a discount of 5% of such
average price or the par value of shares, whichever is the higher. The
proposed scrip dividend is conditional upon The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) granting
listing of, and permission to deal in, the new shares to be issued.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of PYI will be closed during the period from 8
October 2007 to 10 October 2007, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of share(s) of PYI will be effected. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the
relevant share certificate(s) with the completed transfer form(s) with
overleaf or separately, must be lodged with PYI's share registrars in
Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than

4:00 p.m. on 5 October 2007.

84 < W':’ PY| Corporation Limited 2007 Annual Report

EZRTIREENFELE - RERIEE
It ¥ B AR ERACRARR R B A o

REARR R
BEREEAEREMAN2007F10 A 10 B AR
MERREBIIRERR M ZBE - SIREHR
1.5/l (2006 : FA%1.5781l) © {EAEZ2007
FIANAILEFEZRERE - REIR B BRF
200749 H20 A £ 17 2 2007 R AF R g
FRARERFEAER T AER - TEER R 2007
FASHKEGUB T RIS TR -

REARR B A AR B AR 75 R3S - (RERRE A
MR XA DIBEZREUR S o BIRARAK
BEEZRTEIZRG 2 TEKGSRBRERSD
REZE2007F10 A 108 HEE =R B HZF
U T BRI 2 (B 2 5%k AR 1A FEI{E (LA
RimE RAE) FTE 2 ITRIMETE o B2 IRE
BAGBAHARIMARAR ([BERS
BTl BbERS TEITHRGN EMREE - FAME
EERERRELFE

REH K 2007F10 A8 A E2007F 1010
(REEEMR) SEPEREE DTS - B
BN EREMRERD 2 E5E o AEIRK
HRE - FiBROBPXHERBRAKRERE
BB BB 2B R - SIEAN2007F
10 A58 T ERI R EIRE 2 BEIRD 1B
PETEMERERBERARIAHERT « #
IHABEBEBFEFANBR28KCEER 26
& o



SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings as recorded in the PYI register of members as at

31 March 2007

B3R
R200793A31 A BIIRERR EM 2 RREF
Bz

o

% of % of issued
Size of No. of shareholders share capital
registered shareholdings shareholders HRREE No. of shares HEBRITRAE
EEBRRERE BREE Bk BHEE Bk
500 or below 8 AT 266 56.72% 46,306 0.00%
501 - 1000 35 7.46% 26,967 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 109 23.24% 360,380 0.02%
10,001 - 100,000 42 8.96% 1,272,173 0.09%
100,001 - 1,000,000 12 2.56% 3,293,135 0.22%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 2 0.43% 11,300,000 0.76%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 1 0.20% 58,929,772 3.95%
Above 100,000,000 A £ 2" 0.43% 1,416,484,674 94.96%
Total &5t 469 100.00% 1,491,713,407 100.00%
* The two shareholders were: FAGIVEEESaw =
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited BARREE (REAN) BRAF
Brokers A4 376,502,240 25.24%
Custodians FEE 664,688,673 44.56%
Investors REE 921,687 0.06%
Others H A 1,815,148 0.12%
1,043,927,748 69.98%
2 Hollyfield Group Limited 372,556,926 24.98%
1,416,484,674 94.96%
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Top five shareholders according to disclosure of interests under 200743 A318 » REGE SR HE R #E
the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at 31 March 2007 =HIFE N ZAEBRE

% of issued
share capital

Name of shareholders B RITRA
BRERAE Bot
1 Hollyfield Group Limited 402,368,507 26.97%
2  Gandhara Advisors Asia Ltd. 139,617,997 9.36%
3  OZ Management, L.L.C. 133,671,722 8.96%
4 The Children's Investment Master Fund 117,732,000 7.89%
5  Christian Emil Toggenburger 84,244,397 5.65%
Total &5t 877,634,623 58.83%

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 17 H &%

Event Date

E3 A

2006 special dividend of HK22.2 cents/share announced
S M 20064F & Ak22. 275 IlIFFBIAR 2

08/05/2006

2006 special dividend of HK22.2 cents/share paid

JEB 20064 5 1822 2B IS RIAR B 26/06/2006

2006 annual results and final dividend of HK1.5 cents/share announced

ET520065 2 2 B B S TR E O ELES

2006 PYI AGM

2006 F RERRAFAE 08/09/2006

2006 final dividend of HK1.5 cents/share paid

006 AR 1. 58l R EIR 8. 1E11/E0T

2007 interim results and interim dividend of HK1.5 cents/share announced

S 520074 B B S IR 5 RS USRS

2007 interim dividend paid

IRZE2007 FE =1 578l HAL & RO

2007 annual results and final dividend of HK1.5 cents/share announced

EM2007F 2 FEE KB 5B NIRER S 20/07/2007
2007 PYI AGM
2007 FRERRBAFAE 20/09/2007

2007 final dividend of HK1.5 cents/share payable
IKEE2007F A1 5B LIREARR 2

around 08/11/2007 i1
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SHARE INFORMATION

Share listing

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on

21 September 1993.

Stock code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Reuters
Bloomberg

American Depository Receipt
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Board lot

Securities in issue
Shares
As at 31 March 2007

As at date of this report

Outstanding share options™

As at 31 March 2007

As at the date of this report

Convertible notes

As at the date of this report

498
0498.HK
498 HK
PYIFY
PYW

2,000 shares

1,491,713,407 shares
1,492,848,407 shares

88,985,000 options
100,975,000 options

HK$121,521,498

* Full details can be found in the Directors’ Report at pages 89 to 103 of this

report.

Share price R1&

HK$

BT
4.5
4
3.5
3
2.5
2

(o] O ©

o) S o)

S o) e

[aV] [aV] (aV]

S o} ©

(@] (@} o

07-2006

08-2006

09-2006

10-2006

11-2006
12-2006
01-2007
02-2007

03-2007

R4 £

RERADTA99349 A21 B BEIREB B 5T
Eme

B RSR

BB GM 498
73 sigan 0498.HK
A1 498 HK
EEEAES PYIFY
AR RS PYW
BEBMN(BF) 2,000/%

ORITHES

B 17
M20079F3H31H
RAER 2 B

GESEIT 150
200743318
RAFHR 2 B

CIE S ES
RAFHRZ A

1,491,713,407%
1,492,848,407 %

88,985,00017
100,975,00017

121,521,498/ 7T

* HIBRHATREOEIBEZEZTAMES °

Share price (Cum div)
f&(E G&R)

Share price (Ex div)
(B (B 8
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MARKET CAPITALISATION
Total market capitalisation
As at 31 March 2007

As at date of this report

Public float capitalisation*
As at 31 March 2007
As at date of this report

HK$5.18 billion
HK$5.60 billion

HK$3.73 billion
HK$4.04 billion

* Public excludes all connected persons (including substantial shareholders

and directors) of PYI
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Directors’ Report EEFREE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities as at 31 March 2007 are set out in note 57 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2007 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 106 of the annual report and in the accompanying
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$22,069,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year. In
addition, the directors had resolved the payment of a special dividend
of HK22.2 cents per share by way of distribution of the value derived
from the Group’s divestment of China Strategic Holdings Limited to
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of member on
26 May 2006, amounting to a total sum of approximately
HK$325,660,000.

The directors further recommended for shareholders’ approval the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share in the form of
scrip, with an option to elect cash, to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on 10 October 2007. The
estimated total sum payable in respect of this final dividend is
approximately HK$22,393,000.

Details of the distribution are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EERMARZEHE2007FE3A31BILFEEZ
FER M ASEIIR A TSR ©

EREK
AR R—EHREERAR]

RAREEEZHEAR - B QA R EZEH
B 200743 A31 B 2 £BH NG AT TE
R MIFEST o

EERFED G

B ZE2007F3 A1 B IEFEARER 2 EERA
AR ZAEDEEINRARFRE106ELE U
Tk RIETE 2 iR e IS IRER M EE -

FADRETRREBASBIWZPHRE - &
#122,069,000/8 7T ° 5N + EEEFARIASIK
R EE AR A RIHE S EEZ 773712006
5 A26 B B 5IBCR A M 2 BRI SRR S &
R22. 2784l » & Ik 8.41325,660,000/87T °

ERMEZREIDEREFARA 58112 KA
B AR E TR RIR £ 2 2E) T20074510
A10BBFRFRAM 2R o gLt REBAR S 4
AT E 48384 522,393,000/ 7T ©

B EFHBEIINERE M IERRME6 -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the five largest customers and the
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately
68% and 30% of the turnover of the Group, respectively. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group during the year were less than 30% of the purchases of the
Group.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the directors are aware, none of
the directors, their associates, within the meaning of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital, have an interest in any of the five largest customers of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2007.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,024,137,000, with
approximately HK$597,386,000 repayable within one year,
approximately HK$426,751,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank
balances and deposits as at 31 March 2007 amounted to
approximately HK$779,367,000. The Group’s current ratio was 1.3 and
the debt to equity ratio was 0.4 as at 31 March 2007 .

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$50,077,000 on
property, plant and equipment to expand and upgrade its operating
capacity.

In addition, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate amount of HK$457,644,000 through acquisition of a
business.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES B ip s E G El

1. Share option scheme 1. BRE
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 27 BEBARRARIN2002F8 A27 A 2 K
August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in note 44 to TR ([FEARIERTE) 2B RN R E B
the consolidated financial statements. B MiEE44 -
Details of the share options granted under the Share Option RERERET SR TARTE TESAR
Scheme to certain directors of the Company to subscribe for BARRNAIRGD 2 EBRE 2SN TRE
shares in the Company are as follows: B
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
price per as at during during as at
Name of director  Date of grant Exercisable period share  01.04.2006 the year the year 31.03.2007
1A01.04.2006 1431.03.2007
BEEfE BiHAH (i BRITHEE HR{TE REREH RERTE HR{THE
HK$
B
Chow Ming Kuen, 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.24 650,000 - (650,000) -
Joseph 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.50 650,000 - (650,000) =
[EIEAE
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.24 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
=R 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.50 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
08.09.2006 08.09.2006 - 07.09.2007 2.48 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
08.09.2006 08.09.2007 - 07.09.2008 2.48 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
08.09.2006 08.09.2008 - 07.09.2009 2.48 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
Kwok Shiu Keung, 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.24 650,000 - - 650,000
Ernest 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.50 650,000 - - 650,000
EI
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.24 650,000 - - 650,000
BRI 2 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012 1.50 650,000 - - 650,000
Leung Po Wing, 08.09.2006 08.09.2006 - 26.08.2012 2.43 - 1,300,000 - 1,300,000
Bowen Joseph
LiChang An 06.02.2007 06.02.2007 - 26.08.2012 3.00 - 1,300,000 - 1,300,000
FER

16,900,000 16,400,000 (1,300,000) 32,000,000
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES - continued

1.

92 <

Share option scheme - continued

As at the date of this report, the above share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme to certain directors of the
Company in respect of a total of 32,000,000 underlying shares of
the Company remain outstanding, representing 2.14% of the
issued share capital of the Company (i.e. 1,492,848,407 shares)
on that date.

During the year, options in respect of an aggregate of 36,575,000
shares of the Company were exercised and options in respect of
an aggregate of 1,726,000 shares were lapsed.

Particulars of the share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), a subsidiary of the
Company, are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share award scheme

This scheme adopted by the Company on 23 February 2006
allows the Company to make bonus payments to eligible persons
(including employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents
of the Group) by way of the Company'’s shares acquired by and
held through an independent trustee until fulfillment of conditions
before vesting.

During the year, a total of 1,050,000 shares of the Company
became vested in 69 employees (including 120,000 the
Company’s shares to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, the Deputy Chairman
and Managing Director) under the scheme. In addition, a total of
160,000 shares of the Company were awarded to eight employees
in February 2007. These shares, subject to a vesting period until

7 August 2007, are being held by the trustee, BOCI-Prudential
Trustee Limited.

A share award scheme was also adopted by Paul Y. Engineering
on 6 September 2006. This inventive scheme allows Paul Y.
Engineering to make bonus payments to eligible persons
(including employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents
of Paul Y. Engineering) by way of shares of Paul Y. Engineering
acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfilment of specified conditions before vesting.

PY1 :) PY| Corporation Limited 2007 Annual Report
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3. Share financing plan

This plan adopted by the Company on 14 February 2006 allows
eligible persons (including employees, directors, consultants,
advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow funds from the
Company to acquire new or old shares of the Company on a non-
recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to the Company as
security, subject always to connected transaction and other
relevant provisions under the Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing was provided by the Group to
employees under this plan.

A share financing plan was also adopted by Paul Y. Engineering
on 6 September 2006. This incentive plan allows eligible persons
(including employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents
of Paul Y. Engineering) to borrow funds from Paul Y. Engineering
on a non-recourse basis, for the purpose of acquiring new or old
shares of Paul Y. Engineering with the subject shares pledged to
Paul Y. Engineering as security and subject always to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the Listing Rules.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2007 amounted to approximately HK$1,150,805,000
(2006: HK$1,505,813,000).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Independent non-executive directors

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 0BE, up (Chairman)

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, Jp  (appointed on 1 August 2006)
Li Chang An (appointed on 8 January 2007)
Executive director

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director)

Non-executive director
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Chan Shu Kin will retire by rotation
and, both being eligible, will stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In addition, Mr Li Chang An, being director appointed by the Board
during the year, shall retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are appointed
for a specific term of approximately three years.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ”)), as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in the Listing Rules
were as follows:

(1) Shares of the Company

Long

position

[/short

Name of director/chief executive Capacity position
EE TETHAERS L) #E/ %R

Beneficial owner

ExfAA

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
[ERTE

Beneficial owner

ExfAA

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

2R

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Interest of controlled
BRElR corporation (Note)
RmtEE R ()
Beneficial owner

ExfAA

Long position

fre

Long position

fre

Long position

3}

Long position

3}

BESRBELN
BRARTZRRBF RS LE&EEETE
EVWEENEETT I AEER —FATAIEA
18 CEERMERIN MR L2 RIEAL

ESRTETHRAEBRES - HBERORE
HFZEBRKRA

M200743A318 * RRRIEZEREZTHRA
BRAR RIS EE (B & REHF RS
) (TEF REAEEGI)) 5B +TE0) 2 Bs ~ 48
R REHT G BEFAREES RIS
B E 35215 F AT B Z AR B &M kiR
B EMRAIR EMAREE#TESFRRZH
=ASFAI| (MEAESFRI) MAEMAA 7 KBS
ERBETARAR ([BAT]) Bz s ok
BT

(1) ATz B
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the then existing
shares of the issued share capital
Company held of the Company
EARABER
BEAAA REERTRA
RIEE ZENEL
1,300,000 0.087%
120,671 0.008%
402,368,507 26.97%
11,915,186 0.80%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES - continued

(1) Shares of the Company — continued
Note: Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in
402,368,507 shares in the Company by virtue of his 100%
shareholding in Chinaview International Limited (“Chinaview”).
Galaxyway Investments Limited (“Galaxyway”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinaview, owned approximately 34.33% of the
issued ordinary share capital of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”)
which in turn owned the entire issued share capital of ITC
Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”). Hollyfield Group

Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment,

owned these shares.

(2) Options to subscribe for shares of the Company

Name of director/chief executive  Date of grant Exercisable period

BEEiE/TEARAEKS RHAH T
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012
A5k 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012
08.09.2006 08.09.2006 - 07.09.2007
08.09.2006 08.09.2007 - 07.09.2008
08.09.2006 08.09.2008 - 07.09.2009
Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012
EIE 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012
BRI 2 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 - 26.08.2012
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 08.09.2006 08.09.2006 - 26.08.2012
Li Chang An 06.02.2007 06.02.2007 - 26.08.2012
FER
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FEBERRR (B
(1) ATz KA (&)

HfeE -

PR B9 9% 18+ R /A B Chinaview
International Limited ([Chinaview.)
Z100% AR M #5453 R
402,368,507 A A A& ©
ChinaviewZ 2 & KB A 7
Galaxyway Investments Limited
([Galaxywayl) #EEEHF R EEEE
RO ([ E]) BT mR

ARAN4934.33% - iiEtE{S S T
BITC Investment Holdings Limited
([ITC Investment|) 2 EBE 1T
7K o |ITC InvestmentZ 2 & KB A A
Hollyfield Group Limited
(THollyfield]) BIBER 2 Z/ 1D °

(2) TRBEADBR G 2 BRE

Exercise
price per
share

SRITEE
HK$
BT

1.24
1.50
2.48
2.48
2.48

1.24
1.50

1.24
1.50

2.43

3.00

Number of Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares the then existing
comprised in  issued share capital
the options of the Company
EEARER

BRESR 2 REERTRA
RBRGEAE ZBREA
6,500,000 0.436%
6,500,000 0.436%
4,600,000 0.308%
4,600,000 0.308%
4,600,000 0.308%
650,000 0.044%
650,000 0.044%
650,000 0.044%
650,000 0.044%
1,300,000 0.087%
1,300,000 0.087%



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES - continued

(2) Options to subscribe for shares of the Company — continued
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2007, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses) which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly and indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EERFTETHRAENES  HERGORE

SRR RE (B

(2) RBARATRG ZBIRE (E)
BRSOt REE S - 7200743 A31H &
EEHARAEBITHAEREREQA
SEEAEEER (E& RE S REFERA
FETHE) 2k - HERGOSESTES
EAA A ZBF ABRIRRE 75 N HA S &1 25 35214
TAFE ZARRIE LD MAKIBRREEST
Bl WAZB M 7R 7] K Bk A2 P ER R 2 A o Rk

AN

=

EENHRTREB 2 ER
MR200743A318 » IRt AEBER AR
RS E S A (A BB s MR AR E 7S
TEPK 5 5 o) I RETE PR B T 2 S TS TR/ (R (] 48
EEREESHD 2 ER

BRI RER ] — ST EE - ARRE
EREARAREAANBARRAFELEE
Bk EANERBBI 2 EBE T HEERE
SR E AR ©
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following connected
transactions, details of which are required to be set out below
pursuant to rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules:

BERXS
AEBMPRERET NLEERS - RIBLETR
BIZE14A A5IKFT BB RIFEBMT ¢

98

Description Description of
Parties to of connected transaction Total
Transaction date the transaction Connected person relationship and purpose consideration
X5 A REEH BEAL BB RE KBzt BRE
HK$000
FET
01.06.2006 MRERRIULBREEE NRERFHGEE A substantial Acquisition of 2,910
EEBRAR as vendor REETARAR shareholder of an additional 15%
Glory Well Property certain subsidiaries equity interest in
Investment Limited, of the Company a non-wholly
a wholly owned subsidiary ARAETHEAR owned subsidiary
of the Company as purchaser ZEERE EE—FH2E
NRERFHEBRIZE MBARZ15%
BEEERRRERES AR
KRAZ 2 EMBARAIE
WEREERAAERER
28.12.2006 NRERRIUSBEREE MRERRMLER A substantial Acquisition of the 4,880
BEBR AR as vendor BEEAERAA shareholder of remaining 25%

Glory Well Property certain subsidiaries interestin a
Investment Limited, of the Company non-wholly
a wholly owned subsidiary ARAIETHEAR owned subsidiary
of the Company as purchaser ZEERE BEE-FFEE
MRERFHERRERE MEAREBRT
EEBRDRERER 2 25% AR

ARAZ2ENEATLE
WERARRATIERES

_
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FIARBEFF R HERGIFEI6HRTUEFE

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN THE ZETMAZEERR Hi At
REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO M2007F3A31H  BARTEZEEREEITH
As at 31 March 2007, so far as is known to the directors and the chief ABFTA - THIEBRE Hih A LTHRERQA]
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the B 1n RABEERR (2 R R WA DI ARRIRTE 75 & A
substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and underlying BB ZE33618 T AFE 2 B Az #28 &
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept IR
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
(1) FERR :
(1) Substantial shareholders:
Approximate
Long percentage of
position/ Number of the then existing
short shares of the issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity position Company held of the Company
Ly NG
FEARAR HEERTRA
REHEE 4 #R/ KR RPEE ZBAEAL
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Interest of controlled Long position 402,368,507 26.97%
PREl corporation (Note) e
REtEE R ()
Beneficial owner Long position 11,915,186 0.80%
ERBEBA HE
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse (Note) Long position 414,283,693 271.77%
{hg iR (W) e
Chinaview Interest of controlled Long position 402,368,507 26.97%
corporation (Note) HE
REtEE R ()
Galaxyway Interest of controlled Long position 402,368,507 26.97%
corporation (Note) HE
REtlEE R ()
[TC Interest of controlled Long position 402,368,507 26.97%
EEhE corporation (Note) e
REtlEE R ()
[TC Investment Interest of controlled Long position 402,368,507 26.97%
corporation (Note) HE
REtlEE R ()
Hollyfield Beneficial owner (Note) Long position 402,368,507 26.97%
BalR (W) e
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN THE
REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO - continued

(1) Substantial shareholders: — continued

Note: Hollyfield, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment (which
was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC), owned
402,368,507 shares in the Company. Galaxyway, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinaview, owned 34.33% of the issued ordinary
share capital of ITC. Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles owned the
entire issued share capital of Chinaview. ITC Investment was
deemed to be interested in the said 402,368,507 shares in the
Company held by Hollyfield. Ms Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse
of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, was deemed to be interested
in the said 402,368,507 shares in the Company held by Hollyfield
and 11,915,186 shares in the Company held directly by Dr Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles.

(2) Other persons:

Long position/

Name of person Capacity short position
#a 5t HR/ %R
Gandhara Advisors Asia Ltd. Investment manager Long position
alc Gandhara Master Fund Ltd. RAELRE e
0Z Management, L.L.C. Investment manager Long position
RERE 3}
The Children’s Investment Investment manager Long position
Fund Management (UK) LLP (Note) e
RBEE (W)
The Children’s Investment Beneficial owner Long position
Master Fund ERBEAA e
Christian Emil Toggenburger Beneficial owner Long position
BEuEBA 3}
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FIARBRE R ERGIFEIB6MHTUFE
ZBEMAZEERR HibA+#z (E)
(1) EBRR : (8

et -

ITC InvestmentZ =& H&B A &l
Hollyfield# % 402,368,507 % AR &
f&1% » MITC InvestmentBl AR
¥ 22 EHEBAF] ° ChinaviewZ 2
E B A Bl Galaxyway# 5 34.33%
EEAEEEITTEARA o FRERE
+#A Chinaview2 25 E 21 TRE A o
HUEITC InvestmentifiAR fER it
Hollyfield# 7 > 402,368,507A 25 22
AIRD PR R o FREIRE T 2l
BIRBIRE 2 T#AR /ER _EitHollyfield
F5H 2402,368,507 IRA A B AR (7
NREAR S T EERH 211,915,186
RARBIRID R e 2S ©

(2) Eft AL :

Approximate
percentage of
Number of the then existing

shares of the issued share capital
Company held of the Company

ERDAER
BEARAR REERTRA
RIFEE ZBAEA L
139,617,997 9.36%
ordinary shares
139,617,997 & 8%
133,671,722 8.96%
ordinary shares
133,671,722 & @M%
117,732,000 7.89%
ordinary shares
117,732,000 8%
117,732,000 7.89%
ordinary shares
117,732,000 8%
84,244,397 5.65%

ordinary shares
84,244,397 &R



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN THE
REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO - continued

(2) Other persons: — continued
Note: The Children’s Investment Master Fund was accustomed or
obliged to act in accordance with the directions or instructions of
The Children’s Investment Fund Management (UK) LLP.
Therefore, The Children’s Investment Fund Management (UK) LLP
was deemed to be having the same interests in the Shares as The
Children’s Investment Master Fund.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, the Company has not
been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2007, the Group
employed a total of approximately 1,927 full time employees (2006:
1,294). Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well as
performance-based and equity-based bonuses. In appreciation of our
employees’ continuing support, a bonus payment to employees was
made during the year.

Further, the Company has implemented three share-related incentive
schemes as mentioned above to provide alternative means to
motivate employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff both in Hong Kong
and the Mainland.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

FIARIBE S R ERPIEI361%KT UIFE

ZETMAZEERRE Hit A % (8)

(2) Hft AL : ()

K7aE - The Children's Investment Master

Fund—TmRIgk % B384 The Children's
Investment Fund Management
(UK) LLPZH8REE= » falk
The Children's Investment Fund
Management (UK) LLP#45 £
The Children's Investment Master
Fund=48 Rk HiEs -

Br EXFTIEEEESN - 20073 A31H + AR
RN ARENESH R EMATHEEEYARE
FH KR EFIFE33615 T AT E 2 ER A
AR Z 1D RABRANR D 2 SOK A ©

BEHE RFMBER

R20074F3A31H » AEERAA K#41,927%
2RES (BEAEEES) (2006 1,294
) - HFAA mFe MR N EREE 2
TEALPRAARX - REH TR PHER 2 —BEURMX
FARER - FAERIEE SN —EEAL -

AN - RARE BT EX PRz =THR ) 1ERE
ZBRE R WRETRTRABES - Wik
TTERBRI S SEERE - AER 2 FERK
R B X BRI IERE -

BIVERIHE
AEBRGERIEHELZ AT A BTSR
349 -

RAEELEERE

ARR 2 AR B READ T L EAE
BB IR REARRIARFEL A
RARRIRZFHEFR - HAFEEPILER
Bl R o
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, the Company had repurchased a total of 2,000,000
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate price of
HK$4,381,000 (including transaction costs), representing an average
price of HK$2.19 paid for each share purchased. All of these shares
were cancelled upon repurchase.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to 83 of the
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the directors acknowledge that
approximately 72% of the issued share capital of the Company is held
by the public.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of the major subsequent events are set out in note 56 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$20,000.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE

LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities
As at 31 March 2007, advances to entities did not individually
exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule 14.07(1)
of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to affiliated
companies
As at 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of the financial
assistance provided by the Group to its associated companies
and jointly controlled entities (collectively the “Affiliated
Companies” within the meaning under Chapter 13 of the Listing

Rules) and the guarantees given by the Group for facilities granted

to the Affiliated Companies did not exceed 8% under the assets
ratio as defined under rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #ZE{ RS E

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF

PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
REEEERAH

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 207, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2007, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2007 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20 July 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement #H=&WEER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

2007 2006
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FAT
(restated)
(E#H7IER)
Turnover = X 7 4,781,678 3,540,484
Cost of sales SHERA (4,502,108) (3,185,938)
Gross profit EH 279,570 354,546
Other income H A 9 165,368 226,532
Administrative expenses TEE R (238,936) (188,890)
Distribution costs 3 SHAK AR (18,471) =
Other expenses HiE A 10 (69,068) (78,862)
Finance costs BhE AR 11 (23,597) (16,710)
Gain on disposal of interest in ek AN
an associate ez 2 W 5,067 =
Discount on acquisition of business UNBE 275 2 & e 45 3,755 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ S - 60,756
Reversal of impairment loss on interest YN S
in an associate REEERE - 26,914
Share of results of associates B E N RS 223,549 (17,184)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities {5 tt RI#5 H e ig 245 (642) 26
Profit before taxation BR T A& A 14 326,595 367,128
Taxation credit (charge) TR G2 ) 15 50,552 (52,804)
Profit for the year FREF 377,147 314,324
Attributable to: AR A LREME -
Equity holders of the Company RINAATRZ
as originally stated IR A A 345,665 310,487
Prior year adjustment BEFE AR 2(a) - (31,626)
Equity holders of the Company BJIARAEZ
as restated RERERE A A 345,665 278,861
Minority interests DY RE R 31,482 35,463
377,147 314,324
Distribution Dk 16 369,668 998,070
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Earnings per share BRAF 17
Basic R 0.236 0.204
Diluted 31 0.233 0.203
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Consolidated Balance Sheet #&

At 31 March 2007 R=—ZEZE+E=F=+—H

BERER

2007 2006
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE FEx FiBT
(restated)
(E=5IER)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MIZE W R 18 528,203 35,800
Project under development EEATHE 20 2,411,680 1,958,869
Properties under development BERPYE 21 44,458
Prepaid lease payments TENEEFKIE 22 67,968 23,136
Goodwill Bk 23 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets Hihmp & E 24 55,775 8,035
Interests in associates Bt N Al RERS 25 710,234 411,457
Deposit for acquisition of an associate WS N A 25T & 25(b) - 160,211
Interests in jointly controlled entities HEEFIEEER 26 1,928 2,570
Available-for-sale investments ‘H HERE 27 1,312 1,653
Loans receivable — due after one year —FRRH T RN ER 28 30,956 =
Amount due from an associate —FiBR
— due after one year FE U ES & R B 5RIE 30 - 117,000
Deferred consideration receivable JEUGEIE(E 31 6,597 10,223
3,920,757 2,790,600
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development BERPYIZE 21 82,732
Properties held for sale FHEL S - 78,245
Prepaid lease payments TR EEFKIE 22 1,766 575
Inventories T 23,425 =
Loans receivable — due within one year ~ —F A EIEf 2 BULE K 28 181,508 105,886
Amounts due from related companies —FRREHZ
— due within one year FEUW B N BB 29 150,099 251,852
Amounts due from associates —FRNEHz
— due within one year & A NCIE /O] 30 187,314 227,776
Amounts due from customers for EREFEEL
contract works T8 32 223,637 163,379
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERS « AT RTENFKIE 33 1,910,690 1,415,407
Conversion option embedded FEW E KB
in loan receivable 2 RS 34 1,427
Investments held for trading FEEERE 35 155,783 161,693
Taxation recoverable AR O i 3K 2,942 1,605
Pledged bank deposits IR TR 36 42,601 118,622
Short term bank deposits P SEESRYERN 36 441,769 526,504
Bank balances and cash RITREFERRS 36 294,997 139,534
3,700,690 3,191,078
il wesmsman coorem >
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &8 &EERER

At 31 March 2007 R=—ZEZE+E=F=+—H

2007 2006
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
B FHET FAT
(restated)
(E#7IER)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due to customers EREFEL
for contract works TiEFIAE 32 1,038,548 429,615
Creditors and accrued expenses FER AR R BRI 37 1,157,990 899,829
Amounts due to associates D NEIE O 38 17,429 3,678
Amounts due to minority shareholders JEfS Ve R FIA 39 4,071 4,638
Loans from minority shareholders DEIREEK 40 - 123,439
Taxation payable FES IR 61,286 45,759
Bank and other borrowings —F AR RIT
— due within one year N E MR 41 597,386 400,158
2,876,710 1,907,116
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 823,980 1,283,962
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERADEMRE
LIABILITIES 4,744,737 4,074,562
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings —FBR
— due after one year RIT R H MBS 41 426,751 164,625
Deferred consideration payable FERHEERE 45 121,213 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIBBE 42 947,924 900,000
1,495,888 1,064,625
3,248,849 3,009,937
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR e
Share capital f&As 43 149,171 137,880
Reserves & 2,622,681 2,432,752
Equity attributable to equity holders /NIl g
of the Company BB AEGERE 2,771,852 2,570,632
Share-based payment reserve BN E) 2 LARRD
of a subsidiary S FRIARE 981 137
Minority interests DER R e 476,016 439,168
TOTAL EQUITY RS 3,248,849 3,009,937
The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to HNE1062207 B2 M HREER_ZEE+F A -+ HEE
207 were approved and authorised for issue by the ERRERERETIR  UHTIEERRESHESE
Board of Directors on 20 July 2007 and are signed on its
behalf by:
Joseph Chow B o5k JP Tom Lau 25 &
Chairman Managing Director
FE EFpE
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—

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &2 8k

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

KLz REREARR
Share- Share-based
Investment based payment
Share  Share  Special  Capifal revaluation ~ Other Translation ~ payment Refained reserveofa  Minority
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Subotal Eﬁubsidiarzy interests Total
il
h& IR At PUVER) 58
Re  RMGEE GREE EARE ERRE  EpER  EXRR  TERR RERA Mt RERE  RRER ait
HKS000  HK$000  HKSOO0  HKSO000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO00  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000
Thr TEr Tar Thr Tht TAr TRt  TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr T
At 31 March 2005, R-ZERF
as originally stated SAZt-B0F3 136020 184811 124695 2480000 991 - (561) - 116 3221972 - b364% 3764307
Fffectof changein SHRENL
aocounting polcy (noie2) & (Hz£2) - - - - - - - - BT e - - B
At 1 Apil 2005, R-ZENEMA-A.
as restated il 136920 184811 1246% 2480000 991 - (561) - 534033 3460889 - b%64% 3997314
Eichange diference RIAERIE
aising fiom tranlation 74
of foreign operations EfZE - - - - - -5 - - 508 - U2 83
Decreaseinfairvalueof  EHEREY
avalable-forsale ATEERD
investments - - - - (134 - - - - (13 - (303)  (1,646)
Shareofoherresenecf  E(EBEAT
an associate AR - - - - - 5B - - - 5% - - 5B
Share ofranlafion eserve. ZEHERT
of an associate EGE - - - - - - (224) - - (224) = = (204)
Net(expense) ncome.~~~ BRRVERETZ
recogised directy (RRMAEE
i ey - - - S(My 5 5 - -0 Sl 18
Proft for the year (esteted)  £E&FI(EH5IE) - - - - - - - - g6t 8g6 - B M
Tota recognised (evpense)  EEEHED
income for the year () WA g8 - - - N T - 8t 28805 - ys 35
Tansered fomcaptll ~ EEEER
fesere - - - - (2.480,000) - - - - 2480000 - - - -
Sharerepuchasedand  EER
cancelled kR (105)  (13.426) - - - - - - - (1447 - - (14478
Recogntionofequit- AN
seifled share-based Sy
payment expense ph i = - - = = - - 4945 - 4945 137 - 5082
Issug of shares under share R Ex1E
option scheme Bkl 1 b - - - - - () - % - - %
Issue of shares under scrip MR 2513
dividend schemes Bkt 2010 (20M) - - - - - - - - - - -
Cdtaishgonseip  WRREFES
dividends L = = = = = = - - 0% 99 - - 9%t
Shareissueepenses  AMTRAER i - - - - - - i - i
Distribution Ak - - = = = = = - (998070) (998070) - - (998,070)
Dividend distiouted by~ FIBAEAE
asubsidiary LRE - - - - - - - - - - - (18169) (18,169
Contribufon fomminorty ~ JSTRELE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 105 105%
Scrip dvidends distiouted HBAFREZ
by a subsiclary IRAS - - - - - - - - - - SR K1 I K )
Acquistionof addlfonal ~ EHEAT
nterests n subsidiares & - - - (0191) - - - - - (0191) - (130498) (331,789)
At 31 March 2006, RoEEEZR
as festated SHBCERSE 197880 169120 12469 (20191) (3%2) 5% 5143 4940 230479 2510632 187 439168 3000937
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &2 8K

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
KiE R AR

Share- Share-based
Investment based payment
Share  Share  Special  Capital revaluation ~ Other Translation payment Retained reserveofa  Minority
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits  Sub-otal H%s@jarzy interests Total
I
& WRfft , Whtify 49
W6 RORE GREE GARE ERBE REGEE ENGE AERE REEN v MERE MRER off
HKS000  HK$00D  HKSOOD  HKSO000  HKSO00  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$00D  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000
Thr  TEr  TAr Thr  Thr TAn  TAr  TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  Thr
At 1 April 2006, N-ZENELA-R-
as restated % 137880 169129 1246%  (201,291) (352) 5133 5,143 4940 232479 2570632 187 439168 3,009,937
Exchange diference aisng - B2}
from ranslafion of ShiEL
foreign operations Ef =R - - - - - - B4168 - - 54168 - T80 8198
Decieaseinfarvaeof  AHHHE
avallable-orsale R
investmens NYRERY - - - - - - - - () - (i) )
Share of ranlafion eserve. EEEED7
of associates Bk - - - - - - e - S A = - 167
Shareofotherresene  EHBENT
of associaes B - - - - - - - -0 - -0
Net(expense)income.~~ EERVER
recoqrised drecty B2 (7%
inequly kAT . . - Sy 200 §93% - B ST %81
Proft for the year EREH - - - - - - - - Y566 566 N /A AT
Release upon disposalof  iEBEA3]
erestinessociaes  EaREL - - - - - ) () - - ) - - (3m)
Tota recognisedt (expense)  EEEHED
income for the year () WA g8 - - - v I/ R R - M 43 - R 4T
Transfer of eserve of BRRRLTRR
an associate - - - - - 3 - - (33) - - - -
Shares repurchasedand B
cancelled it (200) (4181 - - - - - - - (4 - -4
Recogriton of equitysetfed E2HR{
sharebasedpayment  Xf15E
expense LEHR = - - - - - - 218 - 218 1,088 - 829
Issug of shares under share RiEEETRiE
opfon scheme BEEL! 3657 59507 - - - - - (50%) - B - - 5
Releassuponlapseof  AEZEE
Vested share options RE e - - - - - - - (63) 63 - - - =
lsugofsharesunder ~ FIERERE
share option scheme B
by a subsidiary Bkt - - - - - - - - - - (4) 174 150
Issug of shares under scrip BRI
dlvidend schemes BEELI! 984 (94) - - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares upon e
acquisiion of adaitonal ~~ DEENERR
interests in subsidiares  E{IR{A 6850 192,701 - - - - - - - 199551 - - 199551
Cedtaisngonsip  DRREMEE
dividends L = = = - - - - - 44T AT - - A4
Shareissueexpenses  EfTRhEHE - (63) - - - - - - - (63) - - (63)
Distribution Ak - - - - - - - - (369,668) (369,668) - - (369,668)
Dividend distibutedbya ~ FIBRRAE
subsidry ke : : - : : : - - : : () (54)
Contriouton fomminorty &R
shareholders it - - - - - - - - - - - 8761 48761
Scrip ovidends disirbouted B R EEE
by a subsiciary LHBAE - - - - - - - - - - S Y/,
Acquistion of addtional ~ ZEHEAA
nterests insubsidiaries & - - - (14203 - - - - - (14203) - (6076T) (20279%)
At 31 March 2007 WETHEZR=T-0 19171 415607 1246% (343,326 (590) 479 74200 21962 23529 2771852 %1 476016 3248849
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The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the Group
and the nominal amount of the share capital issued as consideration
for the acquisition.

The capital reserve represents the fair value in the underlying assets
and liabilities that attributable to the additional interests in subsidiaries
acquired by the Group.

AREEE 7 SRR I B A R B S B
BE B 2RAEERRODEE - BERKBR
EmM#ETZRAEERZZRE

BEARBIEASEMKEN B AR 2 BIMER
BEZHBEEERABZATEE-
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZZ8RERER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(restated)
(EF5IER)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before taxation Br B A A 326,595 367,128
Adjustments for: FLTYIEEETHE
Finance costs BB 23,597 16,710
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 W - (60,756)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEZE - RS
plant and equipment 2 B (a) 977 (19,927)
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate S B A R P e = (5,067) =
Reversal of impairment loss on interest YN S
in an associate AR ERE - (26,914)
Share of results of associates BEEE ARIEA (223,549) 17,184
Share of results of jointly controlled entities L R B MRS SR 642 (26)
Release of prepaid lease payments FRTEN B EFIE 1,031 2,677
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 490 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #13 - i RRE 2 ITE 21,779 29,180
Increase in fair value of listed investments BIEEE 2 EmxEZ
held for trading ANFEMBEEM (83,444) (636)
Decrease in fair value of conversion FEW SRS 2 AR
option embedded in loan receivable ZAFEEBERD 1,650 =
Increase in fair value of derivative TESMITAY
financial instruments NFEEEN - (17,895)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMFEZ N FEEEEM - (85,400)
Share-based payment expense VAR 2 N 5k38 2 B R 23,083 5,082
Interest income FEWA (42,444) (26,096)
Impairment loss on receivables FEW IR 2 R EEE 18,628 15,000
Reversal of impairment loss on receivables JEWRIE R B & B R (30,324) (14,173)
Discount on acquisition of business WX BmE (3,755) -
Operating cash flows before movements RetE EZE L BIAT
in working capital ZIREEBFRERE 29,889 201,138

'
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2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBT T
(restated)
(E#h5IER)
Operating cash flows before movements Rt EE ©EEA
in working capital IREEBRENE 29,889 201,138
Increase in project under development EREAPIE B M (290,888) (136,179)
Decrease in amounts due from (to) customers Y () BEEAEHIRE
for contract works, net of attributable FIER D (FOBR FEET
interest expenses and depreciation FEAZRITE) 553,472 23,017
Decrease (increase) in properties held for sale  #{EHEW R (E0) 78,245 (73,295)
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable FEME SR (B 00) S5 > (72,759) 85,196
Increase in inventories FEEN (23,425) =
(Increase) decrease in debtors, FEWERSK ~ 5T &
deposits and prepayments TERTERIE ($Z0) % (511,224) 145,421
Decrease in amounts from related companies JEULRRE A B FRIE R > 115,017 95,029
Decrease (increase) in amounts from associates & UkEs: &N B IR 4> (G5 Hn) 167,848 (59,093)
Decrease in investments held for trading REEERE R D 82,605 12,227
Increase (decrease) in creditors FERTBR R R IEET 2
and accrued expenses o CRA) 237,139 (130,435)
Decrease in amounts due to jointly JEAST HE R M i
controlled entities FRIRE - (20,766)
Increase in amounts due to associates JEAST RS2 N B FRIBLE HN 13,751 874
Cash generated from operations REKLEERKZIRE 379,670 143,134
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBMEH (3,296) (2,296)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEEMETIRK - 4,175
Overseas tax paid EAEINRIE (892) (192)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REKEEK RS FHE 375,482 144,821
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %8R & HRER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

2007 2006
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FAT
(restated)
(E#5ER)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Acquisition of business WiHE 75 45 (369,262) =
Acquisition of interests in associates W hEHE & A~ Rl (278,520) -
Increase in properties under development 3 218 N (125,996) =
Additions to property, plant and equipment #73 - #4 & 2% &1 hn (50,077) (14,580)
Acquisition of additional interests IR A A
in subsidiaries M (7,800) (60,185)
Additions to prepaid lease payments TET AR E SR IEIE N (383) =
Decrease (increase) in pledged B RERT
bank deposits FoR A (5 an) 76,021 (118,622)
Interest received BUF & 42,070 25,921
Proceeds from disposal of interest HEBEAT
in an associate PSR IE 26,055 =
Dividend received from associates S SNE] S 4,790 12,573
Repayment of deferred consideration Lz 5] i W A
receivable RE 4,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE -
plant and equipment MEEAEFT1S /IR 1,973 49,192
Proceeds from disposal of other & H A T
intangible assets B EFTS IR 115 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WEEF B A B (HRRET IS 2
cash and cash equivalents acquired RehEREFMBEER) 46 - (200)
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate W iEHi= A F < EMEE - (160,211)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash and ~ HEMBAR GFIBRAEEZ
cash equivalents disposed of RekAeEFEEEE) 47 - 782,240
Dividend received from a jointly Bk R
controlled entity HIERR B - 7,000
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RE (AR BREEL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZHEEFREE (677,014) 523,128
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2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(EF7IER)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BESEE
New bank and other borrowings raised STEREIRTT R E A S 1,198,106 557,183
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG TS FEIE 58,158 25
Contribution from minority shareholders RELVERPRRLE 50,261 10,525
Repayment of bank and other borrowings B IRIT R A AR (850,715) (575,376)
Interest paid BEIHE (39,808) (27,787)
Loan repaid to a minority shareholder BELHRR ZER (31,821) (217,756)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company B4R AR Z %8 (19,531) (968,139)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BB AT
of a subsidiary DEIRER 2 IR E (12,075) (14,856)
Share repurchase & Bl fE (4,381) (14,478)
Repayment of amounts due to minority BERENIE
shareholders R FRIB (3,597) -
Share issue expenses BITRGOFAX (635) (274)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RE (AR BEEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2SR 343,962 (1,250,933)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN HeREFHSEHEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B O 2) F5E 42,430 (582,984)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SR 3R
RATE CHANGES [EY -7 7,866 1,450
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRERE
BROUGHT FORWARD LEBE A AR 666,038 1,247,572
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BeRERS
CARRIED FORWARD LEHEALE 716,334 666,038
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BeRERE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SHEBEREEDIN
Short term bank deposits G HASR1TIE X 441,769 526,504
Bank balances and cash RITHEGENIR S 294,997 139,534
Bank overdrafts H|ITEX (20,432) =
716,334 666,038

Pild resmsmas 2007Fm > 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B f&sRzRMizE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

1.

116 <

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and its principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
are set out in note 57.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Prior to 1 April 2006, purchase of additional interest in a subsidiary
was recognised by calculating the goodwill or discount as the
difference between the consideration paid for the additional
interest acquired and the carrying amount of the net assets of the
subsidiary attributable to the acquired interest. In the current year,
management reassessed the Group’s accounting policy on
purchase of additional interest in a subsidiary. The Company has
changed its accounting policy for recognising such acquisition.
Under the new accounting policy, the Group revalues, at the date
of acquisition, all of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary to fair value and recognises the fair value change
attributable to the acquired interest by charging such amount to
the capital reserve. Goodwill or discount arising on the purchase of
the additional interest is calculated as the difference between the
additional cost of the interest acquired and the increase in the
Group’s relevant interest, based on the fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary. The directors consider that
this policy (fair value for all transactions under business
combinations and acquisitions of additional interests in
subsidiaries) presents a more meaningful information based on the
nature of the underlying operations of the subsidiary.

This change in accounting policy had no impact on the profit for
the current year.

Prior year adjustments were made to account for the change in
accounting policy for the year ended 31 March 2006 in respect of
the acquisition of an additional 15% interest in subsidiaries
investing in Yangkou Port. The financial effects of the change in
accounting policy are summarised as follows:
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2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (continued) 2. BItBEER(E)

(a) Effects on the result for the prior year: () HBIFEZFE2E !
2006
HK$'000
FATT
Profit attributable to equity holders JRFIARA Rz kR B A ISR
of the Company, originally stated 310,487
Decrease in recognition of discount on acquisition FERIEZEEHIEB AR 2 BEER D
of additional interest in subsidiaries (8,461)
Decrease in fair value of derivative ESRMITAANFEEBRY
financial instruments (23,165)
Decrease in profit for the year FNm R (31,626)
Profit attributable to equity holders B2 R EIIRERE B AL & A
of the Company, as restated 278,861
(b) Effects on the consolidated balance sheet as at 1 April (b) HRA—ZZRFMNA—BZFREEER
2005: BRZETE
As at Effect of As at
1.4.2005 change in 1.4.2005
(originally accounting (restated)
stated) policy
e RZTTHF
mA—A SEBUR MmA—HR
(1R51)) Bz eE (BFF8R)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Effects on asset: BETE
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRIEA 20,792 232,917 253,709
Effects on equity: 2
Retained profits R R 301,116 232,917 534,033
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. ER#FARLIETE B KRS ZER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new standards, amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are effective for the
Group’s financial year from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007. The
adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been recognised.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of these standards, amendment or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 23

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives*

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment®

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions®

Service Concession Arrangements’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

120 <

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries/business is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,

the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference
between the fair values and the carrying values of the underlying
assets and liabilities attributable to the additional interest in a
subsidiary acquired is charged to capital reserve. Goodwill or
discount arising on the purchase of the additional interest is
calculated as the difference between the additional cost of the
interest acquired and the increase in the Group’s interest, based
on the fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions of a subsidiary or an associate
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the
date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
identified impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary/
business is presented separately in the consolidated balance
sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate
which is accounted for using the equity method is included in the
cost of the investment of the associate and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary/business, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Discount on acquisition

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary/
business/additional interest in a subsidiary represents the excess
of the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of the acquisition. Discount
on acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEEFEE (B

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Project under development/properties under development
under current asset

Project under development and properties under development
under current asset which are held for future sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of
land/sea use rights, development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct attributable expenses.

Properties under development under non-current asset
Properties under development for purpose not yet determined are
carried in the consolidated financial statements at cost less any
identified impairment loss. Cost of properties under development
includes, where appropriate, interest capitalised. No depreciation
has been provided for properties under development.

Prepaid lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land or sea
are accounted for as operating leases and are stated at cost and
released over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes
any long-term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Interests in jointly controlled entities (continued)

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is
recognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy the
definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair
value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of other intangible assets below).

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
other than from business combinations are recognised at cost.
After initial recognition, other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and identified impairment loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
such intangible assets is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the other intangible assets is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other intangible assets (continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of such intangible assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for that other intangible assets in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories, including gas for sales and consumables, are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
price. The accounting policies adopted are set out below:

. EEEFHBEE)

Hitb B EE (B)

R EEERERED - AIEEREER
BELER 2 Bt E SR - ERLLM
12N BREET RIS R EF L EHZ
BEERIREBENREEE ZREE -
BB RR I B BN RER AU o

I\

1t
FE (BREAHE SRR IERER) RKA
KA BIFEME 2 BEEIIRR - KAR
IR AER B - ATRIERFETIIR B
FBEGRRT AT HEERETHER
WRZ BRI REE -

ETETH
HEREERIVERTAZAH &t
EENERABHNARGRAEERABRA
R - REERBBEVNIRAFEER
B WRERETEREENSRAB A
FEEFSALERZEREERERAR
BRON BIRBIE 2R B - RN HER
ARt EEXTRAE QER)
ZAHEEME - WERAFEERAR
DR EHEENCRBBEZEREHAER
HRA - AR ARAER -

TREE

AEE 2z RMEET DR ERRELGK
B [BATFEEFSABRERZERE
El RIAIfHEZSRMEE] - IEER
BEZRAREERR S A ELEER M
IHHER - AR BEBEEANRTSRAHIE
PIFrtEL 2 SRR N EEZ EMEER
B o R SR ERETIN TX -

Pild resmsmas 2o007Fm >

125
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including bank deposits, bank
balances, loans receivable, deferred consideration receivable,
debtors and amounts due from related companies/associates) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on available-for-sale
equity investments will not reverse in profit or loss in subsequent
periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities (including creditors, amounts due
to associates/minority shareholders, loans from minority
shareholders, deferred consideration payable and bank and other
borrowings) are measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, subsequent to initial recognition.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value
on the contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as financial assets/
liabilities held for trading and are recognised in profit or loss as
they arise.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not carried at fair value with change in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

128 <

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment (other than goodwill and intangible asset with
indefinite lives)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
expenses immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance
sheet date on the same basis as contract revenue. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that they have been agreed with the
customer. Provision is made for expected losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profit less
recognised loss exceed progress billings, the excess is shown as
amount due from a customer for contract work. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profit less recognised loss, the excess is shown as amount due to
a customer for contract work.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from a construction contract is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
value of work certified during the year.

Project management service income and facilities management
service income is recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from distribution of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) is
recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised upon the execution
of a binding sales agreement.

Revenue from sale of securities is recognised when the sale
contract becomes unconditional.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
right to receive payment has been established.

Service income is recognised at the time when services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEEFEE (B

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense or capitalised in contracts in progress,
where appropriate, when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEEFEE (B

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
translation reserve.

Share-based payment transactions

In relation to share options granted and vested before 1 April
2005, the Group did not recognise the financial effect of those
share options until they were exercised.

For share options granted to directors and employees of the Group
after 1 April 2005, the fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment reserve.
At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other information. The
key sources of estimation uncertainty that may significantly affect
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed below.

Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2007, a deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax
losses of HK$734,000,000 has not been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet due to unpredictability of future profit
streams on those subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future
profits generated by those subsidiaries are more than expected, a
material deferred tax credit would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which the tax
losses are utilised.

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6a. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include bank deposits,
bank balances, debtors, loans receivable, available-for-sale
investments, investments held for trading, conversion option,
creditors, amounts due from (to) associates/related companies/
minority shareholders, loans from minority shareholders and
bank and other borrowings. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6a. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to the fixed-rate debt obligations,
including bank and other borrowings. For the variable-
rate borrowings, it is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group’s interest-bearing financial assets
(including loans receivable, amounts due from
associates/related companies and bank balances) have
exposure to cash flow interest rate due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest.

The Group has not entered into interest rate hedging
contracts. However, management monitors closely the
interest rate exposure and will consider using interest
rate swap should the need arise.

(ii) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
monetary item will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Certain receivables of the
Group are denominated in foreign currencies such as
Australian dollars (“A$”) which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(iii) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity security price risk on its
available-for-sale and held for trading investments.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

(b) Credit risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are bank deposits
and bank balances, loans receivable, debtors and amounts
due from related companies/associates.

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank balances is

limited because the counterparties are banks with good
reputation.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ®RMIAE ()
6a. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6a. MEAMEEBERECEK (B)
(continued) (b) EERB: (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) REBERZHHFRERITEEE

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties is:

— the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet; and

— the amount of contingent liabilities as disclosed in note
50.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers and
significant concentration of credit risk by geographic
location in Hong Kong. In view of their credit standings,
good payment record in the past and long term
relationships with the Group, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is minimal. At the
balance sheet date, the outstanding balances from the five
largest customers amounted to approximately
HK$541,617,000.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from
related companies and associates, the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from default of counterparties is limited as
the counterparties have a good credit standing and the
Company does not expect any significant loss for
uncollected advances from these entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6a. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance
between the continuity of funding and the flexibility through
the use of bank and other borrowings. In addition, banking
facilities have been put in place for general funding
purposes.

6b. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions; and

the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using
quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, the fair
value of a non-option derivative is estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis and the applicable yield
curve. For option-based derivatives, option pricing models
are adopted.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

7. TURNOVER
Turnover represents the total value of contract work certified and
the gross proceeds received and receivable from project
management services in connection with contract work rendered

by the Group, service income from facilities management, revenue

from LPG distribution, property rental and related income, income

from loans receivable, dividend income from investments and

gross proceeds from sale of securities/properties during the year

and is analysed as follows:
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7. TURNOVER (continued) 7. EEBEGE)

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue from construction contracts BEESLIWE 4,325,799 3,075,871
Sale of securities HEES 137,966 297,678
Revenue from LPG distribution o 8RR R AU 110,414 -
Income from loans receivable R E F U A 77,466 86,129
Sale of properties SEk=L7/E 98,000 8,759
Facilities management service income A%t I AR IS WA 17,204 5516
Project management service income 15 B B RIS WA 9,375 26,776
Dividend income from listed FEEE LMRE
investments held for trading Z R BUA 2,819 3,024
Property rental and related income Y E & RABREWA 2,635 36,731
4,781,678 3,540,484
8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. XBRHEDIP
Business segments E
For management purposes, the Group’s operations are currently REEFTAMS ASEZEBEHRL
organised into seven operating divisions, namely management AEEHM DRl AEREER  -HEE
contracting, project management, facilities management, port and B RmEE B0 RERBFREYN
infrastructure development and logistics, LPG distribution, treasury BICERRDIE - EFRERYERE -
investment and property investment. These divisions form the WEEPIERAEEEREEDIBERZ
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. B%E o
In the previous year, the Group’s operations were organised into REFHRH  AEBEZ2EB D AEES
seven segments, namely building construction, civil engineering, B oRlRETESE  £ATE - HAE
project management, facilities management, port and B REEE BOREEREE  EFR
infrastructure development, treasury investment and property ERMERE - RAFERN - BRERE
investment. During the year, management has reorganised the KESHER - HEFRERTAIRS
operating segments by grouping the building construction and MAEEERSE LR ZHHEEREE
civil engineering segments into the management contracting [EHESIZS -
segment. Comparative segment information has been restated
accordingly.
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 8. ERKHESZB(E)
Business segments (continued) ES S N6
Business segment information for the year ended 31 March 2007 HE_TTHF=-A=+t—HIEFEZ*
is presented below: FHBERZSAT ¢
Port and
infrastructure
Management Project Facilities development LPG Treasury Property
contracting management management and logistics distribution investment investment Eliminations Consolidated
EORER il

ARER  ERER  BEER  RREMR  BMRDE  BRRR  MRRR 48 fe
HKBOOO  HKBOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000
TAT Thr TAT ThT TAT TAT ThT TAT TAT

TURNOVER gXE
External sales HIMHE 4305799 9375 17,204 - 110,414 218251 100,635 - 4781678
Inter-segment sales P EEEE 159% 12215 7423 1264 - - - (22.498) -
4,327,39% 21590 24,627 1,264 110414 218,251 100,635 (22498) 4781678
RESULTS £+
Segment results R 58733 2797 (3,008) (14472) 3304 173,680 13,863 - 234,897
Unallocated expenses  AAEAEZFx (158,878)
Interest income FEHA 4444
Finance costs B (23,597)
Discount on acquisition  WEE 7%
of business LAHE - - - - 375 - - - 375
Gainondisposal o~ (HEEEAT]
inferest in an associate B4/ M = = = = = 5,067 - - 5067
Share of resuls {0
of associates i 1299 681 - 149717 - - 71,892 - 223,549
Share ofresultsof ~ B{EEFEH
jointly controlled KExE
entities (642) - - - - - - - (642)
Profit before taxation ~ BFiAn&R| 326,595
Taxation credt RlES 50552
Profit for the year FEET 377,147
Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no D802 B2 SHE R Tyt Th (B W ER 3k (fim 3z
market price was available, at terms determined and agreed by AIH2E 2 ME) REHEE RFARZHER
both parties. WZHR o
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 8. ERKHESZB(E)

Business segments (continued) ES S N6
At 31 March 2007 RZZET+F=A=+—H
Port and
infrastructure
Management Project Facilities ~ development LPG Treasury Property
contracting management management andlogistics  distribution investment investment Consolidated
BORER it
RRER BRER REEE  HREMR  DRROE EHRE S &a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000
THL ThL ThEL TEL TEL T ThL ThL

ASSETS BE
Segment assefs HEEE 1,966,433 23,329 4246 3,161,018 308,674 678,049 51,729 6,193,478
Inferests in associates BanAES 29038 3376 - 605,179 - - 72641 710,234
Interests in jointly R
controlled entties HEER 1928 - - - - - - 1928
Unallocated assets AOREE 715807
Total assets BEE 7,601,447
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities N84k 1,844,278 1,845 2265 665,139 33,712 2769 346 2,550,354
Unallocated liabilties AoREE 1,822,044
Total liabilties a5k 4372598
OTHER INFORMATION ~ Eft&#
Capital additions ok {lapd
attributable to segment ERER 19,418 46 1,300 401552 128,491 - 336 551,143
Unallocated capital additions A7 A AR 3743
554,886
Depreciation and ok {lapd
amortisation afiributable  #7&
to segment R&sH 5853 4 169 10,085 3529 44 1 19,685
Unallocated depreciation ~ AARHTE
and amortisation R&H 2584
22,269
Impairment loss on e
receivables HEEE 615 - - - - 18,000 - 18615
Unallocated amount AOREE 13
18,628
Loss on disposal of property, HIE4% + #H
plant and equipment &L 979 - - - - - - 979
Unallocated amount AREE 2)
977
Reversal of impairment BUERE

loss on receivables BiEED - = = = = 30,324 = 30,324
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 8. ERKHESZB(E)

'
140 < Prig)

Business segments (continued) ES S N6
Business segment information for the year ended 31 March 2006 HETT \F=A=+t—HIEFEZ*
is presented below: FHBERZSAT ¢
Port and
Management Project Facilities infrastructure Treasury Property
contracting management management development  investment investment Eliminations Consolidated
BOR
REER HRER RmER ERER EXRE NERE it &e
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ThL ThL Thr ThI T ThL ThL ThL
(restated)
(B3I
TURNOVER EXE
External sales HohEeE 3075871 2,776 5516 - 386,831 45,490 - 3540484
Inter-segment sales NHEEE 283 - 1471 - 3481 15515 (20.750) -
3,076,154 26,776 6,987 - 390,312 61,005 (20,750) 3,040,484
RESULTS <
Segment results AL 120,209 16,049 159 - 79922 12,161 - 229,934
Unallocated other income AEDEZEMMA 82,289
Unallocated expenses NG A5 (128,289)
Interest income HEMA 26,09
Finance costs HANA (16,710)
Increase in fair value of ik
derivative financial IARYEE
instruments i = - - 17,.8% - - - 17,895
Increase i fair value of REME
investment properties AT EESEM - - - - - 85,400 - 85,400
(Loss) gain on disposal HEMEAT
of subsidiaries (BB a (4,456) - - - - 58,462 - 54,006
Gain on disposal of HEMEAR
subsidaries not 1%#\“*
attributable to segment bty 6,750
Reversal of impairment AR E AR
loss on interest in an EBRlAE
associate B - - - - 26914 - - 26,914
Share of results of associates  EEBENFEE 1,043 1,106 = = (27,949) 629 - (25171)
Share of results of BIERFTA
associates not "*BZ iE
attributable to segment NAllE 7987
Share of resuls of - {opaE|
jointly controlled entities EHlEE % - - - - - - %
Profit before taxation Rt ADRA] 367,128
Taxation charge bt (52,804)
Profitfor the year FEEF 314,324

Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no

market price was available, at terms determined and agreed by

both parties.
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 8. ERKHESZB(E)

Business segments (continued) ES S N6
At 31 March 2006 NI F=A=1+—H
Port and
Management Project Facilities  infrastructure Treasury Property
contracting management management development investment investment ~ Consolidated
E0R
AEER BRER REEE ER%R 55 VES T &a
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
ThTL ThL T ThL ThT TEL Thn
ASSETS gE
Segment assets DiEE 1,414,854 45,980 3639 2,254,969 960,849 78494 4,758,785
Interests in associates Nl 32,366 2564 - - 375,899 628 411,457
Interests in jointly PG
controlled entiies e 2570 - - - - - 2510
Unallocated assets RAREE 808,866
Total assets EE 5,981,678
LIABILITIES Bf
Segment iabites et 1210817 5,283 1,895 23218 9,136 43674 1,621,083
Unallocated liabilties AAEEE 1,350,658
Totallibiltes e 2971741
OTHER INFORMATION HfpEH
Capital addifons PR
atirbutable fo segment AR 5175 204 6 3,782 259 1,008 12827
Unallocated capial addtions AARASER 27%
15,553
Depreciation and amortisaton 2 &{E2
atiributable to segment fERER 13680 7 U - 1329 7693 2811
Unallocated depreciation RAENE
and amartisation ¢ i 6,369
29,180
Impairment loss on receivables  EAGUERREHE - - - - 15,000 - 15,000
Gain on disposal of property HENE - AR
plant and equipment REE 19953 - - - - - 19953
Unallocated amount RAOLEE (26)
19927
Reversal of impaiiment EYGIERE

loss on receivables BEEE - = - - 14173 - 14173
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 8. ERKHESZB(E)
Geographical segments HWEDH
The Group’s operations are located in the People’s Republic of REE 2 EBARREARENE (AR
China other than Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”) , Hong Kong SEPIBRIN ([FRE]) ~ BEREP -
and Macau.
TRIZMETIHE S (Tem AR IR
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by i) IR AR B L R 2 9T
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/
services:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Hong Kong B 3,086,507 3,113,854
Macau JBPY 1,561,006 389,050
The PRC H 134,165 37,580
4,781,678 3,540,484
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment INTRREECFEMRES - HHFE
assets and capital additions, analysed by the geographical area in EREERE AR 2D

which the assets are located:

Carrying amount

of segment assets Capital additions
2 HPE ERREE BERER
2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FTAT TR TAET

Hong Kong B 1,734,243 2,134,102 16,952 8,841
Macau JEPY 709,855 142,293 - =
The PRC e 3,749,380 2,482,390 534,191 3,986

6,193,478 4,758,785 551,143 12,827
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HgrA

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FA&T
(restated)
(E5ER)
Interest income SN 42,070 25,921
Imputed interest income on deferred FEWCEIE (X AE 2 HEE H S U A
consideration receivable 374 175
Recovery of interest and legal expenses W BB st AT S A El 2
in connection with a court action against & e 2 EEFTAL
the vendor of a former associate FEREEER - 82,289
Reversal of impairment loss on receivables FEULER B R (E E51a EE] 30,324 14,173
Increase in fair value of listed investments BIEEE 2 Fhig&E
held for trading NFEEKE 83,444 636
Increase in fair value of derivative PTEERTA
financial instruments NEEEE - 17,895
Increase in fair value of investment properties & ¥ A FEEE N - 85,400
Net exchange gain b 5 F R e 5,712 =
Others Eih 3,444 43
165,368 226,532
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Ht1 & A
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#5 FHT
Impairment loss on receivables JEW G IB BB 18,628 15,000
Decrease in fair value of conversion FEBE RIS 2
option embedded in loan receivable HPE RN B ER D 1,650 =
Penalty of interest charged on capital gain &5 BB & A )
tax in connection with disposal of a ZEIEER
former associate ZEE - 46,500
Accruals of withholding tax on dividend HARR &G
income in connection with a former Z IR EMA
investment 2 MESTTRAIT 45,415 =
Net exchange loss HNISHE H 518 - 16,428
Others Hth 3,375 934
69,068 78,862
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e BRI

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. ER A
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB5 Fir
Borrowing costs on: BENRA
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ARAFRNEHEE
within five years ZIRITIER 23,349 17,763
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable BERNAFRNEHEER
within five years ZIRTTERR 8,706 =
Loan from a minority shareholder REDEREZER 155 8,392
Others EHi 7,598 1,632
39,808 27,787
Less: Amount capitalised in respect W BEEEERN
of contracts in progress TREARZEER (3,307) (2,685)
Amount capitalised in respect of BERZRPIAR
project under development B2 H5E (11,710) (8,392)
Amount capitalised in respect of BAEERAPYZE
properties under development B EE (1,194) =
23,597 16,710

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the actual borrowing

costs incurred by the entities invested in the project and properties

during the year.
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. ES5M <€

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2006: nine) BEfNSENEE (CETRF: NR)ES
directors are as follows: BEAZMEOT
Salaries Retirement
and benefit Share-

other Discretionary scheme based
Name of directors Fees benefits bonus contributions payment Total

MR RIKEH DY
Y s Hitig A MERA HE 8 BN Rt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT TAL TAT TAL

2007 ZBRtF
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom = 360 4,300 - 319 5,402 10,381
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles FRBIaE 320 = = = = 320
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph JERAE 787 = = = = 787
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest Zheg 380 - - - - 380
Chan Shu Kin PR 439 - - - - 439
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ~ 2H4 227 = = = 1,174 1,401
Li Chang An FER 68 = = = 1,274 1,342
2,581 4,300 - 319 7,850 15,050
2006 —BERE
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2SR 200 2,700 836 180 - 3,916
Chan Fut Yan BREE 4 1,053 - 105 - 1,162
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna AxE 4 1,053 - 105 - 1,162
Cheung Hon Kit SRR 4 = = = = 4
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles BREl3 180 368 = 37 = 585
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph [EIRAHE 488 = = = = 488
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest EIE 312 = = = = 312
Chan Shu Kin BRiBI 2 308 = = = = 308
Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent SREL 4 - = = = 4
1,504 5174 836 427 - 7,941

The above discretionary bonus is performance related incentive LB ERAL T2 EAREEREFE 22

payment determined by reference to the results of the Group. BMETE 2 B RS -

None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year. FAREEMNESHEE IS -
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included
one director (2006: one director) of the Company, details of whose

emoluments are set out in note 12 above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2006: four)
highest paid individuals, who are employees of the Group, are as

follows:

13. EEM <

AEBRAFERAUZSHASBRENF
NEEZ —RER(ZTTRF: —FE
=) - HB& B E I 1257E, o

HpEAEERE 2mM4A (=

TEAE [

R)REBHABZEMSOT

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries and other benefits Fre R EAmET 8,120 6,141
Discretionary bonus B ELEAT 1,102 2,996
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREFIFT B TR 154 159
Share-based payment expense LA AD S (T 5RIR < B 3,645 926
13,021 10,222

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REME AT

Number of employees

BEAE
2007 2006
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0015% 7T — 3,000,000 7T - 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7 — 5,500,000/ 7T 1 -
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five

highest paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.
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14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 14. BRBL AR R

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAR FT
Profit before taxation has been arrived FRAT AT A 2 HIBR -
at after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets B A
(included in distribution costs) (BN A SHRAR) 490 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN 5 6,340 3,914
Cost of inventories recognised as HRAEZIHZ
an expense FERA 174,652 5,149
Cost of construction works recognised FIVER <
as an expense FEETIRACR 4,192,824 2,879,762
Depreciation of property, plant and Vs - W B
equipment (note (a) below) IrE (T MiEE(a) 21,779 29,180
Impairment loss on debtors FEW R IE R E &R
(included in administrative expenses) FIAITEER) - 12,161
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYIZE - Bk
and equipment Biicd i 977 =
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KETHRIES -
Premises BF 16,925 2,423
Plant and machinery Wt 2 5% 46 1,134 1,252
Release of prepaid lease payments R TRNHEESIE 1,031 2,677
Share of taxation of associates Bl ARl TiIE
(included in share of results of associates) (FIABEBE & AR L) 16,206 193
Staff costs (note (b) below) BT (T iE(b)) 151,386 118,589
and after crediting: WEFTA -
Gain on disposal of investments HERIEER
held for trading 22BN 6,028 13,818
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - iRk
plant and equipment 2l 2 e - 19,927
Rental income under operating leases KEFRL 2
in respect of: HEWA -
Premises, net of outgoings BT - 2R
of HK$1,924,000 1,924,000/ 7T (ZEE /RN F ¢
(2006: HK$14,557,000) 14,557,000/7T) - 22,174
Plant and machinery WA 2 5% A 17 589
Total interest income FEVSSNT N 100,714 107,482
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14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

14. BRBLADE R (48)

Notes: HiaE -
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: (a) 13 - ¥ S22 & -
Amount provided for the year FERERE 24,255 34,591
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BIEEEEHNIRENR
contracts in progress pd - ¢ (1,491) (4,106)
Amount capitalised in respect of BERRFIHE EAR
project under development 2R (973) (1,305)
Amount capitalised in respect of BHERRFYEER
properties under development 2R (12) =
21,779 29,180
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
(b) Staff costs: (b) BT ¢
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) EEME HaE12) 15,050 7,941
Other staff costs: HtBETH :
Salaries and other benefits Ko B b 4@ A 321,167 252,361
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RRBEFIFTEIEER - RBRR WK
net of forfeited contributions of 1,808,000/ 7T (ZZ T/~ 4F -
HK$1,808,000 (2006: HK$2,854,000) 2,854,000/ 7T) 10,263 7,288
Share-based payment expense AR 25k E 2 B R 15,233 5,082
361,713 272,672
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BIEEREEHATIRER
contracts in progress ZHFE (202,805) (150,856)
Amount capitalised in respect of BEERPIEBE EXR
project under development 25 (6,495) (3,227)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEERPYIFEER
properties under development 25 (1,027) —
151,386 118,589
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15. TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE 15. Bl (E L) 2 H

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The (credit) charge comprises: TIE () T H B -
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BAFEH
Current year REF 4,325 4,101
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFERE@BZ) TR (268) 1,877
4,057 5,978
Overseas taxation: TFHNELIE
Current year REE 9,109 3,332
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFEREGRZ) TR (565) 40,000
8,544 43,332
Deferred taxation (Note 42) IRAETRIE (Mi5E42) (63,153) 3,494
Taxation attributable to the Company ARa R EME
and its subsidiaries RNEELTIIA (50,552) 52,804
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the BANGBDRBEARFE 2 (h 5T R TS
estimated assessable profits for the year. AMIRIAEA17 5% (ZFFRF  17.5%) &t
oo
Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions. NG IEIRIR A B R AR R E R 2 B R AT
o o
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15. TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE (continued)

150 <

The taxation (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement as
follows:

B BBwRME

15. Bk (E k) ZH (&)
RNEEF 2 FRIE (K R) I BEKE RSB
BRADR A2 SERAT -

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
(restated)
(EFIR)
Profit before taxation B 5t AT A 326,595 367,128
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 17.5% & BFEHHER17.5%
(2006: 17.5%) (ZETREF 17.5%) FTE 2 IR 57,154 64,247
Tax effect of share of results of associates/ — Hif{hEi= A&l
jointly controlled entities &&T%%FZHT& (39,008) 3,003
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ETRWTJETTTD/BZF’#JQ
for tax purpose 2SR 2 24,305 23,666
Tax effect of income not taxable RS E B ER A
for tax purpose 2RI R (22,174) (64,823)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RMEMERTRISEE 2 RIS 2 19,170 12,572
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RUEMER AT HIR B R =58
difference not recognised W 3,053 2,087
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses R ERTARERZ
previously not recognised MIEEE 2 I E (22,747) (23,225)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible B SRR IER
temporary difference previously not AR e R = K8
recognised 22 (1,158) (9,207)
Decrease in deferred tax liability resulting AT tF= AEM 2T E
from change in tax rate enacted BHEICETHEARZ
in March 2007 of certain subsidiaries BLETHIBEERL (62,666) —
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FE M VAR KL T 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEAR 2 TR E 2 M E (5,648) 2,607
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFEREBZ) TR (833) 41,877
Taxation (credit) charge for the year REFEBIE FER) X (50,552) 52,804

Pursuant to the PRC enterprise income tax law passed by the
Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007, the new
enterprise income tax rates for domestic and foreign enterprises
are unified at 25% effective from 1 January 2008. Foreign
enterprises which are entitled to special incentives will be given
concessions throughout a 5-year transition period, if applicable.
Management has assessed this change in tax law on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position and the impact on
deferred taxation has set out in note 42.

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 42.
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16. DISTRIBUTION 16. 2K

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Dividends recognised as distributions to RERNERBRAR G S
equity holders of the Company during the year: B ADIRZAZE. :
Interim dividend paid for 2007 ENZZETLFHERE
— HK1.5 cents (2006: HK1.5 cents) *ﬂﬂﬂ 571l
per share (ZZZTRF - 1.581l) 22,069 20,513
Special cash dividend paid for 2006 ENZZETRFRLIESRE
— HK70.0 cents per share — &% 70.0781L - 957,177
Special dividend by way of distribution of the REBERBERTREE
value derived from the Group’s divestment BRARIFFEEBEZAR
of China Strategic Holdings Limited IR RIAR S — A% 22. 211l
— HK22.2 cents (2006: Nil) per share (_ =Z /ﬁ i3 325,660 =
Final dividend paid for 2006 BN ZZETRFREBE
— HK1.5 cents (2005: HK1.5 cents) — &% 5781
per share (Z2EZRF 15581 21,939 20,380
369,668 998,070
Dividends proposed in respect of current year: ~ AEEHEDRALE.
Final dividend proposed for 2007 TR FRIRREIRE
— HK1.5 cents (2006: HK1.5 cents) — &% 5781
per share (ZZZTR]EF - 1.581l) 22,393 21,969

Of the distribution made during the year, approximately
HK$15,595,000 (2006: HK$13,194,000) and HK$8,882,000 (2006:
HK$16,737,000) were settled in shares under the Company’s scrip
dividend schemes announced by the directors of the Company on
18 September 2006 and 11 January 2007 in respect of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006 and the interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 September 2006,
respectively, and were credited to the retained profits of the
Company during the year.

On 4 May 2006, the directors of the Company resolved to declare
a special dividend by way of distribution (“PYI Distribution
Scheme”) of the value derived from the Group’s divestment of
China Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”, an associate
of the Group as at 31 March 2006) to the Company’s shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on 26 May 2006 upon the completion of the group
restructuring of China Strategic (“Group Restructuring”).

FRNIRE A 49515,595,00078 7T (ZFZ/N
£ : 13,194,000/ 7T) 8,882,000/ T (=
TTNAE ¢ 16,737,00087T)  TIIREBAR
RIEER _ZEENFNA+/\BHEZE
TTRNF=A —+*E|thﬁrzifiﬁﬁﬂ
MR —ZETF—A+— El?dzaifj z
NEAAZTBIENEARZHHEREA
2 AR RIARRN BT EIARRMD A © 1t
HREENERBANRTREEF -

RZZEZRNFRAMAB - NAAIESZER
EIRERIRE - AR B R
REBARAR([HE]  AEER-ZT
NEZA=T—HZEERA) 1S fﬁfﬁ
KT ZETREAAZTRBRIEAR
RE &Mz AR aﬁxﬁ(fﬁiﬁ’ﬁ/ﬁﬁ
2l - EATREEEA(REEHE]) T
PR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

16. DISTRIBUTION (continued) 16. 2k (4&)

On 19 May 2006, China Strategic completed the Group
Restructuring which involved (i) the transfer of all its subsidiaries
carrying on property development and investment holding
business and investing in vessels for sand mining and all
associates carrying on manufacturing and marketing of tires and
providing package tour, travel and other related services to Group
Dragon Investments Limited (“GDI”); and (ii) the distribution in
specie of shares in GDI (“GDI Shares”) to its shareholders,
including the Group, on the basis of one GDI Share for every
China Strategic consolidated share held.

Upon completion of the Group Restructuring, the Group was
entitled to receive 129,409,897 GDI Shares and Hanny Holdings
Limited (“Hanny”, a then substantial shareholder of China Strategic
and a related company of the Group) made a voluntary offer (“GDI
Offer”) to the shareholders of GDI to acquire all the GDI Shares on
the basis of either (a) 1 share in Hanny (“Hanny Share”) plus
HK$1.8 in cash for every 5 GDI Shares; or (b) a 2% 5-year
convertible bond issued by Hanny with face value of HK$15 each
(“Hanny Bonds”) for every 5 GDI Shares.

Under the PYI Distribution Scheme, for every 500 shares held, the
Company'’s shareholders were entitled to receive the value derived
from 40 GDI Shares in the form of either (a) 8 Hanny Shares plus
HK$14.4 in cash; or (b) 8 Hanny Bonds.

Based on the election of the Company’s shareholders on 16 June
2006, the Company announced that holders of approximately
311,232,201 shares and 1,153,100,543 shares in the Company
elected for Hanny Shares plus cash and for Hanny Bonds,
respectively. Consequently, the Company accepted the GDI Offer
in respect of the entire 129,409,897 GDI Shares held by it and
distributed to its shareholders special dividend in respect of
117,143,920 GDI Shares. These GDI shares entitled the
shareholders to receive in total the following:

(a) an aggregate of 4,979,616 Hanny Shares plus HK$8,963,000 in
cash; and

(b) an aggregate face value of HK$276,737,000 Hanny Bonds.
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“EEXFAATNAR  AREREES
M FR()BHRE T 2R EMERER
BRERAEG MRERRDH - UAEHER
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BRAR ([FHEED) + R()EYMDIKARELZ
Betn ([B¥RERRAn)) TRECR (BREAKE) -
EEBBRHA —RPRE G TR —
IREFRERR D °

REBEAZKE  A"EEBEH
129,400,807 ik EfEENR () - MiREEE AR
AR ([$RE] - RRERZEEZRR) R
BEREAR SRR U BE 2 BPAE e IR (D 2 B FB I
s ((BEEER)) 28 R(@)BE5R

BERR (D H1 AR SR AR ([SREAR(D)) AN1.8
BT E - sl(b)FERRBERERR (DI (5 8 L
1T 2 EfE1578 7T 2 2% A F H R pR 5
([BREEH]) -

RIBRED RS - ANQ R FRHH500
BRAS A R Ikt B RE MR ER A0 AR RFRE R (0 PTEE
&2 BE © 35 (a)sRR iR EAR D IN14.478
TS - Hi(b)spiREES -

RZZERFNATRE - BRERDFR
RzERE ARQRAEMDAELD
311,232,201A% & 1,153,100,543% A A 7]
Wiy 2 158 AN EEZREER SR () iR & Kk
BIZMEREIES « BR - AAREMR
H P2 86129,400,807 R BF Bl (D i 2 B
U EREZ - YR ERRIKMNESER
117,143,9200% B+ BEAR (D FT 1S BB 2 Fr Bl AR
BT
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16.

17.

DISTRIBUTION (continued)

The directors consider that the fair value of a GDI Share, when
liquidated in the form of Hanny Bond, is HK$2.78 by reference to
the valuation report dated 19 May 2006 prepared by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer not connected with the
Group. As such, the special dividend is equivalent to about
HK22.2 cents per share of the Company.

Details of the above transactions were set out in the Company’s

circular and announcement dated 29 May 2006 and 16 June 2006,

respectively.

The amount of the final dividend proposed for the year ended 31
March 2007, which will be in the form of scrip with a cash option,
has been calculated by reference to the 1,492,848,407 issued
shares as at the date of this report.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year is based on the following data:

16. 2k (&)
BERR - 2 KMTERBRBR A
(B AN BB AR E 2 BN (S 1ERD) FT
RUBHAR—ZTERFAAT LB ZMHE
W ASREESFRERE - BERD
ZAFEEAR2.78 T o Bt - RIS
HERFRRAR B #I22. 2781 -

PR SHRARABRAR-TTRF
AZThBZEBHEBEAR—TTRER
RA+7RBZ A e

H

HE_ZTLHE=-A=+—HILFEHR
RERE R ABABRRBERCEEZER
X HED2EZRAREBEHE
1,492,848,407 R E BT MH MATHE °

17. SREF
AR R S B TR A T
ot e

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHIT
(restated)
(EF3IER)
Earnings attributable to equity holders STESREARREERAN 2
of the Company for the purposes of basic RAREEFEA
and diluted earnings per share e AT 345,665 278,861
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4 B R Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 17. B8R ER (B)

2007 2006
Number Number
of shares of shares
BHEE RHEE
Weighted average number of STEERERZF
ordinary shares for the purpose of 2 AR
basic earnings per share TR E S 1,462,372,940 1,367,759,328
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B EEE S BAR 2 UE -
Share options B S A 19,042,143 2,861,857

RECEsYive: Sk Pl
Rl RSk

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 1,481,415,083 1,370,621,185

TR S A BERE EHE —TTREF
ZA=T-RLEFESREAREERT

The following table summarised the impact on basic and diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2006 as a result of

change in accounting policy:

25/;

Basic Diluted

BEARZBR BERF

HK$ HK$

PEIT PBIT

Reported figures before adjustments AERRR HE 0.227 0.227
Adjustments arising from the change FEBEREN

in accounting policy PGS (0.023) (0.024)

Restated E]l 0.204 0.203

'
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. ¥13 - MWK R

Furniture,
Motor  fixtures and
Plant and LPG vehicles computer
Buildings machinery equipment  and vessels equipment Total
i RER BE %E
BF  HBERRE  BHRRE i REKZE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL THL
COST XA
At 1 April 2005 RZZTRENA—A 90,558 387,160 - 89,179 140,766 707,663
Exchange realignment R 20 - - 82 59 161
On disposal of subsidiaries L EHEA ] (89,678) (23,667) - (62,584) (70,413) (246,342)
Additions NE - 4,447 - 4,650 5,483 14,580
Disposals e = (309,615) = (5,880) (3,885) (319,380)
At 31 March 2006 RZEZ/F=f=1—-H 900 58,325 = 25,447 72,010 156,682
Exchange realignment & 7 1,192 - 9,940 699 156 11,987
On acquisition of business  FUEEEH 45,891 - 393,626 18,127 - 457 644
Additions AE 18,895 13,062 194 9,286 8,640 50,077
Disposals e (792) (9,106) - (1,562) (2,035) (13.495)
At 31 March 2007 RZZETtF=f=1-H 66,086 62,281 403,760 51,997 78771 662,895
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2005 RZZTRENA—A 15,192 325,786 - 32,825 96,582 470,385
Exchange realignment A 2 - - 8 7 17
Provided for the year REEER 1,445 13,833 - 7,922 11,391 34,591
Eliminated on disposal of ~ HEKEARE
subsidiaries Faf (16,438) (15,500) = (17,837) (44,221) (93,996)
Eliminated on disposals &% %8 - (280,813) - (5,655) (3,647) (290,115)
At 31 March 2006 KT/ F=f=1-H 201 43306 - 17,263 60,112 120,882
Exchange realignment AR 9 - - 54 37 100
Provided for the year RERRR 1414 5076 10,828 2,959 3,978 24,255
Eliminated on disposals &% %8 (223) (8,051) - (1,206) (1,085) (10,545)
At 31 March 2007 RZETtF=f=1-H 1401 40,331 10,828 19,070 63,062 134,692
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 March 2007 RZEZtE=F=1-H 64,685 21950 392,932 32927 15,709 528,203
At 31 March 2006 RZEERE=f=1—-H 699 15,019 - 8,184 11,808 35,800
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 18. YD % - MWK X E (B)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated Lt MM RREAEGENE - F
on a straight line basis at the following rates per annum: RN :
Buildings Over the remaining period of the relevant leases or fifty
years, whichever is shorter
1gF FERATE ERIEAE EA Sk A +F AR E R%E)
Plant and machinery 10%
WA, K2 7%
LPG equipment 5% - 10%
B AHRE R
Motor vehicles and vessels 5% — 20%
Y KA
Furniture and fixtures 8% — 20%
RARKE
Computer equipment 20% — 33'/3%
BRI
The carrying amount of buildings are analysed as follows: BFRmESTOT :
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Buildings erected on long-term HREIREIEE
leasehold land in the PRC THIFFIEIET 91 135
Buildings erected on medium-term Rl BRI S
leasehold land in the PRC T HbETIERIE S 64,594 564
64,685 699
19.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REY*
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
FAIR VALUE NFEE
Balance brought forward EBIAETT - 455,000
Increase in fair value during the year KEE 2 RN EEE N - 85,400
Disposals HE - (540,400)
Balance carried forward ST - -

156 < WI:) PY| Corporation Limited 2007 Annual Report



20. PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. R FIEE

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FA&T
Land and sea use rights ot R i (s R 1,747,484 1,649,337
Development costs ERKA 664,196 309,532
2,411,680 1,958,869
The amount relates to a development project located in Jiangsu heBEVRPEIHFECERIEES
Province, the PRC. The Group is undergoing the reclamation of B o AEEIFETESRGHMEE TIEL
certain parcels of land from the sea for development for future HAEREIERRLERAR - BiFLH
sale. According to the land/sea use certificates, the land/sea use B AR - R i, B AR
rights are granted for a term of not less than 50 years commencing ZEBE AN - ZTIUFRT DR0E ©
2004.
21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. BRI
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 April, at cost R A—H - EZERA - =
Expenditure incurred during the year (Note) — FREA 7% (i) 127,190 —
At 31 March, at cost R=A=+—8 ' &KAK 127,190 =
Represented by: (A
Amount shown under non-current assets P RIERENEE B 44,458 =
Amount shown under current assets IARBEE L &R 82,732 —
127,190 =
The amount relates to certain property development projects bR NRBII#E 26 TYEERE
located in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. HEEA -
Note: The expenditure included a payment of HK$107,176,000 for lease Mzt : FRXEIERRMNIERE 2 THAT
of land in Jiangsu Province. FXIE107,176,00078 7T °
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22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 22 FEfRERRIE
The Group's prepaid lease payments represent land in the PRC AEBEZBNEEREEARNPEREE
and Hong Kong held under medium-term leases and are analysed BEFEEERE 2 i - EOIERS
for reporting purposes as follows: RZT -
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 67,968 23,136
Current assets MENEEE 1,766 575
69,734 23,711
23. GOODWILL 23.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of BEAETS  BERZZTLF=A
goodwill at 31 March 2007 has been allocated to building =+—HBZEREENIBABTFREREZ AR
construction unit as a cash generating unit (“CGU”). B o
The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been determined Lt gI3R B 2 P IR EIRE TR A EBEE
based on value in use calculations. The Group prepares cash flow HERAMETE - A5 BEIRERE IR E i fE
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved RERMFE 2 OV BRFEERE TR SR
by management for the next two years and extrapolates cash flows TERI - WHEE AR AF 2R SREUER
for the following five years with a steady growth rate of 5%. The EE%IBERER - HARESRZITRER
rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 8%. The valuge in 8% ° EREEAEREZKIERBEER
use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted gross E DA ARREMARAERREREEE
margin, which is determined using the CGU'’s past performance HMIHERE 2 EMMEBRE °

and management’s expectations for the market development.
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(a) The assets have indefinite useful life. The directors are of the opinion
that the club membership and motor vehicles registration marks are at
least their carrying amounts.

(b) The amount represents the fair value adjustment on leasehold land in
Wuhan, the PRC and the amount is to be amortised on the same basis

as the related prepaid lease payments.

(c) Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised on
a straight-line basis over the operation period of 50 years.

(d) Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship
acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation is on a straight-line basis over 10 years.
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24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24 Hib B EE
Motor vehicles Club Fair value
registration ~ membership adjustment on Rights of Customer
marks  in Hong Kong leasehold land operation base Total
HELH
RERD REEZ NYEE
it efes A8 -1 EFER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL TAT THT TAT
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
(Hfita) (Rizka) (Pizth) (Hfzkc) (AizEd)
COST XA
At 1 April 2005 RZZERENA-A 3,059 12,422 - - - 15,481
Arising on acquisition of WEHBATR
subsidiaries EE 973 - - - - 973
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (3,059) (5,360) - - - (8,419)
At 31 March 2006 RZZE F=A=1-H 973 7,062 - - - 8,035
Disposal it (115) - - - - (115)
Arising on acquisition of WEEEMBIES
business - - 9,210 35,923 2,032 47,165
Exchange realignment R - - 233 907 51 1,191
At 31 March 2007 RZZZLE=A=1-H 858 7,062 9,443 36,830 2,083 56,276
AMORTISATION i
Provided for the year FREHR - - 12 358 20 490
Exchange realignment R - - - 10 1 11
At 31 March 2007 RZZZLE=A=1-H - - 112 368 21 501
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2007 RZZZLE=A=1-H 858 7,062 9,331 36,462 2,062 55,775
At 31 March 2006 RZZZRE=A=1—-H 973 7,062 - - - 8,035
Notes: M -

(a) ZREBEERBEERAERFY - EFRB
BReETEBRRHEE2ETISR
BEPREFNEREE -

ZEBRRRMUNPERED 2 HET 2
RFEERRE - TRERRER AN HEETIR
MRIR 2 Z2E T AR S o

=
g

(c) REBRREPHNEMLLRICAHR
R ENZ A THEE - KEETIABER
FEREHT T F R -

(d) FPEAMKKEBUEEBMIGERILA
HREBEPHERZAFEE - TIAER
EETERBEE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

25.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25. B AR

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
(restated)
(E#7IER)
Cost of investments in associates, KB N A Z N
less impairment: A :
Listed shares in Hong Kong (note (a)) B EmkD (HsEa)) - 513,192
Unlisted investments (note (b)) FE LR & (fizE(b)) 503,716 64,985
503,716 578,177
Share of post-acquisition profits (losses), B ER N (B8
net of dividends received HRBE W E 206,518 (166,720)
710,234 411,457
Market value of listed shares B ETRGD
in Hong Kong ZTHE - 258,820
Notes: KiaE -

(a) The listed shares in Hong Kong represented the Group’s 29.36% equity
interest in China Strategic as at 31 March 2006. The Group’s share of
net assets in China Strategic at 31 March 2006 was calculated based
on the net assets of China Strategic at 31 December 2005 as shown in
its latest published annual report.

(a) BB LMBROIERNEER ST F=A
=t+—HBEPER229.36% i - NEE
REEERF=A=+—B#hTE &
EFETMRBEP R 2 ST FRATR
R-TEERGF+-A=+—HAZE8E%HE

On 14 March 2006, China Strategic, Hanny and certain other parties

announced the Group Restructuring (see Note 16), and the Company “TTRF=A+WEA - PR - HBERE

and Hanny entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of a 15.32% equity
interest in China Strategic (the “Disposal”) by each of the Company
and Hanny for a consideration of HK$26,055,000 each. Details of the
Group Restructuring of China Strategic and the declaration by the
Company of an in specie distribution of the value derived from the
Group’s divestment of China Strategic to the Company’s shareholders
are set out in note 16.

Upon the completion of the Disposal, the Group’s interest in China
Strategic decreased from 29.36% to 14.04%. Accordingly, the Group’s
interest in the shares of China Strategic was classified as investments
held for trading.
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25.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Notes:(continued)

(b) The unlisted investment includes the Group’s 45% equity interest in
Nantong Port Group Limited (“Nantong Port Group”), which is a sino-
foreign joint venture enterprise registered in the PRC as at 31 March
2007. Nantong Port Group is principally engaged in providing cargo
loading and off loading, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, ship
anchoring, ship repairing, port machinery, shipping logistics and ship
piloting services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.
According to an agreement entered into by the Group on 12 August
2005 to participate into the assets reorganisation of Nantong Port
Group (the “Assets Reorganisation Agreement”), the Group would
inject approximately RMB435 million (approximately HK$433,569,000)
in cash into Nantong Port Group in return for a 45% interest in its
registered capital.

At 31 March 2006, Nantong Port Group had not accomplished certain
major conditions prescribed in the Assets Reorganisation Agreement,
including the assets reorganisation and net assets value due diligence
review of Nantong Port Group. As stipulated in the Assets
Reorganisation Agreement and certain supplementary agreements
entered into with the Nantong Port Group, the Group was not entitled to
appropriation of results and voting power of Nantong Port Group until
injection of all committed capital contribution into Nantong Port Group.
In this regard, the amount incurred and paid to Nantong Port Group of
approximately HK$160,211,000 as at 31 March 2006 should be
reclassified from interests in associates to deposit for acquisition of an
associate. Comparative figures have been restated accordingly and
had no material impact on the profit for the year 31 March 2006. Such
amount represented an earnest money deposit paid by the Group to
Nantong Port Group at 31 March 2006.

In September 2006, upon fulfilment of certain conditions as stated in
the Assets Recognisation Agreement, the Group had completed the
capital contribution and recognised Nantong Port Group as an
associate. Discount arising on the acquisition of approximately
HK$144,679,000, being the excess in the Group’s share of the fair
value of Nantong Port Group’s net identifiable assets over the cost of
acquisition, has been recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the determination of the Group’s share of results of Nantong Port
Group during the current year.

The financial year end date of one of the principal associates is 31
December and it is the latest financial information that available to the
Group. Accordingly, the Group’s share of interest in this principal associate
at 31 March 2007 is calculated based on the net assets of it at 31
December 2006 and the post-acquisition results.

25 Bt N ElfERE (B)
KiaE - ()

(b) EETREBEAEENEBESONEEE
RARE ((FEBOEE]) 245%8Ess o
—EEHF=-A=+—H BESO5E
AR B2 FINEG SR - FE
BOKEEZHRFETEE B EIR
HEMEH - #F HEERE - BEX
%~ BOMMRTES - MAEME « EEHEW
1538 - MM IERRTS - SIS - BIE
AEER-_ZETARFN\A+-_BH2HER
BEOSEEESHI L s ((BEE
Bzl - AEERRERENERTE
HE&E AR®A435,000,0007T (4
433,569,000/ 7T) * HREMEA H A&
4A5%HES ©

R-TBERE=A=1—H B@s0&
B{NATEXREEEAHETIRCETE
BiEt pEEEEOEECEESHAR
HEEFEZRMES - BEEREEED
SBE I BESHEERE TR h®
FTifE  EEASEHmREOSEFA
FTBEAHZEEEALL  ANEBEEES
RSO SEZEERZHIRERE - 5t
ms ' R=ZENF=A=+—HEE
ERNTEBAODEBEZESEYN
160,211,000/ 7o/8 BBt & A Bl e 3T
PEEWEBE QR 2R - LBREFE
{ELBEEFIER  HEE—TT A F=
A=+—RIEFEZ R ES AT E -
EEFERERASEER =TT F=A=
+-—BENFEBEEOEEZHERS

REBTARENA  AEBERHEE
ETHREERETRERLE - WERR
BEOSEEAME AR - WEELZA
R #9144,679,000/8 7T (BN A& B (L
RBEOSBE A BAEEFE2 AT ER
mRER AN 2 2i5E) B N EEAN S E#
GRS O S B FNEERERA REmE
Wﬁﬁﬁfu ©

H—RIZMENFZMREEEEA ST
ZRA=1—8  BAAEENFZENUTE
e Bt - AEER-_ZTLF=A=+—H
BEZTEME N 2R RZARN_E
ERFT A=t RZEEFERKBERE

E x|
R -
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25.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 25. BE A ElfER (B)
Summarised financial information in respect of that associate is set BRI E N Al 2 B E R
out below:
HK$'000
FAT
Post-acquisition results: BB R -
Turnover E 129,383
Profit for the year F R 12,011
Group’s share of profit AE BB ET 5,405
31.12.2006
HK$'000
FAT
Financial position: BTEGROR, -
Total assets BEE 2,668,100
Total liabilities FEN=N (1,333,452)
Minority interests DEIR RS (364)
Net assets BEFE 1,334,284
Group’s share of the associate’s net assets AEBEB(EBHE RN EEFE 600,428
The combined summarised financial information in respect of the BRAREBEMEE R E) A i 7%
Group’s other associates is set out below: BRI ¢
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
(restated)
(EFh5IER)
Financial position: BAHGROR, -
Total assets BEE 451,533 2,171,338
Total liabilities FEN=N (272,901) (476,899)
Minority interests VYRR ER (2,016) (330,255)
Net assets BEFE 176,616 1,364,184
Group’s share of associates’ net assets REEBEHE AR 2 EEFE 109,806 411,457
Post-acquisition results: BB R -
Turnover e 26,513 73,894
Profit (loss) for the year FEnF (Ei8) 150,795 (93,006)
Group's share of profit (loss) of AEEBEHEARZ
associates for the year FEmA (B18) 73,465 (17,184)
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25.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss of one
of the associates. The amounts of unrecognised share of loss of
that associate, extracted from the relevant management accounts
of the associate, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

25. BE A ElfER (B)
REBERIFERBE—R A2 &
18 o REE K R REREEZH L AT
2B (A% E AR 2 HREEERE)
PO

ke KN\
EN

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Unrecognised share of profit (loss) of REREEHE AR 2
the associate for the year FEm (B18) 1,591 (8,955)
Accumulated unrecognised share of RERZHEHE AR 2
losses of the associate 25 EE (51,000) (52,591)

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2007
are set out in note 57(b).

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

AEBEBEEHRENAN _ZZLF=H
=+ —RZFHBEEINRHIES7(D)

26. HEEHIREER

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Cost of unlisted investments 1 FE [R] 2E e A

in jointly controlled entities FE_ETIREKA - -

Share of post-acquisition profits, BHE IR 2w
net of dividends received HIBR B U A B 1,928 2,570
1,928 2,570
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 B EZ=FZ+F=A=+—HIEFE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 26. HEEFIBER (F)
The combined summarised financial information in respect of the ABAARS BRI HIHE 2 & G I 55
Group’s jointly controlled entities is set out below: BRI
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Total assets BEE 11,437 9,607
Total liabilities FEN=N (7,580) (4,466)
Net assets BEFE 3,857 5,141
Group’s share of net assets of IRER (B (G LR IS 2
jointly controlled entities BEFE 1,928 2,570
Turnover ERE 7,798 5,481
(Loss) profit for the year F 2 (B518) &5 F (1,283) 62
Group’s share of (loss) profit of IRER (B (G LR IS 2
jointly controlled entities for the year FZ (F518) &= A (642) 26
Particulars of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entity at 31 REBFEXAFRGIBER_TTHF=
March 2007 are set out in note 57(c). B=+—BZFHBEEINHES7(c)
27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 27. At ERE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Listed equity securities ETRAE S
in Hong Kong B 732 1,064
in overseas N 580 589
1,312 1,653
Market value of listed securities EmESETE 1,312 1,653
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28. LOANS RECEIVABLE

28. EWE X

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
The amounts bear interest at BEFIEALAT
the following rates: FIZ=ETE
Interest free 28 1,508 1,508
2% per annum (Note) FERI=R2E (Bsh) 30,956 =
15% per annum FERERA5E 150,000 =
20% per annum FEFI|ZR20E 30,000 -
0.25% over HKBLR BAREEEBEREN0.25E - 100,000
2% over HKBLR AAREEBENEN2E - 4,378
Total amount SRIEAREE 212,464 105,886
Less: Amount due within one year B R—FEREER S A
shown under current assets IMENE EE Z 5IE (181,508) (105,886)
Amount due after one year —F BB FIE 30,956 —
Analysed as: PaR)iv=1E
Secured B 181,508 1,508
Unsecured i i 30,956 104,378
212,464 105,886

Note:

Hong Kong Best Lending Rate (“HKBLR”) represents Hong Kong Dollar

Best Lending Rate as quoted by a designated bank.

During the year, the Group subscribed a convertible bond with an

aggregate face value of HK$36,858,000 as a result of the Group
Restructuring in note 16. The coupon interest of the convertible
bond is 2% per annum with maturity in June 2011. The carrying
amount represents the debt element of the convertible bond. The

amount recognised is based on the valuation performed by Greater
China Appraisal Limited (“GCA”), an independent professional
valuer not connected with the Group, using an effective interest

rate of 6.47% per annum.

¥ B

BEEENEEHEERTERZ
BLHEBEENE -

fiaE - FR - AEBREKF16Z SEEAm
IR 42 BR T {H36,858,000/8 T2 Al
MBS - IR ESR 2 EBEAFH
KB WR-T——F A28 -
IREER R AR ES 2 EIEED ©
FTiER R TR AN BT AERRE 2
BY EETEMEETEGRA A
(DZEZE]) FEEE - LEBRFERNE
6.47EEE °
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29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

29. EWEAE X FRA

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Unsecured loans receivable: RN ER
Subsidiaries of ITC Corporation BEECEEEFRAA
Limited (“ITC”) (MEHEE]) 2B AR
(note (a) below) (T Hd7E(a)) 141,401 =
Associate of ITC (note (a) below) B FE 2B E AR (T3 (a) - 183,046
Associates of China Strategic PR 2B AR (T XX HisE(a))
(note (a) below) - 47,270
Other related companies (note (b) below) NS @ () - 854
141,401 231,170
Other receivables: H b fEUGRIA -
Associate of ITC EEhEzZHERR
(note (a) below) (R 3 HtEE(a)) 489 15,807
Associates of China Strategic PR 2B AR (T XX HisE(a))
(note (a) below) - 2,779
Other related companies (notes (a) EfbRgE N A
and (b) below) (N2 Hd7E(a) (b)) 885 2,096
Subsidiaries of ITC (note (a) below) EEEDE B AR (X ME(Q)) 7,324 =
Total, amount due within one year shown R—FAREIERI I 1E
under current assets MENE FE 2 FRIAMERE 150,099 251,852

Notes:

(a) The companies are related companies of the Group as ITC has (a)
significant influence over the companies and they are under common

directorship. ITC is the substantial shareholder of the Company.

The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest free
except for loans receivable of HK$141,401,000 (2006:
HK$230,316,000) which bear interest at 2% over HKBLR.

The balance includes loan and interest receivable of HK$885,000
(2006: HK$854,000) from Parona Limited, a shareholder of an
associate, in which certain close family members of a director of the

=
g

Company, have an interest. The amount is secured by shares of the
associate held by Parona Limited, interest free (2006: bore interest at
7% per annum) and repayable on demand.
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ZERANZBHEFEATE N R AR
HEFAHAZEE AT WHEBRALE
B ZBBERR] - BHECERAARZEE
3R -

BRRIBRERT - AREREEERS
B MEEEF141,401,000/8 70 (Z2Z
73 1 230,316,000 7T) RIS T ER
BEFIRM2ELE °

BREtE B FERE R Parona Limited (B &2
BlZ—BRE AARHA—BEREZE
FREKEHRAEZ) cBEREFE
885,000/ T (ZZEZ /N4 : 854,000/8
JT) ° #%< #ALAParona Limited i A B &
RNEIRDABEF 2B (CTEERF : &
FFIET7%51E) RANERIFEE o



30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 30. FEWEE & 1 R FRIE

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Promissory note with face value of H{&E 117,000,000 T2
HK$117,000,000 carrying interest A EE AR EIRITRIE
at 0.75% over Hong Kong Interbank B H00.75/E 5B
Offered Rate, secured by the shares of N—HE AR zET
certain subsidiaries of an associate KT8 A R AR VEHE AR
and wholly repayable on or before WERZZEZNF—H
January 2009 (Note) sk AsE (s 117,000 117,000
Unsecured other receivables, interest free HAb KR EUGRIE - R EWER
and repayable within one year —FNFE 70,314 64,804
Unsecured loans receivable carrying JEWEIR IR E IR E A S A
interest at 2% over HKBLR on loan BEAREREEMNEMNET R
principal and repayable within one year WER—FRNEE - 162,972
187,314 344,776
Less: Amount due within one year shown B R —F R E
under current assets SIVERENE FE 2 FKIH (187,314) (227,776)
Amount due after one year —F B2 FIE - 117,000
Note: The effective interest rate is 5.17% for the year ended 31 March Mt - RBEZTT+F=A=1+—HItF
2007. Subsequent to balance sheet date, that associate had BZERFEASATE - REHEH
disposed of its property interests through disposal of an associate & - ZEEE N RBBHE R RS
and certain proceeds were used to fully repay the amount due to DRI EEY HE R B S TR R
the Group. REREER RN AEE 2 FIH -
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31. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE
As part of the consideration for the disposal of the s
set out in note 47, a deferred consideration of HK$1

ubsidiaries as
5,000,000 will

be settled in cash by the purchaser under four annual instalments

commencing from 30 October 2006. The fair value of the deferred

consideration at date of initial recognition is determi

ned based on

the estimated future cash flows discounted at 3% per annum. The

amount is unsecured and interest free. The carrying
analysed for reporting purpose as follows:

amounts are

31. BUWGEAE(CE
TERIK 47 FIEL EMB AR ZREZ
—&Bf5 + 15,000,000/ 7T Z IEIE R ME# H
WEAB—ZTXF+A=TREDESF
B HINREES - RIGERERTER
BEZ A FEEDRBIZSFI%RMB TR
KREREMETE ° LIRS EER LR
B o BREE (FIRE B &) 2T ¢

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 6,597 10,223
Current assets (included in debtors, mENEE (B ARYBERFK
deposits and prepayments) KSR SE) 3,932 3,932
10,529 14,155
32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 32. B (FER) BEF &N IRERIE
WORKS
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Contracts in progress at the REEEHZ
balance sheet date: EEIRE:
Contract costs incurred to date BB HZTEEA 43,566,229 42,500,091
Recognised profits less recognised losses KR MR A TR S 18 1,217,200 1,052,894
44,783,429 43,552,985
Less: Progress billings W EERR (45,598,340) (43,819,221)
(814,911) (266,236)
Represented by: RE
Amounts due from customers for contract works JEWRE P& 4 TI2FTE 223,637 163,379
Amounts due to customers for contract works BN =P & # TIEFHIE (1,038,548) (429,615)
(814,911) (266,236)
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33. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group’s credit terms for its management contracting segment
are negotiated at terms determined and agreed with its customers.
Credit term for property leasing business is payable monthly in
advance and the credit terms granted by the Group to other
debtors normally range from 30 days to 90 days.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are debtors of
approximately HK$1,003,440,000 (2006: HK$572,798,000) and

33, EUNBESL « T4 R TE(T=IE

AEEFEEEBMACEERREPR
ERBEGTER KA - WEHEEE
ZEERNRERASIN - MAEERE
YRR 2 & —ARHA30E90H

\TID

EUERTR « 5T RIEN B ERIRER
#91,003,440,0008 T (ZZTZ/NEF ¢

their aged analysis is as follows: 572,798,000/87T) - HEREHATLAT
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Within 90 days 90H A 935,095 504,584
More than 90 days and within 180 days BBI0REN180H A 19,346 13,704
More than 180 days 3@ 180H 48,999 54,510
1,003,440 572,798

At 31 March 2007, retentions held by customers for contract works
amounting to approximately HK$477,403,000 (2006:
HK$396,066,000) were included in debtors, deposits and
prepayments, of which approximately HK$239,707,000 (2006:
HK$151,168,000) are expected to be recovered or settled after
more than twelve months from the balance sheet date.

Included in deposits and prepayments is an amount of
approximately HK$176,753,000 (2006: HK$148,699,000) which
carries interest at 14.4% per annum (2006: 13.6%) and is secured
by properties interest in the PRC.

At 31 March 2007, an amount of A$22,743,000 (2006:
A$24,988,173) is denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

REZTLF=F=+—0 ' Bt ABKER
H R RENFEAZEHNTIREFFA
ZRE®#A477,403,000/87C (ZFZX
4 1 396,066,000/87T) * EH49239,707,000
BT (ZZZNF ¢ 151,168,000787T) FBHA
BREEBRBR T —EAREREE -

Al & R IENRUIE 81549176,753,000%8 7.2
FIB (T N4 ¢ 148,699,000/87T) © Kt
HEE14 4B (CZZTRF : 13.6/E) + WA
R B2 M EEVEIELR -

R-EELFE=A=+—-8 A
22,743,000/27T (ZZTZ /14 : 24,988,173
STT) 2 SR AR R M E e Th A
BAGNEHEEHE o
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34. CONVERSION OPTION EMBEDDED IN LOAN RECEIVABLE 34. ERE M 2R

The Group had classified the debt element of the convertible bond AN E i AT AR E S 2 BIEEMD 5 Hl A
as loans receivable and the conversion option element separately. BEWE R RS D - JRRESRZ
The fair value of the convertible bond is determined by the ANFEEBEARNARIZES2REE Z(HE
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation MEBE < EESFIFAFRERB AR —
performed by GCA. GCA applied net present value and Black- T RETERRE E BR AT A R E B EE
Scholes model for the valuation of the debt element and 9 R R 2 BIE - AREE T D R 3
conversion option element, respectively, at the date of inception. EVTE SR TR - BATEBEFALZEE
The conversion option is separated as derivative financial EBER QA TEEZHERGERER
instrument and stated in the consolidated balance sheet at fair ARERR o

value. The change in fair value had been recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
3B FEEERE
35.INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Listed equity securities, at quoted bid price  _ETRAZ S - IR E ARE
in Hong Kong B 129,496 161,693
in overseas NSEIN 26,287 -
155,783 161,693
36. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS 36. BEIRMMITER - EHRITERRERIT
AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH FERRE
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to BEERARTEREAERETAE
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits Z—RIRITEEMERR TRITZEFER
amounting to HK$42,601,000 (2006: HK$118,622,000) have been EE42 601,000 (ZBZTRF :
pledged to secure general banking facilities with maturity within 118,622,000/ 7T) 217K E THIF - ER
one year of the balance sheet date and are therefore classified as AREERR—FANERZ —RR1TEE
current assets. ZHER - EMEINARBEE °
The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits with BEEBRTEXRERIAALR=EAZE
maturity date of less than three months carry floating interest rates BRI RSB EF25%E45% (ZFF
ranging from 2.5% to 4.5% (2006: 3.1% to 4.4%) per annum. The NI : BA%ZE4.4%) ZIFEFE o RI1T4
bank balances carry interest rates ranging nil to 3.0% (2006: 3.1%) FHAERNRGFZTE3.0% (ZTT/RF ¢
per annum. 3.1%) °
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37.CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 37. BESERR R EFTRX

Included in creditors and accrued expenses are trade creditors of FERTRR A R FE AT R 2 B35 49351,026,00078
approximately HK$351,026,000 (2006: HK$347,160,000) and their TC(ZZFZ /N : 347,160,000 7T) 2 FEFT
aged analysis is as follows: BH5RE - ARSI
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FT
Within 90 days 90H A 329,211 312,038
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBiE0BEM180H A 8,230 22,037
More than 180 days HiB180H 13,585 13,085
351,026 347,160
As at 31 March 2007, included in the creditors and accrued RZZTZTLFE=A=+—H  EFTERK
expenses is an amount of A$15,874,000 (approximately X 81E15,874,0008 T (4
HK$100,785,000) that is denominated in currencies other than 100,785,000 7T) AR S E B BT A E
functional currency of the relevant group entity. BEASNE G THE 2 FE -

At 31 March 2007, retentions held by the Group for contract works R-TZTZ+FE=A=+—8 £EFEEZ
amounting to approximately HK$319,098,000 (2006: A X TIERESR A /2319,098,000/8 7T (=
HK$297,869,000) were included in creditors and accrued T TN ¢ 297,869,000/87T) © Bt AME
expenses, of which approximately HK$102,719,000 (2006: RRIERFESFRZ A - HF47102,719,000
HK$80,174,000) are expected to be paid or settled after more than BT (ZZZ /54 ¢ 80,174,000/ 7T) TA EA
twelve months from the balance sheet date. BREEBRBR T —EAREIAEE °
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38. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 38. FE{TERE A RIFIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZEFRIBIW BB - 25 RAREREE
demand. o
39. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 30. ERf D BB RFIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZERIBW BB - B RARERKE
demand. o
40. LOANS FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 40. PERERER
The amount is unsecured and carries interest at the following UL RIE REER - IR T HIFIRET S
rates:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FoT T
2% below Hong Kong Prime rate (Note) MUEEREZEEFN=F2ETE (M) - 88,588
Interest-free %8 - 34,851
Total, under current liabilities BEt - FEREBE - 123,439
Note: During the year 31 March 2007, upon the acquisition of additional fiit : R=TZT+F=A=+—HFE K
interests in subsidiaries, the amount had been reclassified to other FEM B A RIS MER R - ZHEEE

loans. FoEAEMER -
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41. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 41. SBITREHMER

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Bank and other borrowings comprise: SRIT R E A SRS
Bank loans RITER 943,554 471,383
Other loans EMER 60,151 93,400
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 20,432 =
1,024,137 564,783
Analysed as: DA
Secured HEM 644,968 397,319
Unsecured B 379,169 167,464
1,024,137 564,783
The bank and other borrowings are repayable BRIT R H MBS K
as follows: BRI :
Within one year or on demand —F Rk iEEA A 597,386 400,158
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ #BiE—4F » BT EME 116,157 26,500
More than two years, but not exceeding three years FRBRIE @ (B8 = F 11,551 132,500
More than three years, but not exceeding four years i@ =4 - (B #PIFE 64,481 4,500
More than four years, but not exceeding five years  RiBIUE - {BRE A F 74,481 1,125
More than five years HBidAE 160,081 =
1,024,137 564,783
Less: Amount due within one year or on demand W —FRE iR A &
shown under current liabilities SIVERBI & B2 FIA (597,386) (400,158)
Amount due after one year —F 1R EE 2 508 426,751 164,625
The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings of L ERITIER B 3E49161,616,000%8 7T (=
approximately HK$161,616,000 (2006: HK$107,454,000) TENE 1 107,454,000 70) LA Z E BAE
repayable within one year carrying interest ranging from 6.12% to Ko AR—FRER  WIENT6.12% =
7.344% (2006: 5.22% t0 6.138%) per annum. 7.344% (ZZZT/RF 1 5.22% % 6.138%) 2

BERENEFE -
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41. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest, ranging
from 4.67% to 7.75% (2006: 4.71% to 6.56%) per annum.

42. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

41 BT RHEAMER (E)

ERRITEFOAZBAEG B - FFEH
4.67% & 7.75% (ZEBENF : 4.71% &
6.56%) &2 °

42 JEFEIE

AN AN JE Ko PATE S Z AT 2R B0 AR A A
BaEEE  AREEHER

years:
Fair value Fair value
adjustment  adjustments
Accelerated Recognition on project on certain
tax Tax  of contracting under  non-current
depreciation losses income  development assets Others Total
k3 B2 BRTEE ATHRDEE
RERE HakE AOBA  ATEERE ATEESR 2t aif
HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL T T THL ThL ThL
At 1 April 2005 RZSEREMA-A 32,138 (6,488) (4,323) 900,000 - 13 921,340
(Credit) charge to income Yz BN
statement )1 (562) 1711 2,461 - - (116) 3,494
On disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAT (27815) 2872 6 - - 103 (24.834)
At 31 March 2006 RZFE E=A=1-H 3,761 (1,905) (1,856) 900,000 - - 900,000
Exchange realignment [E3k - - - 82,156 709 - 82,865
On acquisition of a business ~ MEa5EH - - = = 28212 - 28212
Change intaxrale credited ~~ HEEFHA
to income statement &R = = - (55,952) (6,714) - (62,666)
(Credit) charge to income Yz BN
statement 18 1,484 (2,253) 769 - (487) - (487)
At 31 March 2007 RZZFEtEZA=1-H 5,245 (4,158) (1,087) 926,204 21,720 - 947,924

At 31 March 2007, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,001,000,000 (2006: HK$1,153,000,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$24,000,000 (2006: HK$11,000,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining tax losses has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams on
those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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43. SHARE CAPITAL

43. lRAS

Number
of shares Value
K EE cix-}
HK$'000
FiBT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FIRAEC. 108 2 BBk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2005, RZZEZTRFMA—H -
31 March 2006 —EERF=H
and 31 March 2007 =T—BRZZEZLF
=A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBITRER KK
At 1 April 2005 R-ZEZERFMA—H 1,369,195,436 136,920
Issue of new shares pursuant to scrip RAE AR B 5T 2
dividend schemes BITHAR 20,110,474 2,011
Issued of shares under share BIRRE A T &
option scheme BITIRMGD 14,000 1
Shares repurchased EAEIN &) (10,520,000) (1,052)
At 31 March 2006 —EERF=A=+—H 1,378,799,910 137,880
Issue of new shares BATHAR 68,500,000 6,850
Issue of new shares pursuant to BB AR BT
scrip dividend schemes BEITHIAR 9,838,497 984
Issued of shares under share BRI B AR T &
option scheme BITR D 36,575,000 3,657
Shares repurchased EAEl ) (2,000,000) (200)
At 31 March 2007 R-ZEZ+F=A=+—H 1,491,713,407 149,171

During the year, the following changes in the Company’s share

capital took place:

(a) Pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes which were
announced by the Company on 18 September 2006 and 11
January 2007, the Company issued 6,523,256 (2006:
8,865,284) and 3,315,241 (2006: 11,245,190) new ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company to shareholders who
elected to receive scrip dividends in respect of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006 and the interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 September 2006,
respectively. These shares rank pari passu with the then

existing shares in all respects.

FA - AABZBRALIRTSIEE)

(a) BEARANR =TT NFNATNBK
—ETHF— A+ A/MmZABRARE
T8l - AR R FIE176,523,256/% (=
TT N ¢ 8,865,284f%) 123,315,241
B (=TT N4F + 11,245,1900%) FAXE
B0 BT Z AR RIFEBR TEREK
Bk - MRBEHEZTT R F= ﬂ_
THIEFEZRAREREES
/\ihﬂzwLElm/lezﬁPﬁﬁﬂx,%z
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43. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) During the year, the Company issued 36,575,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription price ranging from
HK$1.24 to HK$2.50 (2006: HK$1.78) under the share option
scheme of the Company.

(c) The Company repurchased a total of 2,000,000 ordinary shares

43. B (48)

(b) A - AR ANBIEA A B 2 AR AE T2
BN T1.2422 508 L (ZTTREF ¢
1.78%8 L) 2 SRIEE#1736,575,0000%
FREE A0 T @A

C)ARBREREEBMIMBES K

through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as follows: 2,000,000 fxE@AZLA T
Aggregate
Ordinary shares Price per share consideration
Month of repurchase of HK$0.1 each Highest Lowest paid
BREE BRERK ENRE
ke A 4 0.1BRTZEBER E&E RIEE e
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT THTT
August 2006 ZEERENA 1,000,000 2.18 2.16 2,178
September 2006 —ZZNEFENA 1,000,000 2.27 2.18 2,203
2,000,000 4,381

(d) On 8 May 2006, the Company issued and allotted 68,500,000
ordinary shares at a fair price of HK$2.91315 per share to a
then minority shareholder of a 90.1% owned subsidiary of the
Company, which is holding the investment in the Yangkou Port
project. The allotted shares represent the consideration paid by
the Group to acquire the remaining 9.9% interest in that
subsidiary from the minority shareholder. Details of the above
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
11 April 2006.

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
On 27 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive
or reward to any employees, executives or officers, directors of the
Group or any invested entity and any celebrity, consultant, adviser
or agent of any member of the Group or any invested entity, who
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and development
of the Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
that date.
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in the Company without consideration. The
directors may at their discretion determine the specific exercise
period which should expire in any event no later than ten years
from date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company and will be at
least the higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted by
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at its adoption date,
i.e. 103,674,492 shares. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the limit may be
refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at the annual general meetings of the Company in 2003, 2004 and
2005, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the respective
dates of such meetings. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at the Company’s annual general meeting held on 8 September
2006, the 10% scheme limit was further refreshed to 146,260,991,
representing 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of such meeting.

44 DUBRBZNREZRS (8)

RIBBEAERTE - ARAREZAIRIBRIE
MEERALTRHBERE ZARLZE
BEAFENERNER - EFAWIBEE
THEHR - EEABRT - LdTEH
RANSHERS B BT 81 R E B &
TF - TREHLAATNERTATIERSE
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REBE - R(NARBBRMZEE °

IRIREB IR AT 8] R A A B FTER AR R E At
FERAERT BIR] TR 2 BIRER RE RS
2B - & ETBBIBARR B RN
BEHEZRTRHOBEH210% @/
103,674,492% o IR AR B R EAR R
AEEBE - ZRFEIEHARRRRR
ERFERS LIEE AR BITRMNBEZ
10% ° BE WML - BIREERET SR
A AR E At B AR B AT B3 B 1 R AT
2 PA BRI TR A T BT 2 IR 1D 42
H - AREZTHEBBTREETRG 2
H230% ° REARBR=_TZ=F - =
TENFER _ETRFRIT AN EMRE
BEAE LRBZTRRER  ZREE
ENERZEASSE BHAARARIEET
BRINEE 210% ° REBEARFRZTENR
FNANBRITZARRRRBFAE L
BB EBRER  ZBREEE—FPEH
%£146,260,991 /%17 - BIARRRIRGZAE
HEE BT E B 210% °
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44, BB ARIEZ2R S (B)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of
which options may be granted to each Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including those exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time unless such grant has
been duly approved by shareholders of the Company at general
meeting at which the Eligible Person and his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) abstain from voting. Options granted
to a substantial shareholder and/or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10% of total
number of shares in issue and have an aggregate value exceeding
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting in advance.

(a) Details of the share options granted on 28 December 2004 to
certain directors and advisers of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme and movements in such holdings during the
year are as follows:

AEM+ @A HR - RIFERAEEIR
RN B E AL BB AR AT B Al B T A&
B AL ZERE(BERITE  EFER
RITIEREAAE) FT e 2 R ARIRDELE
BETMSBBTRERITIRG A2 1% -
BRIEBHREEEEAER AL RER
BALT(EER ETRA) MEREZRE
A EESARBRERIERE - BIRZ
BEBR o AER+ =@ A BEARESuEE
BEKR BN TESRFESEHZ
BB AL (EE R LRI ZLER
R BT ERES R 2 R BB
ERTRMNAEHZ0.10% HAEBB
5,000,000/ 7T + RIS NEBSARER
RERERE FH0E o

() ZAFTR-ZEME+—A—+/\BR
BRI BN AL ETEE B
PRIR > FEARAE ~ SIS RN G 2 &
T

Number of shares of the Company

to be issued upon exercise of the share options

BTN
BTFRT2ADARBEE

Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding

Exercise at 1.4.2005 during at

Date of grant Exercisable period price and 31.3.2006 the year 31.3.2007

R-2TLF

MA-AR RZIBELE

ZBEREF =ZA=+-H

RHBEH TEH BRITHEE ZA=+-H ERfTE e RATHE
HK$
BT

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.8.2012 1.24* 22,100,000 (13,650,000) 8,450,000

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.8.2012 1.50* 22,100,000 (9,520,000) 12,580,000

44,200,000 (23,170,000) 21,030,000

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the special general meeting held on 14 February
2006, the Company repriced the share options by a reduction of
the exercise price by HK$0.70 per share to take into account the
payment of a special cash dividend of HK$0.70 per share during
the year ended 31 March 2006. The fair values of the outstanding
share options immediately before and after the modification of their
exercise price were calculated by RHL Appraisal Limited, a valuer
not connected with the Group, using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model (the “Model”). The directors, by reference to the
valuation report and after taking other professional advice,
considered that the modification did not result in an increase in fair
values of the share options. Accordingly, no adjustment on fair
values of the share options was required.
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)
The Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the
fair values of the option. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any
changes in the variables so adopted may materially affected
the estimation of the fair value of an option.

(b) Details of the share options granted to certain directors and
employees of the Group under the Share Option Scheme
during the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 March 2007 and
movements in such holdings are as follows:

44 LB HZAREZRS (&)
(a) (#8)
ZE AE S — @R AR TIERE AT
BEzZAER - BiREZEEERET
E\E%ﬁfﬁ“nﬂjfﬁﬂ_ﬂ """"" SIS B TR o H
BRI 2 W2 E) - PIRe 2 EphEE

B A FEEMEL Z G EEEAFY
&,

(b) ARFMRIEEIET M ARE 2 AT
E=NEERLZBREFREIA-F
ZHENA-HE_ZTTLF= H +
—BHE 28T

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

FREGRERTRGA0TRGRE

Granted  Exercised Granted  Exercised  Lapsed
during during during during during
Exercise theyear  theyear Ouistanding  theyear  theyear  theyear Outstanding
price ended ended at ended ended ended at
Type Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period per share 3132006 3132006  31.32006  31.3.2007 31.3.%207 3. 2007 31.3.2007
x
R B% R BE CIRME ‘T?“\tﬁ R
IERNE ITENE ERE CTEtE =B o
=R =R =i = Sl S =
&R St-AF =t-AF =t-B =Rt It L =t-A
) oz EBRE i f1RE EERL  EBAR  HAGR EERE EROR  ERAN HAGR
HKS
BT
() 622006 622006 6.22006105.2.2007 178 832,000 (14000) 831,000 - (8286000) (25,000 -
(i) 622006 622007 6.22007105.2.2008 250 8,325,000 - 83500 - (89000) (275,000 7,155,000
(i) 622006 6.2.2008 6.22008t05.2.2009 300 8,325,000 - 8325000 - - (650000) 7,675,000
) 622006 622009 6220090522010 350 8,325,000 - 83500 - - (650000) 7,675,000
v 232008 232006 24.3.2006105.2.2007 23% 3,000,000 - 3000000 - (2874000)  (126,000) -
(vi) 2432006 62.2007 622007 t05.2.2008 250 3000000 - 3000000 - (50000) - 2950000
(vi) 2432008 622008 6.22008105.2.2009 300 3,000,000 - 3000000 - - - 3000000
(v 232008 622009 6.22009105.2.2010 350 3,000,000 - 3000000 - = - 3000000
(ix 89.2006 89.2006 89.2006t07.9.2007 248 - - - 4600000 - - 4600000
( 89,2006 892007 89.2007107.9.2008 248 - - - 4600000 - - 4600000
(v 89,2006 89.2008 89.2008107.9.2009 248 - - - 4600000 - - 4600000
(xi) 89.2006 89.2006 89200610 268.2012 243 - - - 1300000 - - 1300000
(i 89,2006 89,2006 89.2006107.9.2007 283 - - - 4750000 (1,300,000) - 3450000
(i) 89,2006 18.2007 18.20071031.7.2008 243 - - - 1500000 - - 1500000
(xv) 89.2006 182008 18200810 31.7.2009 24 - - - 1500000 - - 1500000
(i) 89,2006 18.2007 18.20071031.7.2008 300 - - - 1500000 - - 1500000
(i) 89.2006 18,2008 18.20081031.7.2009 350 - - - 1500000 - - 1500000
(xvii) 89.2006 89.2007 89.2007t07.9.2008 300 - - - 2750000 - - 2750000
(i) 89,2006 892008 89.2008107.9.2009 350 - - - 2000000 - - 2000000
(x0) 622007 622007 62200710 268.2012 300 - - - 1300000 - - 1300000
(xd) 622007 62,2007 6.22007t05.2.2008 400 - - - 2500000 - - 2500000
(o) 622007 622007 6.22007105.2.2008 300 - - - 1020000 - - 1020000
(i) 622007 622008 6.22008105.2.2009 300 - - - 119000 - - 119000
(xdv) 622007 622009 622009t05.2.2010 350 - - - 1190000 - - 1,190000
45300000 (14000) 45286000 37800000 (13,405,000) (1,726,000) 67,955,000

Erertisable i he EEFTF
endottheyear  ffE

24275000
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44, BB ARIEZ2R S (B)

(b) During the year, the Company granted 37,800,000 share (b) A » RARIANF2.43E4.0087T 2
options to directors and employees at exercise prices ranging 1T{E{B#% 1137,800,00017 HEA% 1 T AL 3R
from HK$2.43 to HK$4.00. The fair value of the share options RIEE - REAMKLBREZ AFE
granted during the year is approximately HK$25,031,000. The {E4925,031,00078 7T ° FTix BRI
share options granted are subject to vesting conditions from HIRNTEMFE 2 HBHE -

zero to two years.

DN EERER L B2 ETRKATT

The fair values determination at the grant date were carried out AR AR AR RBZIENETT © Z
by RHL Appraisal Limited using the Model. The inputs into the R 2B ABEBENT

Model were summarised as follows:

Type &Rl Type 7 Type A Type A Type &Rl Type &Rl Type &5l Type &5l
0l i ] (W) ) v (i (i

Date of grant Rt 622006 622006 622006 622006 2432006 243,206 243,206 2432006
Closing sharepriceat i AE 21
daeofgrant (HKS)  WE(RT) 178 178 178 178 23% 23% 235 235
Brecisepics (HKS)  11PE(AT) 178 250 300 350 235 250 300 350
Bxpectedvolalty BB 48% 48% 48% 48% 48% 48% 48% 48%
Bipected fe(year)  BESH(E) 1 2 3 4 087 187 287 387
Riskfles merestrate ~ EEJRFI 385% 388% 397% 405% 4215% 4252% 4310% 4.390%
Expected annual ERERRE
dividend yield B 16%% 169% 169% 169% 13% 13% 13% 13%
Fair value per BRERE,
shareopton (HS)  ATEEGET) 0347 0287 0311 033% 0432 0570 0583 0,608
Tol far value (HKS000)  BATEE(TET) 2869 2901 2587 279% 129 1709 1749 1623
Type EAl Type £A Type EA Type EA Type &5l Type &5l Type EAl Type EAl
(i () (x) (xi) (xi) (xiv) (xv) (i)
Date of rant KA 892006 892006 892006 89,2006 892006 892006 892006 892006
Closing sharspriceat i AE 21
daeof grant (HKS) ~ UmB(Em) 243 243 243 243 243 243 243 243
Becsepice(HKS)  AREGET) 248 248 248 243 243 243 23 300
Eipectedvoletty B 54% 54% 54% 54% 54% 54% 54% 54%
Bipected e (year) ~ BESH(E) 1 2 3 3 1 19 290 19
Risk-flee merestrate ~ ZEMRFIR 3740% 3821% 3907% 3907% 3740% 3821% 3907% 3821%
Expected annual EEERRE
diidend yielo BifE 12% 12% 1% 12% 12% 12% 12% 12%
Fair value per BlEREL
sareoption (HKS)  AFEE(ET) 051 0731 0888 0903 0534 0730 0889 0557
Tota far value (HKS 000) EATEE(TiET) 2367 3,364 4,085 1174 253 109 134 8%
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

44 DUBRBZNREZRS (8)

(b) (continued) (b) (£8)
Type &Rl Type 7 Type A Type A Type &Rl Type &Rl Type &5l Type &5l
(i) (i) (xix) (xx) (xx) (o) (i) ()
Date of grant UILsES 892006 892006 892006 622007 622007 622007 622007 6.22007
Closing shareprice st~ BBz
daeof gant(HKS)  REWTECET) 243 243 243 300 300 300 300 300
Brecisepice(HKS)  fIRECET) 350 300 350 300 400 300 300 350
Eeciedvolaity  BEfiRiE 54% 54% 54% 45% 45% 5% 45% 45%
Brecedfe(ear)  BHER(E) 200 2 3 3 1 1 2 3
Riskfles merestrate ~ BERTIE 3907% 3821% 3907% 4:148% 4050% 3900% 4086% 4135%
Expected annual BHERRE
diidend yield A& 12% 12% 12% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Fair value per SREREL
shareoption (HKS)  ATEE(ET) 0621 0577 0638 0980 0264 0564 0803 0823
Toal far value (HKS'000) BATEE (FiT) 932 1568 1275 1274 60 575 96 99

The expected volatility used in the Model was determined by
using the annualised standard derivation of the continuously
compounded rate of return on the ordinary shares of the
Company. The expected life used in the Model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability and behavioural considerations.

The amount of cost of share options charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year was HK$21,995,000 (2006:
HK$4,945,000).

In respect of the share options granted during the year, the closing
share price immediately before date of grant is ranged from
HK$2.43 to HK$3.00.

In respect of the 36,575,000 share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is
HK$3.04 and the weighted average share price at the date
immediately before exercise date is HK$2.99.

There was no consideration received during the year from Eligible
Persons for taking up the options granted.

AR Z BRI AR AR E
B EEEN R FRREE
BT - iR EERMERTRALEERZ
T8 AEAMAZERSGEREE
IR 2 HERI T IAGE o

FRERA W RN B AN SRR A
21,995,000/ 7T (ZZ TR © 4,945,000
BT °

FERRHZERE  RBEEENEBZE
— B Z BT BN T2.438 7 E3.00/8 7T
2R e

FRTT{E.236,575,0001) FEARRE - 1T
EHZMEFARERS 04T - REE
IEE A 28— B 2 iR E 52.99
BT

WERE A ER A TENER 2 BREm K
BEAAIHKAE -
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

182 <

Share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
(“PYE”)

On 7 September 2005, PYE adopted a share option scheme (the
“PYE Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive or reward to
any employees, executives or directors of PYE and its subsidiaries
or any invested entity and any consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of PYE and its subsidiaries or any invested entity, who
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and development
of PYE and its subsidiaries or any invested entity (“PYE Eligible
Person”). The PYE Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years from that date.

Under the PYE Scheme, the directors of PYE may at their
discretion grant options to any PYE Eligible Person to subscribe for
shares in PYE. Consideration to be paid on each grant of option is
HK$1.00. The directors of PYE may at their discretion determine
the specific exercise period which should expire in any event no
later than ten years from date of adoption of the PYE Scheme. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of PYE and will be at
least the higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value
of the shares of PYE.

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the PYE Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) adopted by PYE must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares of
PYE, i.e. 57,669,939 shares of PYE, as at its adoption date.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders of PYE in general
meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of
shares of PYE in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of PYE in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of PYE which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the PYE Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of PYE must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of PYE in issue from time to time. Pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at PYE’s annual general meeting held
on 6 September 2006, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to
58,195,877, representing 10% of the total number of issued shares
of PYE as at the date of such meeting.
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44 DUBRBZNREZRS (8)

REZXEBARAR ((REEX]) 2B
RS &
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R 8 ([RERRBEIERTE) -
NAg sk e HREZEREMBRRIK
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BRRISEAIREREZEMES « 1T
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued) 44, BB ARIEZ2R S (B)

Share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited REZXEEAROT ((RERE]) 2B
(“PYE”) (continued) RAE B ()

The maximum number of shares of PYE in respect of which options REM+ZE A M - BIRREREER
may be granted to each PYE Eligible Person under the PYE TS B R ARZE 32 AE ] H (A AR 5T 21 7]
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of PYE (including RTEMEEBAT ZERE (BIEET
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12- - BaEip RARTTEREARRE) ATy R 2 (R EE
month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of BEROEE - ZEMEEATKREET
PYE in issue from time to time unless such grant has been duly REFERN LB 1% @ FRIELIEIIRE
approved by shareholders of PYE in general meeting at which the HEAEBERATREBEAL(EER L
PYE Eligible Person and his associate (as defined in the Listing MR WEREZ RRAS EGRER
Rules) abstained from voting. Options granted to a substantial FRFIERSAE - BIPZUER o REA+
shareholder and/or an independent non-executive director of PYE ZEAHEAMSAREZEEZRE K
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing SRBNIERITE BN ES B 2 A
Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10% of the total AT (EER EMRR) T LB -
number of PYE in issue and have an aggregate value exceeding BT ERERS R 2 RMHBAEE T
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the shareholders of PYE in RERERMBHEEZ0.10% KA EREB
general meeting in advance. 5,000,000/ 7T + BIFEFENBRISGRERSE

IR A B o

Details of movements in share options of PYE granted under the
PYE Scheme during the current and prior years are as follows: FARMBAFE  RIBREZZBREST
B BIREES) - FBENT

Number of shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the share options

BRETRER
BFRTZARARDEE
Granted Granted  Exercised Lapsed
during during during during
Exercise the year Outstanding the year the year the year Outstanding
price ended at ended ended ended at
Type Date of grant Vesting date  Exercise period pershare  31.3.2006  31.3.2006  31.3.2007  31.3.2007  31.3.2007  31.3.2007
ZE2TRE R ZEREE Tt ZTTtF i
=R ZTTF =A =A =f ZTZtE
=t-H =R =+-A =t-A =+t-A =R
Bk It =t-H IE i It =18
eyl BB FEH 1TiEH e FERE  RAGR FERE FEAOR FERR HAOER
HK$
B

| 3.2.2006 3.2.2006 3.2.2006 - 6.9.2015 070 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Il 3.2.2006 1.1.2007 1.1.2007 - 6.9.2015 085 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
11l 3.2.2006 1.1.2008 1.1.2008 - 6.9.2015 1.00 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
1% 9.2.2006 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 - 8.2.2009 090 8,000,000 8,000,000 - - (2/400,000) 5,600,000
v 13.7.2006 13.7.2006 13.7.2006 - 12.7.2008 1.00 - - 3,000,000 (1,500,000) - 1,500,000
VI 13.7.2006 13.7.2007 13.7.2007 - 12.7.2009 1.00 - - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
VI 13.7.2006 13.7.2008 13.7.2008 - 12.7.2009 1.00 - - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
12,500,000 12,500,000 8,000,000  (1,500,000) (2,400,000) 16,600,000

Exercisable at the EEET]
end of the year F17{# 4,500,000
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
(“PYE”) (continued)

In respect of the 1,500,000 share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is
HK$1.17.

In respect of the share options granted during the year, the closing
share price immediately before date of grant is HK$0.99.

The fair values of the share options granted were calculated using
the Model carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited. The inputs into
the Model were summarised as follows:

Type Rl Type 8Hl  Type &5
| Il I}

44.

BB AREZRS (&)
REZXEEERAT ((RERE) 2B
IRt E ()
FANTT{E.21,500,0001D FEHE « TEE
B2 g FAREBRIATHETT

SLERR L 2 B - RERRH B HE
Z BT ER0.9978 T ©

R BRI 2 AT EE T BEKFITHERE
MARRQAGE o ZEX Z 8 AER 0
I

Type 5l Type BHl  Type BRI  Type &5l

v

v Vi Vil

Date of grant it A 322006 322006 322006
Closing share price it B & Bfn

at date of grant (HKS$) K (87T) 0.70 0.70 0.70
Exercise price (HK$) B8 (8 0.70 0.85 1.00
Expected volatility BERE 38% 38% 38%
Expected life (year) RS (§) 25 29 4
Risk-free interest rate ERRFI% 3.93% 3.92% 4.06%
Expected annual BEHEERE

dividend yield EEE 8.57% 8.57% 8.57%
Fair value per share BiRERE

option (HK$) ATEEET) 0.109 0.079 0.067

The Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair
value of the option. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any changes in the
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair
value of an option.
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9.2.2006 1372006  13.7.2006  13.7.2006

0.87
0.90
38%
25

0.98 0.98 0.98
1.00 1.00 1.00
52% 52% 52%
08 20 25

4.06% 4.32% 4.49% 4.53%

8.57% 8.16% 8.16% 8.16%

0.129 0.163 0.226 0.239

AR BE R —E R AT B AT E
BE2ERRA - BRE2BERETIE
RRHBTRAEHEMEFTE o LB
Rz EEE - AeeeHRBREAT
EBEMELZEAELEZTATE -



44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
(“PYE”) (continued)

The expected volatility used in the Model was determined by using
the annualised standard deviation of the continuously
compounded rate of return on the ordinary shares of PYE. The
expected life used in the Model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non transferability
and behavioural considerations.

The total estimated fair value of approximately HK$1,088,000
(2006: HK$137,000) with respect to share options granted to
directors and employees of PYE were charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year.

44 DUBRBZNREZRS (8)

REZXEBARAR ((REEX]) 2B
BRRE 8 ()

BEHRE DA R REZX T B ERE
MEHRE 2 FRFEZETE - ARIFE
AMERITREEBZFE  ZRAMA
ZEHBWERBERE 2HRTIAH
o

RTREZXEERER 2 BREZ Bt
DFE{EHI1,088,000/8 70 (ZBT/RF -

137,000870) ERAFE 2 ira Kt & T
Mk
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45. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS 45, BB TS
Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 May 2006 (the “Agreement”), BRERZTEZFRAATZBER 2 HhzE
the Group acquired from an independent third party assets and (IpeEl)  AEENBREOARE
gas and oil logistics and distribution operations across Wuhan, the 470,000,0007T * t—HBEIZE = BEFT
PRC, at a total consideration of approximately RMB470 million. B £ T A2 & B R REL 2 A0 &
This transaction has been accounted for using the purchase DIHFER - RIERXZEEAES 5 X
method of accounting and has been completed in September & AER-ZEERNFNATEK - RHHK
2006. The net assets acquired in the transaction is summarised as B2FEEMENT :
follows:
Carrying
amount before
business Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
ES SNt AFEE
R E{E Bk AFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FA&TT FA&T
Net assets acquired: BABETHE :
Property, plant and equipment LE N 419,317 38,327 457,644
Fair value adjustment on i‘ﬁfﬂﬁﬁiiﬂz
leasehold land NP EEFR - 9,210 9,210
Other intangible assets — rights of operation EL & — K& HE - 35,923 35,923
Other intangible assets — customer base ~ EMEFEE - R ER = 2,032 2,032
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 45,522 = 45,522
Deferred tax liability BERHA R = (28,212) (28,212)
464,839 57,280 522,119
Discount on acquisition of business WX BmE (3,755)
518,364
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 344,828
Transaction costs paid BERR G 24,434
Deferred consideration payable (Note) FERHEE B (T 5E) 118,227
Unsettled transaction costs included BE R FER FIB R BT
in creditors and accrued expenses A AZ R [HR B 30,875
518,364
Net cash outflow arising WHBEA ZRE
on acquisition: TR
Cash consideration and ENEERER
transaction costs paid R G 369,262
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45.

46.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued)

Note: Pursuant to the Agreement, part of the consideration (RMB120
million) will be settled by way of issue of the 3-year, zero coupon,
HK$ denominated convertible notes by the Company at a
conversion price of HK$4.25 per share. Upon maturity, the
redemption amount is 114.167% of the par value. As at 31 March
2007, the convertible notes have not yet issued and the unpaid
consideration of HK$121,213,000 is presented as deferred
consideration payable in consolidated balance sheet.

As the Group has no obligations to settle the unpaid consideration
within twelve months of the balance sheet date, the amount is
classified as non-current liabilities.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, an amount of approximately
HK$121,522,000 (equivalent to RMB120 million) convertible notes
have been issued.

The business acquired during the year recorded a loss of
HK$8,702,000 between the date of acquisition and the balance
sheet date.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group acquired certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries which are engaged in holding of motor
vehicles registration marks. The acquisition has been accounted
for by the purchase method of accounting. The effect of the
acquisition is summarised as follows:

45 WK (B)

Mzt : REFmE - RE (AKR%120,000,000
JT) Z —BMA S BB AN A BILAERR4. 2578
T2 ABREREIT=FHTEEAT
ARRER 2 HEE - BIHE - E
B¢ AEBL114.167% - R=F
TLFE=A=+—H8  RREED
REELT - AN 2121,213,000/8 7T
RERGEEEBBERANAERNIEL
REZ3 °

AAREEESRBNEE AR+ —(E
HZNBERNRE - FIRTIDER
FRBAME -

REEB® EETESEYD
121,522,000/ 7T (HHERARE
120,000,0007T) AT =4 -

RUWEAREE AHME - WEEBKERS
8,702,000/ L& 18 ©

46. WEEKIB A A
RBEZTTF=RA=T—HILFE -
AEBUBETHAIERREHI2E
MEAR - EdWBEAKBEIHEA
R o W 2B

2006
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BABREFE

Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWARSK ~ &S RFEFIE 202
Other intangible assets Hinfmp & E 973
Creditors and accrued expenses FESBR R R AT RS2 (975)

Total consideration, representing cash BRE  BERERER
consideration and net cash outflow RE ML 200

The subsidiaries acquired did not make any significant impact on
the Group’s results and cash flows for the prior year.

EFERECHBRARBAEREF 2 EE
EREREWFELEMNERTE
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47.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. HEKMB A
During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group disposed of the REBEE_ZTTF=A=+—HILFE "
following subsidiaries: REBHETIMMEAR

(a) On 8 June 2005, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in Technico Investments Limited (“Technico”) at a consideration
of approximately HK$13.2 million, with HK$9.3 million in cash

(@) R=ZFZTRFNANA - REEUL
13,200,000 T2 KB HEENA=IZ
BERAR (DRR]) 2 254
E$9momo%ﬁuﬁéiﬁ~%ﬁ
3,900,000 TTIEBIEERE - AEmn
FE A LTS —FTEE o

and HK$3.9 million as a deferred consideration. Technico
owned a property in Taishan, the PRC.

(b) On 20 July 2005, the Group disposed of its entire equity

interest in Time First Investments Limited and its wholly-owned (o) RAZZEZRFEA=1H  AEEMUL

subsidiary (“Time First group”) at a cash consideration of
HK$26.3 million. Time First group was engaged in the property
development and sale in Taishan, the PRC.

(c) On 12 September 2005, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Skylink Enterprises Limited (“Skylink”) at a
consideration of HK$25 million, with HK$22 million in cash and
HK$3 million as deferred consideration. Skylink owned a
property in Taishan, the PRC.

(d) On 26 September 2005, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Redcliff Property Corp. (“Redcliff”) at a cash
consideration of HK$17.7 million. Redcliff was engaged in the
property development and sale of a property in Taishan, the
PRC.

(e) On 4 October 2005, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Well Cycle Limited (“Well Cycle”) at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$1.3 million. Well Cycle owned certain
second hand motor vehicles and vehicle registration numbers
as its sole business and assets.
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26,300,000/ T2 HEREHEER
Time First Investments Limited & & 2
BB AT ([Time Firsts= @) B2 2BA%
ANHEZS  Time FirstEE 2 2 BEAL A
Balmz s BERKIHE °

) R=ZZTRAFAA+=8 - KEEAD

25,000,000 T2 REBHEERRED
EARAR ([ReE]) 2R A=
Hr22,000,000 BILARE I 5B
63,000,000/ T Al BIEEARAE - K3
REBE S ILTHES — T -

(d) R=ZZRFNAA—FRE - REEIA

#917,700,0008 T2 RS REHEER
Redcliff Property Corp. ([Redcliff]) #9

2R AR o Redcliff B2 BAIRH
Bl e lme Yz ERKLHEE -

(e) RZZEZRF+HMA » REEIUL

1,300,000/ T2 R & R EHEHRE

EAER AR ([FEE]) K2 R4 o
LEEAE T ZFRERTEMERR
0 WAHEGZEBREE -



47.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(f) On 20 January 2006, the Group disposed of its 100% interest

in Linkport Holdings Limited and its two wholly-owned
subsidiaries (“Linkport group”) to an associate of the Group at
an agreed value of the property of HK$780 million, with
adjustments of HK$14 million being deducted on completion
according to agreement, with HK$649 million in cash and
HK$117 million as a deferred consideration which will in turn
be settled in cash on or before 20 January 2009. Linkport
group owned an investment property located in Hong Kong as
its sole business and asset.

(g) On 27 January 2006, the Group disposed of its 100% interest

in Darierian Limited and its two wholly-owned subsidiaries
(“Darierian group”) to a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC at a
cash consideration of HK$3.5 million. Darierian group owned
certain second hand motor vehicles, vehicle registration
numbers and a golf club corporate membership as its sole
business and assets.

(h) On 31 March 2006, the Group disposed of its 100% interest in

Bakersfield Trading Limited and its two wholly-owned
subsidiaries (“Bakersfield group”) at a cash consideration of
HK$55 million. Bakersfield group owned a motor vessel and
wet berth as its sole business and asset.

On 30 October 2005, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries which were engaged in manufacturing and trading
of concrete products. The consideration for the disposal is
HK$19 million which will be settled in cash of HK$4 million and
a deferred consideration of HK$15 million by the purchaser on
or before October 2009.

47 HEKB AR ()
() RZFTFRF—AZ1H > AERELZ

WIE 2 1€ {8780,000,0007 7T (AL
SERK R AR B 102 118 14,000,000/ 7T 73

#) & H B Linkport Holdings Limited
MEMEIZEWNB AR ([Linkports
B HEHEm T ASE —FEEQ
A] © EA649,000,000/ TIAIR &
5f + 55F117,000,000/8 T BELENR(E
WA =T NF— A =+ B BARTEA

4 7E1E - Linkportte AN ES
ZIREYME  WAHEBZEBKRE
7o

(9) R=ZEZEXF—A=-++tH KEEK

F&MN(E3,500,000F T HEER
Darierian Limited X X RE2EE A
Al ([Darierianfc®]) )% EPiEam T1E6F
EEE 2 &N AR - Darieriante
EHEEET=—F)A8 AEERREER
RRAIREEEE  WAHER 2B

(h) RZEZERF=A=+—H ' KEEI

&R (855,000,000 BT HEER
Bakersfield Trading Limited & E R 2
EHIEAF] ([BakersfieldEE ) FyEH
%5 o Bakersfield& E#EH — M &R
& WRHEBZEBREE -

RZZZRF+A=1H AEELE
ETHRERRLERERZHBAR
&% 2 A fE/A19,000,000457T * £
74,000,000 BTHABREE S - BB
15,000,000 7T AEER B L KR =

ZNFTASKARTHESEE - .
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47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. HEMB AR (B)

2006
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: &S B ESHE
Property, plant and equipment M - M R 152,346
Investment properties wEY 540,400
Prepaid lease payments FENFAEFIE 108,378
Other intangible assets Hifmp & E 8,419
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUERFK « 5] & RTE(SFRIE 25,052
Properties held for sale FEHE S 93,828
Bank balances and cash RITHEF MRS 5,891
Creditors and accrued expenses FER BRI R R (56,661)
Taxation payable FERIHLIE (1,219)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBEE (24,834)
851,600
Expenses incurred on disposal HEEEZRAX 9,755
Gain on disposal & 2 Wes 60,756
Total consideration BRE 922,111
Satisfied by: SARPAEE
Cash Re 788,131
Consideration receivable (included in debtors,  FEUHE (FIIA
deposit and prepayments) FEWERSK ~ 518 RIBRFIE) 3,000
Promissory note A EE 117,000
Deferred consideration EERAE 13,980
922,111
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEMEE 2R MAFE
Cash received BYER S 788,131
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERS KRS EEER (5,891)
782,240
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47.

48.

49.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

As part of the consideration of the disposal of the subsidiaries, a
deferred consideration of HK$15,000,000 is to be settled in cash
by the purchaser under four annual instalments commencing from
30 October 2006. The fair value of the deferred consideration at
date of initial recognition is determined based on estimated future
cash flows discounted at 3% per annum.

The subsidiaries disposed of during the prior year contributed
approximately HK$37,182,000 to the Group’s turnover and a gain
of approximately HK$74,997,000 to the Group’s results for that
year.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
The Group had the following major non-cash transactions:

(a) New shares were issued as scrip dividends during the year as
set out in notes 16 and 43;

(b) During the year, the Company issued and allotted 68,500,000
ordinary shares for the acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries; and

(c) During the year, the Company declared a special dividend by
way of distribution of the value derived from the Group’s
divestment of an associate. The amount distributed was
approximately HK$325,660,000.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes are
separately held in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
contribute a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

47. HEKRB AR (&)

ERLEMNBARZHMAORE  BE
15,000,000 L ZEIER BB ET R =
TERNFTA=THESORAFFURS
B85 - BERERVRER AN AE
ETREERRRSRERTFI%MIRE

EE5E °

EFELEZHBARIEASE 22X
2B D RIBE#37,182,00058 7T R A H 4
74,997, 0008 T ©

48. ERFHEER S

AEEBETTIEAFRERS ¢

(a) FRFETROIEAEDRE EHR
MiEE165243)

(b) FA - NARBUEEHE R BRI MR
217 R L 368,500,000/ HiAY « &

(c) FW » ANARAD IRASE B HE 3 —
BN R IR EMEE 2 BEME IR
RIRR B o 7 KFKIAL) £325,660,00075

o

dl

49 RIRBRIFTE

AEBRAEREEREEEHIERK
BAEE - ZEBIZEERRTAERE
ZZEESEURE -

AEBAETBENBEAR ZEEZHPER
T2 R EERABHEE 2KE -
BB A R AR S & M 2R PR
RARRRMETSIEH MR - REBHRAKTE
A8z E— R IR BRI EHR -
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49. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued) 49 RINERIFE (B)

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are
employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no material forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming fully
vested and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated income statement represent
contributions paid and payable to the funds by the Group at the
rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RiFRWERBHZBARARNERRZE
FEIZRAME 2N TFEESZH
Ko WEBEANZAEAEEEZAAHZH
AR HZETE  ARBENHZKE
TR R Z SRRIER -

REER  YEREEREEATZEAE
BRI 2 AR AR B F A B AE
HEZBRRRHA R AT EARBERARKE
R NIRRT -

HOZETFE+ A B AEEMA
sl NFEEE S ([aEeFE]) - BE
EEEIE RIBRFIE DB B RHIER
HUERAEEERRER - RiESTEZE
EBVRNAKRBEZEE  ABUXFEAE
HlZzEE2RHA - RIBBESFE2RA
BEREEHAZBERAGIAZLER
AEIR - AREEHRESTIZES
BEARBFEEREE MR - BATL
B BRI A AR B R B K -

H e fE 2 58I M E B 2 RIRRE A EH BIHER
BEAKREERTR - HERAEEIZTE
RAGTAZHLEMESE N RERMNZ #

o
N

50. REE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHIT
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of banking PR THLE QAL ZERTT
facilities granted to an associate EERRITIED 2 IR 9,454 9,454
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51. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 51. REHE AR

(a) The Group as a lessee: (a) NEEFERFEBEA :
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for REEH - RNEBETAREE 2 BRATHE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable Y2 R IBNAEFIBAS ST L) 5 E =)
operating leases in respect of rented premises and prepaid BARRSARE SFIEANE - IWFREZ
lease payments which fall due as follows: STEARATE ¢
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —&R 29,766 21,232
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFHT (BEREREEN) 49,155 60,513
Over five years HBEAF 4,449 =
83,370 81,745
Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for terms Mz ke ARLERE @ 5T EHR
ranging from two to thirty years. BFE=+FRE-
(b) The Group as a lessor: (b) REEEREBEA :
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with REEH - ANEEEEP B AR R &E
tenants for future minimum lease payments which fall due as HEFIAETH o TTHAT
follows:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —&R - 971
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFHE (BEREREERN) - 500

- 1,471
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52. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 52. EEIKH
At the balance sheet date, the following assets were pledged to REEH - THEEDRE TIRITRUE
banks and financial institutions to secure the general credit W - (ERASENG —REERE K
facilities granted to the Group: #
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Property, plant and equipment W% - R 467,615 =
Prepaid lease payments AN HEEFRIE 35,268 =
Intangible assets B EE 7,827 =
Bank deposits RITIFR 42,601 118,622
Properties held for sale FHEL B - 78,245
Project under development ZERPIEE 24,137 -
Properties under development ERPYIFE 66,834 =
644,282 196,867
In addition, the Group'’s benefits under certain construction BN REBRETEESHN ZF=E T
contracts were pledged to secure the facilities granted. B - (ERAER LS 2 ER -
53. COMMITMENTS 53. &I
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT T
Expenditure contracted for but not provided ~ FtUEEA TIER 25T4)
in the consolidated financial statements BRNGZEERER
in respect of acquisition of: B
— Property, plant and equipment — Wz - W R ERE 274,986 65
— Project under development —#REFIEAE 1,146,837 91,893
— Properties under development —ERPYIE 98,044 =
1,519,867 91,958
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54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 54 BEALIR G RIERR

(a) The Group entered into the following transactions with certain (a) FRN @ NEBEEERFEATELATR
related parties during the year: 2
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2007 2006
BEALZER XakE HK$°000 HK$'000
TR 55
Associates of Purchase of concrete products AEEEERRET
the Group by the Group Em 35 112
KEE ZBE R T Interest income charged by the Group &£ EIFEURERF| BUA 8,400 16,437
Rentals and related building AEELAHE
management fee charged to the Group ~ RABEMEERE 24,958 3,689
Rentals and consultancy fee charged AEBEKHESE R
by the Group HAE 2,511 =
Building manager remuneration A B
fee charged by the Group TEHe 1,200 248
Project management fees AEELHER
charged to the Group EHE 8,445 =
Project management fees AEERER
charged by the Group EHERE 1,596 6,044
Net rental guarantee income AEBEIEE R RE
charged by the Group WAHE 1,438 =
Construction works charged A B
by the Group I%8 - 383
Subcontracting fees charged AEEZH
to the Group PEAE - 15
Jointly controlled Subcontracting fees charged AEEZN
entities of the Group to the Group NEBE 7,798 1,015
REE AR g Service fees charged AEEWHRBEE
by the Group 30 65
Project management AEEWEER
fees charged EEE
by the Group - 825
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54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued) 54 BIEATRSRER @)
(a) (continued) (a) (8&)
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2007 2006
BEALZER XH%E HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
Subsidiaries of ITC Purchase of building materials AEERERENE
EErEHEAR by the Group 40 =
Rental income charged by the Group AEBEREES KA 48 345
Service fee charged by the Group RSB R E - 25
Interest income charged by the Group & EURERF 2 U A 5,339 =
Interest charged to the Group AEBETMAFE M7 =
Coupon interest of Hanny Bonds entitled ~ AEEZ AR E
by the Group EHZHME 582 =
Rentals charged to the Group AEETNEE 360 0
Face value of Hanny Bonds subscribed ~ ANE A8 $3E
by the Group B EHE 36,858 =
Rentals and related building management  AEBWERES K
fee charged by the Group BEANEERE - 62
Motor vehicles rental charged to the Group AN&[E s 27 219 =
Associates of ITC Interest income charged by the Group & EURERF| S U A 13,461 16,709
(ST =N Interest charged to the Group AEEZMAFE 981 =
Service fees charged by the Group RSB R E 109 7
Service fees charged to the Group AEELNRBGE 736 -
Rentals and related building management & EKEE S &
fee charged by the Group HEMEERS - 1,707
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54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued) 54 BIEA TR 5 REE ()

(a) (continued) (a) (8&)
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2007 2006
BEALZER REME HK$’000 HK$'000
T 5
Other related companies Rental and related building ARERBHEE R
(Note) management fee charged RENEERE
EfwpmEnE () by the Group 17 3,501
Interest income charged by the Group A& BURERF| S MA 925 7,160
Service fees charged to the Group AEETNRBE 1,253 1,920
Service fees charged by the Group AEERHRBEE 305 112
Sales of property, plant AEEHEME
and equipment by the Group e - 6
Minority shareholder of Interest charged to the Group AREZHAES 155 8,392
a subsidiary
WEARZDBRE
Company which a member  Acquisition of additional interests AEEIERENE
of key management is a in subsidiaries by the Group NAlEs 199,551
shareholder
BEEERERERRR AT
Note: ITC has significant influence over these related companies. KiaE : EECEHNEREATARE

By 488
ARE o

(b) The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management, which is determined by the remuneration (b) EEZREEEREKE 2T
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and ZEG2EER AR Z KA RMISZER
market trends, is as follows: MEE @ BT
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
F85 Fitr
Short-term benefits g HAftE A 20,451 18,525
Post-employment benefits EREF 557 769
Share-based payment expense LA AD 2 (T 5kIR < B 11,698 939
32,706 20,233
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54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

(b) (continued)

Details of the share options granted to the directors during the

year are set out below:

54 BMEALRERERR ()
(b) (#)
FRABRTESZBREZFBOT :

Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding
price per asat during during asat
Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period share 1.4.2006 the year the year 31.3.2007
R-RERE H-BEBLE
mA-A ZA=t-H
- £1:3 RAH s BRTER BT ERRH ERiTE BT
HKS
i
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph  EJB#E 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 124 650,000 - (650,000) -
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 150 650,000 - (650,000) -
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom R 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 124 6,500,000 - 6,500,000
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 150 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
08.09.2006 (8.09.2006 to 07.09.2007 248 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
08.09.2006 (8.09.2007 t0 07.09.2008 248 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
08.09.2006 (8.09.2008 t0 07.09.2009 248 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ermest 53 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 124 650,000 - - 650,000
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 150 650,000 - - 650,000
Chan Shu Kin REE 28.12.2004 28.12.200410 26.08.2012 124 650,000 - - 650,000
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 150 650,000 - - 650,000
Leung Po Wing, 2ER 08.09.2006 (8.09.2006 to 26.08.2012 243 - 1,300,000 - 1,300,000
Bowen Joseph
Li Chang An 3ER 06.02.2007 06.02.2007 to 26.08.2012 3.00 - 1,300,000 - 1,300,000

16,900,000 16,400,000 (1,300,000) 32,000,000

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group has acquired

certain subsidiaries from the directors of the Company which
are engaged in holding of motor vehicles registration marks.
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54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)
(d) During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group disposed of
certain subsidiaries to an associate of the Group and a wholly-

owned subsidiary of ITC. Details of transactions are set out in

note 47(f) and (g).

Details of the balances with associates, jointly controlled entities,

related companies and minority shareholders at the balance sheet

date are set out in notes 29, 30, 38, 39 and 40.

55. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

54 BAEA LR B KA (B)

(d) HBEZZEEF=A=1+—HILFE "
NEFHES THBA R TANEER 2 B
EARREELEZZENBAR - X
S R FE47(H R(g) °

ERBS N A) ~ RIS - 7S
VBN 2 R BB BRI
F5E29 ~ 30 ~ 38 ~ 39240 °

55. X DA EERER

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT

NON-CURRENT ASSET EMENEE
Investment in subsidiaries B ATIEE 5 5

CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Deposits and prepayments 5l & RIENFIE 332 2,829
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE €] 2,603,118 2,560,441
Short term bank deposits HISRITIE R 105,516 177,751
Bank balances RITHETT 12,355 31,125
2,721,321 2,772,146
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE

Creditors and accrued expenses FES BRI ERT RS2 3,215 4,086
Amount due to a subsidiary FETFT B A A FRIE 900,546 920,303
Bank borrowings HRITIEX 80,000 30,000
983,761 954,389
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 1,737,560 1,817,757
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,737,565 1,817,762

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRI
Share capital %N 149,171 137,880
Reserves (Note) bt (I EE) 1,588,394 1,679,882
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS fRERE & 1,737,565 1,817,762
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55. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (continued) 55. R NFIZEERER(EBE)
Note: Kz
Share-
based
Share Capital payment Retained

premium reserve reserve profits Total
AR %

R 1758 BARE ROARE RER A &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET THT TER FET

At 1 April 2005 R=ZZTRFNA—H 184,811 2,480,000 - 290,182 2,954,993
Share repurchased and e &

cancelled ESled) (13,426) = = = (13,426)
Issue of shares under scrip RIBARRNK S5

dividend schemes Z17hD (2,011) = = = (2,011)
Credit arising on scrip dividends AR B E A 2R = = = 29,931 29,931
Share issue expenses RinETEHR (274) = = - (274)
Recognition of equity-settled BRURMND ZARIEZ

share-based payment expense £H - - 4,945 - 4,945
Issue of shares under share IR IERT 2

option scheme BT 29 - (5) - 24
Transfer from capital reserve BB BN - (2,480,000) - 2,480,000 -
Loss for the year FEEE - = = (296,230)  (296,230)
Distribution HIE - - ~ (998,070)  (998,070)
At 31 March 2006 RZEZRF=ZA=+—H 169,129 - 4,940 1,505,813 1,679,882
Share repurchased and cancelled  B&[EI Kt 85 {7 (4,181) - = = (4,181)
Issue of shares under scrip RIBEARR S5 E

dividend schemes BT (984) = = = (984)
Credit arising on scrip dividends PARRAR B P e A 2 3 R - - - 24,477 24,477
Share issue expenses BIIRNER (635) = = = (635)
Recognition of equity-settled BRI A HIEZ

share-based payment expense EH - - 22,181 - 22,181
Issue of shares under share RIERE AR E

option scheme BT 59,597 = (5,096) = 54,501
Issue of shares upon acquisition of U FH B A 7)ZB4h

additional interests in subsidiaries  EaSEFEITA D 192,701 = = - 192,701
Release upon lapse of vested BHRBBRERK

share options P aE - = (63) 63 =
Loss for the year FEBE - = = (9,880) (9,880)
Distribution HE - - ~ (369,668)  (369,668)
At 31 March 2007 R=ZEZ+HF=A=+—H 415,627 - 21,962 1,150,805 1,588,394
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56. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group entered into the
following major transactions:

(a) On 13 March 2007, an associate of the Group entered into a

conditional agreement regarding the disposal of the associate’s
property interest in Paul Y. Centre at a consideration of
approximately HK$1,150 million. The transaction was
completed in June 2007.

The resultant gain on disposal of the associate’s property
interest is insignificant.

(b) In July 2007, a subsidiary of the Group signed a 7- year project
loan facility agreement for RMB960 million. The loan bears the

current RMB long-term loan benchmark interest rate

announced by the People’s Bank of China. The loan is to
finance the development of infrastructure projects in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. The loan will be repaid by 24 installments
and the final repayment date for the loan is in 2014.

57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(a) Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2007 are as follows:

56. £ E HEBEE

I

(@)

(b)

o=
BERR  AKBEIIATRS ¢

R=BBLF=A+=A  ARA—H
B AT SEE T2 R S

EARNRERRH LY MEEHFE
TSR - RRBNTE
ERBF -

LB A R R FTE B e
AR e

RE=ZELF+A - AEEZHBAR]
#E ¥ Nk e T ARKI60,000,000
TCHHFIHE B o 2B AR E
ARBITAME B ARTHAREKE
EREEFEGE - ZEERARAT
BlI#r& 2 BB ERME - ZZEZH
DAMELE - ZiE—HIRR =T M4

{EE o

57. TEMBA R ~ BE QR RLEZEHH
(a) ARARETEMBRARANR_TTLF=H

=t+—BZ&HBIT

Issued and Percentage of issued
fully paid share capital/
Place of share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ registered  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary registration capital  Subsidiaries  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRE/
BRTR TEMERE DL
B,/ BrBE/  HREAR rEE
WELRER EEdilipiok &R 2] FEfs TEEK
% %
Corless Limited British Virgin US$2%T 100 63.74 Investment holding
Islands ordinary shares REER
KBRS TdR
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,0007% 7T 100 100 Investment holding
BIEBR AR Bt ordinary shares REZR
Jiangsu Wanhua Real PRC US$8,800,0005 T 100 100 Property investment
Estate Development ] registered capital MERE
Co., Ltd. (notes (i) and (vi) below)
IHEERMEREBRAR A EA (T SR EE() B (vi))
> geemarnn co07Em >
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

57. TEMBAF - BE QAR RHAEEHH

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) BER (B
Issued and Percentage of issued
fully paid share capital/
Place of share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ registered  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary registration capital  Subsidiaries  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTR BRTRE/
B,/ BRRE/ HMERE DL
WEARER M it 2 “ZfER MHEAREE AREEG  ETEXR
% %
Jiangsu YangKou Port PRC US$66,650,0003 T 75 75 Port development
Development and H registered capital BOER
Investment Co., Ltd. (notes (ii) and (vi) below)
L& OBREREBRAR T & AR (T S (i) B (vi))
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment PRC US$13,332,000 T 75 75 Port development
and Development Co., Ltd. H registered capital BHER
TEHFEREREBRAR (note (ii) below)
FH & AR (RSP ER(iD)
HEREBRIERBRAR PRC US$25,000,000% 7T 100 100 LPG distribution and
H registered capital logistics
(note (i) below) BRI A B R H
- eNES¢iE() R
Nation Cheer Investment Hong Kong HK$1,200,0007 7T 100 100 Securities investment
Limited B ordinary shares and trading
FEFABRAF LEk BAREREE
Paul Y. Building Materials Hong Kong HK$275 7T 100 63.74 Trading and installation
Company Limited Bt ordinary shares of building materials
EE BEMEE S RER
Paul Y. Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$275 7T 100 100 Investment holding
RECEER A Bt ordinary shares REZR
LRk
Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Hong Kong - 60 38.24 Civil engineering
Joint Venture B (note (iii) below) TARTRE
(3Bt aii)
Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors Hong Kong HK$20,000,00078 7T 99.9998 63.74 Provision of electrical,
Limited B ordinary shares mechanical and
RERETREBR AR 3l building services
REER SR
Paul Y. Builders Group Hong Kong HK$2787T 100 63.74 Investment holding
Limited B ordinary shares BREER
RERZEEEERAR 3l
HK$1,000,000/87C - -
non-voting

deferred shares
(note (iv) below)
ERZRETR

(R HIFE (iv)
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

57. X EMB AR - BE DR RARZEHIH
BEHR (B

Issued and Percentage of issued
fully paid share capital/
Place of share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ registered  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary registration capital  Subsidiaries  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTR BRTRE/
K,/ BERE/ HMERE D
WELAREH i it 2 HfEx BHBLREE FREEE IEXRE
% %
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong  HK$102,000,0007% 7T 100 63.74 Building construction
REREBRAH B ordinary shares EFRE
ERK
Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong HK$42,000,000/ 75 100 63.74 Building construction
Engineering Co. Limited B ordinary shares and civil engineering
RERETIEERAH B BFRERTATRE
Paul Y. Engineering Group Bermuda HK$294,800,00075 7T 63.74 63.74 Investment holding
Limited BRE ordinary shares REZR
RERFXEEBR A 3l
Paul Y. General Contractors Hong Kong HK$36,000,000/ 7T 100 63.74 Building construction
Limited B ordinary shares and civil engineering
RERELEBR AT EE BFRERTIATR
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Hong Kong HK$2/E 7T 100 63.74 Interior decoration
Limited B ordinary shares works
RERHTIEERAT TR EREETRE
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$25 T 100 63.74 Hire of motor vehicles
REUBAEERAA B ordinary shares and plant and machinery
Tk A8 RBRERAEE
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2787T 100 63.74 Civil engineering, building
Company, Limited B ordinary shares construction and
RERSEBR AT LER investment holding
TATIRE BFRERREZR
HK$50,000,0007 7T = =
non-voting

preferred shares
(note (V) below)

BERFRELK
(T XHIEE (v)
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

57. TEMBAF - BE QAR RHAEEHH

BEHR (B

Issued and Percentage of issued
fully paid share capital/
Place of share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ registered  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary registration capital  Subsidiaries  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTR BRITRE
B,/ BrRRE/ TMERE D
WEARERE i it 2 dftEx BHBLAREE AREEE IEXRE
% %
Paul Y. Construction PRC RMB60,000,000 A K # 100 63.74 Civil engineering and
(China) Limited H registered capital building construction
RERE (PE) BR AT T B IATRRETRE
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings British Virgin SES 100 63.74 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REZR
RERUES Tk
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong  HK$10,000,000/ 7T 100 63.74 Civil engineering and
REWEBERAF] B ordinary shares foundation works
EEk TARTERMETE
Paul Y. Management Hong Kong HK$27 7T 100 63.74 Management and
Limited e ordinary shares secretarial services
REEBERAR EE BB RWE RS
Paul Y. Project Management Hong Kong HK$2% 7T 100 63.74 Project management services
International Limited e ordinary shares and investment holding
REBBIREREBRAR EE HH ERRBRIRERR
Paul Y. Facilities Hong Kong HK$2/8 7T 100 63.74 Facilities management
Management Co.,Limited BB ordinary shares services
RERMEERBRAR EE RS B RIS
PYI Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2/E T 100 100 Management services
RESEEEERAR o ordinary shares EERE
PYI Min Sheng Investment Hong Kong HK$2/8 7T 100 100 Investment holding
Limited 0 ordinary shares REZR
REREREBRAF EER
PYI Xingdong Properties PRC US$12,500,0005% 75 100 100 Property investment
(Jiangsu) Limited H registered capital MERA

REARE X (IH) ERA7A

(notes (i) and (vi) below)

AR EAR (T 3THRE() Be(vi))
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 57. T EMB AT - B DT R [E 15 5%
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) BER @)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)

All of the above subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong except
Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., PYI
Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu) Limited, j#1t R4 A w1 L mA
[R 2 7], Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd., Jiangsu YangKou Port Development and Investment Co.,
Ltd. and Paul Y. Construction (China) Limited, all of which
operate in the PRC.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies except Paul
Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture which is an unincorporated
business. Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited is listed in Hong
Kong.

Notes:
(i) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.
(i) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(iii) No capital has been contributed by the joint venture partners of the
joint venture.

(iv) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to
vote, are not entitled to any dividends for any financial year and
are, on winding up or otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus
assets of the company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the
ordinary shares of the company.

(v) The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not entitled to
vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless the net profits of the
company available for dividend exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in
which case they should be entitled to a fixed non-cumulative
dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and
are, on winding up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the
ordinary shares of the company.

(vi) As at 31 March 2007, the registered capital of Jiangsu Wanhua
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Jiangsu YangKou Port
Development and Investment Co., Ltd. and PY| Xingdong
Properties (Jiangsu) Limited are paid up to US$7,225,000,
US$40,650,000 and US$6,432,000, respectively. The registered
capital of all other subsidiaries registered in the PRC are fully paid
up as at 31 March 2007.

LA BB ARISETELE - T
HEEFMEMZARDR - RERR
BX (I BRAR  HIERERRR
ERERRA] I FRFAERERR
AR TR DBIRERERR AR R
REZE (P E) AR DREPRHEE -

Lt EMB AR BFLABRAR
MEPaul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture &
IEABE X - MRERESER
FBRATAEEE LT o

Hiaz
(i) LEARRINGBEDRE -
(i) ERARARFINGEGERR]

(i) LEEELFEZEBRALELE -

(iv) HEER SRR G A SRS -
MBI ARFEE ZRE - AR
BREEZ AR AR EEMER T 5
k48 £1100,000,000,000,000/8 75 7%
AR BERIFE AR M BRBEE 2
T EEREEA o

(v) WEERERELERIFTAAEBRER
= JMEREERARE - BRIEZAEIA]
IR 2408 #8383 100,000,000,0005%
T FEMIERT ¢ RS AR AR
BFEER—BFEAREZEEIE
ZRERE - BREREZARERE
)k 48%810,000,000,0007 70 T :Z A
AL ARFAEARHERIBEEZR
T ERIEEAA -

Vi) R=EZLF=ZA=1+—H ' THS
EEWERBERAR L&+ A5
RERBEBRAFIRRERRESE
(I8) BERAREHT B A
7,225,0003 7T * 40,650,0003 7T M
6,432,000F T2 FEMEAR o EeaR
REEMZHBATN ST LE=
A=+—HESRZFMER -
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)
(b) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates indirectly

held by the Company at 31 March 2007 are as follows:

57. TEMBA R ~ BE QR RHAREHH
BER (B
(b) ARRWEFBE T EBRERRN_F
THF=A=F+—HZHBWT :

Issued and Percentage of
fully paid issued share
Place of share capital/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
ERITR KEEES
BRBRE/ ERTRE/
- INTEL B3/ e B &R HEMERT DL TEXK
%
CSCEC-Paul Y. Construction PRC US$10,000,0005 7T 20.0 Civil engineering
Company Limited HE registered capital and building
HEREREFREMAA (note below) construction
&R TATRRETEE
(FhtzD)
Gain Resources Limited British Virgin US$1003E7T 15.9 Investment holding
Islands ordinary shares REER
RERUES Tk
Nantong Port Group Limited PRC RMB966,004,400 A B 45 Port operation
HEBOREERAT ] registered capital BOES
(note below)
&R
(T hizD)
Yangtze Feeder Port British Virgin US$1ETT 50 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REER
RERUES Tk
Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project PRC US$500,00055 7T 255 Project management
Management Company H registered capital and consultancy
Limited (note below) services
ErhFRELR &R T2 B B Rk AR
HEEBEERAA (s
Note: The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company. HiiF : ZRRBFINEEEGERT
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 57. T EMB AT - BE QTR [

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) BEH (B
(c) Particulars of the Company’s principal jointly controlled entity at (c) RABEBHERIEHIRBEBR ST F
31 March 2007 are as follows: =A=+—HZFBENT :
Percentage of
Place of Issued and issued share
Name of jointly incorporation/ fully paid capital attributable
controlled entity registration share capital to the Group Principal activities
AEBEEMN
BRIt B BRITR BRITRA
FE[E) 4 IS 2 1B o i 3t 2 R R ZBEDLE FEEK
%
Paul Y. - Penta-Ocean Joint Hong Kong - 319 Civil engineering
Venture BB (Note) (Fi#7%) TARTE
Note: No capital has been contributed by the joint venture partners. Kzt - aEsALELE -
The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and jointly ERMAEERATEFEASEFE
controlled entity of the Company which, in the opinion of the FESAKAEBABHEEFEZARR
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a AIFTEE A R ~ B N B R kA 2 I o
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of BEERR - HHEMMBAR - BEAF
other subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities would, REARZEHIKE 2 ER B RBLE

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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Financial Summary B =

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLFE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHET FAT THET
(restated)
(E#78R)
RESULTS ES
Turnover BER 3,636,182 3,382,466 3,588,015 3,540,484 4,781,678
(Loss) profit before taxation BiAT (B518) s 1l (316,718) 208,566 497,163 367,128 326,595
Taxation (charge) credit FIE (Rx) #40 (37,809) (45,678) 23,772 (52,804) 50,552
(Loss) profit for the year FE (B8 mtl (354,527) 162,888 520,935 314,324 377,147
Attributable to: FEfh :
Equity holders of the Company ~ ANARIEZFB A (354,029) 163,627 521,920 278,861 345,665
Minority interests DER R R (498) (739) (985) 35,463 31,482
(354,527) 162,888 520,935 314,324 377,147
At 31 March
R=RA=+—-A
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAT FHET FET FAET THERr
(restated)
(EHER)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Total assets BEE 4,873,156 4,862,328 7,110,379 5,981,678 7,621,447
Total liabilities FEy= (2,199,065)  (2,081,008)  (3,395,658)  (2,971,741)  (4,372,598)
2,674,091 2,781,320 3,714,721 3,009,937 3,248,849
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity ARAERFAA
holders of the Company FEfE iR 2,658,531 2,770,872 3,178,826 2,570,632 2,771,852
Share-based paymentreserve  HIB R A2 AR %
of a subsidiary RIS - = = 137 981
Minority interests DEIRF R 15,560 10,448 535,895 439,168 476,016

2,674,091 2,781,320 3,714,721 3,009,937 3,248,849
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Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP
Li Chang An

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, JP
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP

Remuneration Committee

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, Jr (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP

Nomination Committee

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, Jr (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom)
Chan Shu Kin (Alternate to Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest)

Compliance Committee

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, Jr (Chairman)
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Chan Shu Kin

Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
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Share Repurchase Committee
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, JP (Alternate to Chan Shu Kin)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Wong Yiu Hung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Wong Yiu Hung
(Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Wong Lai Kin, Elsa)

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS

Herbert Smith (Hong Kong)

Richards Butler (Hong Kong)

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co. (Hong Kong)
Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

JC Master Law Offices (PRC)

Dewell & Partners (PRC)

FINANCIAL ADVISERS

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited

Somerley Limited

KPMG Corporate Finance Limited
PricewaterhouseCoopers (Shenzhen) Consulting Limited
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PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Strategic Financial Relations Limited

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES ADMINISTRATORS
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited

(Share Award Scheme — Trustee)
BOCI Securities Limited

(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;

Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
31/F, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2831 8338

Fax: (852) 2372 0641

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Secretaries Limited
(to be renamed as Tricor Secretaries Limited)
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai
Hong Kong
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Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda
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31/F, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRI EBEBEES RRELET L31E

Tel EF:E: +852 2831 8338 Fax f2H: +852 2372 0641  www.pyicorp.com
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